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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & BB E

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$344.8 million, which was an increase
of approximately HK$315.6 million or approximately 10.8 times
compared with the last corresponding year. It was due to a record
of sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services segment
approximately HK$340.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, compared with approximately HK$21.6 million for the previous
year, representing an increase of approximately HK$318.4 million,
almost 98.6% revenue of the Group came from this new segment.
Accordingly, the Group has scaled down the stock information
and research services business and precious metals trading and
brokerage business in the PRC. So as to reallocate the resources to
the motor vehicles business and other potential business.

The US-China trade war began in 2018 that has seriously affected
the Chinese economy. Premier Li Kegiang also pointed out that
“China’s development faces many complicated and severe domestic
and foreign situations, and the economy has new downward
pressure.” China’s automobile consumption market will also be
affected. In the fourth quarter of 2018, the turnover of imported
parallel motor vehicles of the Group slightly slowed down.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of brokerage
and securities margin financing services of approximately HK$1.2
million was recorded, compared with approximately HK$1.5 million
last year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.3 million.

For the proprietary stock trading, the Group recorded an unrealized
loss of the unsold trading securities approximately HK$6.5 million
and no realized trading gain or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Group disposed the entire equity interest in Sky Picture Culture
Communications Company Limited, Shenzhen Wealth Alliance
Networking Company Limited (“Wealth Alliance”) and the associate,
First China (Liaoning) Agricultural Products Trading Centre Company
Limited which was held by Wealth Alliance during the year and
recorded a disposal gain of approximately HK$12.4 million. The
Group disposed these subsidiaries and associate due to reallocate
the resources.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

For stock information and research services, this segment recorded
approximately HK$0.2 million of revenue for the year under review
compared with approximately HK$0.8 million for the same period last
year. This segment is going to be scaled down.

Due to the tightened policy of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) Government on regulating the precious metals trading and
brokerage business in the PRC, the Group did not have revenue
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2018 in these principal
activities and there was no income generated for the year ended 31
December 2017. This segment is going to be scaled down.

For the segment of trading of electronic student cards and school
safety products and provision of electronic student card platform, it
recorded revenue of approximately HK$3.4 million and incurred an
operating loss of approximately HK$1.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The said segment recorded revenue and operating
loss of approximately HK$5.3 million and approximately HK$16.2
million respectively for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As per the circular of the Company dated 19 March 2018, relating
to the making additional capital contribution of RMB50,000,000 to
joint venture company EE A AR BIBRE 5 B R A Al (transliterated
as Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia International Trading Company
Limited) (the “Sheng Yu Hong Jia”), the resolution was passed on
EGM dated 9 April 2018. As per the announcement of the company
26 October 2018, the Company completed making the additional
capital contribution of RMB50,000,000 to the joint venture company
on 25 October 2018. Following the completion, the joint venture
company is owned as from 90% to 93.33% by the company and as
to 6.67% by an independent third party joint venture partner of the
company, FJIERM ERHE B R AR (transliterated as Shenzhen Xin
Zhong Wealth Technology Company Limited).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & BB E

On 6 July 2018, our Company and Mr. Wang Jiawei, the chairman
of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company, entered into the subscription agreement, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and Mr.
Wang Jiawei conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the subscription
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.060 per subscription share.
The completion of the subscription had taken place on 12 October
2018 and a total of 1,450,000,000 subscription shares were allotted
and issued to Mr. Wang Jiawei. The Company received the gross
proceeds of HK$87 million from the subscription. The subscription
was an opportunity for the Company to raise capital for the
development and expansion of the existing motor vehicle business of
the Group and to capture potential investment opportunities relating
to the motor vehicle business of the Group when such opportunities
arise.

This demonstrates the confidence of Mr. Wang Jiawei places in the
company and the support to the development of the business of the
Group, which is conducive to enhancing the market image of the
Company.

According to the announcement of the major shareholders of the
Company dated 13 December 2018, Mr. Wang Wenming transferred
450,212,307 ordinary shares of the Company to Mr. Wang Jiawei in
the form of a gift, immediately following the transfer, Mr. Wang Jiawei
holds 2,102,255,935 ordinary shares, representing approximately
27.13% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$344.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to total turnover
of approximately HK$29.2 million for the pervious year, representing
an increase of approximately HK$315.6 million or approximately
10.8 times. The sharp increase of turnover was primarily due to the
increase in sales of motor vehicles business acts as principal in PRC.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$31.8 million, compared with a loss of approximately HK$136.3
million for the corresponding year, representing a decrease loss of
approximately HK$104.5 million. The loss of the year encompassed
the unrealized fair value losses on trading securities of approximately
HK$6.5 million, compared with realized losses on securities
trading and unrealized fair value losses on trading securities of
approximately HK$3.5 million and approximately HK$34.8 million
respectively for the previous year. In addition, the Company disposed
two subsidiaries and one indirectly-held associate during the year
and recorded such disposal gain of approximately HK$12.4 million
for the year under review.

As management consider that the old navigating chips products
could not be sold in the foreseeable future, the electronic student
cards and devices needed to write down of approximately HK$1.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, compared with no
write down needed for such inventories in previous year.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$381.4 million compared with approximately
HK$374.0 million as at 31 December 2017 and the liquidity of the
Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 12.36 times, compared with 5.39 times for previous
year. Among them, the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss were approximately HK$27.8 million (2017: approximately
HK$34.3 million). The financial assets invested the equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and financed the potential project called 5 B
Ao FI2EIEE in PRC. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash
and bank balances were approximately HK$161.4 million (2017
approximately HK$180.7 million) of which approximately HK$8.3
million (2017: approximately HK$9.8 million) were held on behalf of
clients in trust and segregated accounts.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & BB E

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total borrowing amounted
to approximately HK$4.5 million (2017: approximately HK$54.4
million), of which, approximately HK$2.1 million (2017: approximately
HK$49.9 million) was repayable within one year. The bank
borrowings were secured by charges over the Group’s land and
buildings as well as corporate guarantee issued by the Company.
The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 (calculated
by the total liabilities of approximately HK$34.0 million over equity
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$364.6 million) is 9.3% (2017: 22.6%). Taking into account of the
amount of liquid assets in hand, the Broad is of the view that the
Group has sufficient financial resources for future development of the
existing business of the Group and other business when investment
opportunities arise.

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$364.6 million as at 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of approximately HK$42.6 million, or 13.2%
from that of 31 December 2017. The increase was mainly due to
issuance of new shares for the year of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch. Foreign currency
exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group. However, we
will continue to stay vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to
movements of relevant currency.

Capital structure
As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s issued share capital was
7,748,958,120 shares of HK$0.01 each.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services

This segment began to contribute to the Group. It recorded
approximately HK$340.0 million of revenue for the year under review
compared with approximately HK$21.6 million for the same period
last year. It is principally engaged in motor vehicles business in PRC,
particularly in sales of motor vehicles and motor vehicles parts. The
US-China trade war began in 2018 that has seriously affected the
Chinese economy. Premier Li Keqgiang also pointed out that “China’s
development faces many complicated and severe domestic and
foreign situations, and the economy has new downward pressure.”
China’s automobile consumption market will also be affected. In
the fourth quarter of 2018, the turnover of imported parallel motor
vehicles of the Group slightly slowed down and incurred an operating
loss of approximately HK$6.7 million for the year, compared with
profit of approximately HK$2.9 million for the last corresponding
period.

Brokerage and securities margin financing services

Total revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$1.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, compared with
approximately HK$1.5 million for the same period last year. This
segment loss reached approximately HK$3.7 million while loss of
approximately HK$3.3 million for the last corresponding period.

Trading and principal investments

No realized loss was recognised during the year under review, as
compared to a trading loss of approximately HK$3.5 million for
previous year. It recorded a fair value losses of approximately HK$6.5
million for the year under review compared with fair value losses of
approximately HK$34.8 million of the previous year. This segment
showed an operating loss of approximately HK$13.3 million for the
year 31 December 2018 and it recorded a loss of approximately
HK$44.7 million last year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & BB E

Trading of electronic student cards and school safety
products and provision of electronic student card platform
This segment recorded approximately HK$3.4 million of revenue
for the year under review compared with approximately HK$5.3
million for the same period last year. It is principally engaged
in development and exploration of various telecommunication
technologies in the PRC, particularly in electronic student card for
school safety network. For the year under review, the navigating
chips of electronic student cards and devices needed to change to
operate in coordination with the BeiDou System, a system preferred
by the PRC Government. The Group is studying to modify the
devices in order to deal with the power consumption issues. It led
to a slowdown in the production of electronic student cards and
devices and incurred an operating loss of approximately HK$1.8
million for the year, compared with loss of approximately HK$16.2
million for the last corresponding period. The loss took in previous
year included the loss in the fair value change in contingent
consideration receivables for approximately HK$13.4 million.

Stock information and research services

This segment recorded approximately HK$0.2 million of revenue
for the year under review compared with approximately HK$0.8
million for the same period last year. It reported an operating loss
of approximately HK$6.0 million for the year, compared with loss
of approximately HK$28.0 million of last year. The loss took in the
previous year included the impairment of refundable earnest money
paid for proposed business acquisition in 2015 of approximately
HK$23.1 million.

Precious metals spot trading and brokerage

No consultancy fee income was received during the year under
review. It was mainly attributable to the tightened policy of the PRC
Government on regulating the precious metals trading and brokerage
business in the PRC in which the Group operated. It reported an
operating loss of approximately HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, as compared to an operating loss of approximately
HK$0.5 million for the previous year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment of the Group with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$27.6 million (2017: approximately HK$29.2
million) were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

On 9 April 2018, the Company obtained approval the proposed
additional capital contribution. The Board stated in the circular
that the proposed additional capital contribution will be settled
within 60 days after the Company obtained approval for it from the
shareholders. On 8 June 2018, the Company settled the sum of
RMB35,000,000 leaving a sum of RMB15,000,000 unsettled yet. On
25 October 2018, the Company completed making the additional
capital contribution of RMB50,000,000 to the Sheng Yu Hong Jia,
the Sheng Yu Hong Jia is owned as to 93.33% by the Company and
as to 6.67% by an independent third party joint venture partner of
the Company, #3I|& R = BHZ AR A al(transliterated as Shenzhen
Xin Zhong Wealth Technology Company Limited).

For more details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 19 March 2018, 9 April 2018, 8 June 2018 and 26 October
2018.

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition/disposal
which would have been required to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules for the year under review and the Group has no
concrete plans for other material investments.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & BB E

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a workforce of
91 employees (2017: 85). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$20.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$20.0
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical
benefits and discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a new
share option scheme as an added incentive for its employees.

OUTLOOK

As at 31 December 2018, almost 98.6% revenue of the Group came
from the new segment of sales of parallel imported motor vehicles
and provision of relevant agency services in the PRC.

On 22 May 2018, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC announced that
the PRC will cut import tariffs on vehicles and auto parts starting
from 1 July 2018. For car imports, those items which were originally
subject to import tariffs of 20% and 25% will both be slashed to
15%. The reduction in import tariffs may result in reduction of the
purchasing costs of end-customers for imported motor vehicles.
As such, the selling price of the imported motor vehicles will be
more attractive to customers, which is beneficial to the Company’s
imported motor vehicle business.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 19 March 2018,
the motor vehicles business has a risk of reliance on a small number
of customers. As at 31 December 2018, Sheng Yu Hong Jia has
improved its number of customers and increased to 10 customers
and with 25 customers in the progress of negotiation. Sheng Yu
Hong Jia will strive to increase more customers to reduce the level of
reliance in the future.

The US-China trade war began in 2018 that has seriously affected
the Chinese economy. Premier Li Kegiang also pointed out that
“China’s development faces many complicated and severe domestic
and foreign situations, and the economy has new downward
pressure.” However, in the outlook of 2019, after the uncertainty
of the US-China trade war is reduced, the Group is still optimistic
about the prospects of the imported motor vehicles business and
will closely monitor the market changes such as the imported motor
vehicles to enhance the performance of the business segment of the
Group.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

The Group is optimistic and confident in the prospects of the China
and Hong Kong stock markets and will continue to develop other
businesses and seek opportunities to expand its revenue sources to
enhance the Group’s revenue.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

1T B4 & &

AEBEUFENEBRMASLENBEE
DA HEEERREMBEBE RS KEEEAE
Wam R - AR T A SR B Ui s

AANERIEBEARER EFE BTREH
T B RS B T S I B R R BUARRRY ©

AEEGm
TEE
TE

FB —T-NAF=A+/\H

13



14

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei (Former name: Wang Xufeng), aged 32, has
been an executive Director, a member of nomination committee
of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Wang was also appointed
as the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company and a
member of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
22 September 2015. He is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in 2009 and a
Master of Science in Finance at City University London in the United
Kingdom in 2010. From October 2010 to July 2011, he was a
market analyst of the investment department in Shenzhen Shouguan
Investment Co., Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011, Mr. Wang
has been a manager of Sinofortune Securities Limited (formerly
known as First China Securities Limited), a subsidiary of the Group.
Mr. Wang is also the director of Victor Creation Global Limited from
August 2014 and Elpis Capital from September 2014.

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 49, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2015 and she was appointed as a member
of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 22
September 2015. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lai received her Bachelor of Arts degree in Financial
Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms. Lai
joined the Company in 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary and
has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEAERRE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 Feb 2010. Mr. Liu obtained Bachelor
Degree from Department of Chinese of Nankai University in 1996.
He also holds qualifications of economist, registered securities
investment consulting analyst and registered insurance broker
issued by various professional organizations in China. For the past
20 years, Mr. Liu has held different positions in various financial
media institutions and financial services institutions in Mainland
China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a responsible person
for marketing the newspaper “Securities Times”, he participated
in establishing the “Panorama Network” (www.p5w.net), a well-
known securities website in China and acted as its major responsible
person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in establishing and
operating the program “Securities Times” produced by “China
Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as “Program
Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen Securities
Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in setting up and
managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding
securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was elected
as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
in 2004. From 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Liu served Convoy China
Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He was the
executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015. Mr. Liu has found Shenzhen
Qianhai Yinyan Asset Management Co., Ltd. since 2014 and serves
as the executive director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAEERE

Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. (“Mr. Jim Rogers”), aged 76, was
appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company and a senior
consultant of JFYIFTNE EEBIE MR 5 F/LERA A (transliterated
as Shenzhen Qianhai First China International Commodities
Exchange Centre Limited) on 22 September 2014, Mr. Jim Rogers
is an author, financial commentator, adventurer, and successful
international investor. He has been frequently featured in Time, The
Washington Post, The New York Times, Barron’s, Forbes, Fortune,
The Wall Street Journal, The Financial Times, The Business Times,
The Straits Times and many media outlets worldwide. He has also
appeared as a regular commentator and columnist in various media
and has been a professor at Columbia University. After attending
Yale and Oxford University, Mr. Jim Rogers cofounded the Quantum
Fund, a global-investment partnership. Mr. Jim Rogers also served
as a full professor of finance at the Columbia University Graduate
School of Business, and, in 1989 and 1990, as the moderator of
WCBS'’s ‘“The Dreyfus Roundtable’ and FNN’s ‘The Profit Motive with
Jim Rogers’. Mr. Jim Rogers is the chairman of Beeland Interests,
Inc., a director of Spanish Mountain Gold Ltd. (a company listed
on the TSX Venture Exchange (SPA.TSX.V)), an non-executive
director of Geo Energy Resources Limited (a company listed on the
Singapore Exchange (SGX: RE4)), an independent director of PJSC
PhosAgro (a company listed on the Moscow Exchange and the
London Stock Exchange (PHOR)), a director of Virtus Total Return
Fund Inc. (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: ZF)), a director of Virtus Global Multi-Sector Income Fund (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: VGI)), a
director of Virtus Global Dividend and Income Fund Inc. (a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: ZTR)), a director of
Duff & Phelps Select Energy MLP Fund Inc., (a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: DSE)), and member of board
of directors of Sirius International Insurance Group Ltd. (a company
listed on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange (NASDAQ: SG)).
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EERSREEAERRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 79, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 30 September 2008
and he was appointed as a chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company in 2008. He was also
appointed as a member and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Company in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Professor Zhang
graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the Faculty of Engineering
Physics of the Tsinghua University in 1965. He was a visiting
scholar in the Brookhaven National Laboratory of USA and the
Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the vice director of the
Tsinghua University R&D department and the general manager of
Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation. During
the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions in
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation
in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang was
the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
With his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory
initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to
the companies he worked for. He has not only gained compliments
from the society at large, but has also won a series of honors.
In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the
“Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and
the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Professor Zhang is currently the Chief
Consultant of ZEAR K (b)) B EZEER AR A A (transliterated
as Ronghui Future (Beijing) Technology Development Co., Ltd.).
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EEREREBAEERE

Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 61, has been an independent non-executive
Director, a member of audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company since 28 March 2011. He
was also appointed as chairman of audit committee of the Company
with effect from 22 September 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Shanghai
Maritime University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius
College of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in
the field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the investment department and finance
department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998
to June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May 2004,
he was a General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been a director of Concord
Investment Holdings Limited since 2004.

Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 64, has been an independent
non-executive Director, a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company since
23 September 2011. Professor Chen graduated from HIEEF &K
£ (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a Bachelor
Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and a PhD
in Economics from HF#M A E (Jilin University). He is a qualified
PRC lawyer currently practising at #EZ K& #AIEFT (Liaoning
Tianhe Law Firm). Professor Chen has substantial management
and leadership experience serving in the PRC government. He
commenced his career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi
Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and
became the director (EE) of N EMLEEEH N ELZEE (Benxi
City Commission for Restructuring the Economic Systems) from
1995. He was the vice director general (Bl 1) of AVE 1 ¥ IM &K
BB SA1EZEE (Benxi Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation
Committee) from 1998 until 2001. From 2001 to 2009, Professor
Chen was the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at X &
BT KEEHER (Faculty of Management and Economics of Dalian
University of Technology). From 2010 to 2014, he was the dean at
KiEE T AEBENHLEIEEELEBERT (School of Public Administration
and Law of Dalian University of Technology). From 2010 to now,
Professor Chen has been the professor and the tutor for doctorate
students at KEET KB A RELEELBERT (School of Public
Administration and Law of Dalian University of Technology). He is
currently an independent non-executive director of ZE1& & 4% i% 17
BB AR (Weigiao Textile Company Limited) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 2698) and an independent director of & -F
EE£ERM AR A A (Zhangzidao Group Co. Ltd.) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 002069).
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman lIslands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 77 to 78.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$nil as at 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

Non-executive Directors
Liu Runtong
James Beeland Rogers Jr.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui and
Mr. Li Jianxing. All three directors are being eligible for re-election
and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The remaining Directors shall continue to hold
office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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X

EBRITESE
218 1R
James Beeland Rogers Jr.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

DirRecTORS” REPORT
EEEREH

ESRITHAHEN AL M5 - HEKRS
REHZHEBRAXE

RZE—NF+A=+—H EFFRAEAAR
BIITHBRHEERNRRKEEMEE ZE (F
ERBHFRBEKROIEXVES) 25 - AR
B REHP BEBREFEF MBS G EXV
HETRSDHBEMES ARG KBTI 2 #Ea
kB (BIEREBEZEHFNMBAEKRIBEKX
BEREEIRERECERZTAE) IR
BEAE N E G E3521(5 78 50 8% % I Fr it
ERfAZEZESAR  HIBIEGEM T
B %65 46E5.67TIK BN AR RA LB 2
ERmBAR T

(a) RELFERHBZEFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity shares held shareholding
ESHZ S i 8B BARRE 5L
Wang Jiawei Beneficial owner 2,102,255,935 27.13%
FTEE BEREBA
Lai Yuk Mui Beneficial owner 2,780,127 0.04%
RE1 EHEBA
Liu Runtong Beneficial owner 2,646,000 0.03%
218 1R BEREBA

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired
on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new share
option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21 June
2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which complies with
Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

(b) MEATHEAKRGZEE

AL EREE
ARABRZEZE—F+Z AT LtHAHEMN
2ERETE ([EERETEIHER
—E——F+ A+ NEEm-ARAH
BERZE——FAA-t+—BHEITZK
RBFRE ERMNTEGEMLE TR A
Fo3E 2 A EE R ERT B ([ B AR RERT
g1) -

21



DIRECTORS REPORT
EETHRE

The following table discloses the details of the share options TREBESERITHRAZREBEZE_Z
held by the Directors and chief executive to subscribe for —N\FE+ZA=+—RHIEFEMFEA
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December RERNRRIRG 2 BIRESE:
2018:
Number of share options
EREYE
Cancelled/ Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
Name of asat during during during 31 December price
Directors Date of grant 1 January 2018 the year the year the year 2018 Option period (HK$)
RoB-NE RZE-0\%
-B-8 +ZA=+-H fiER
EEHS RiHEH AT ERRHT R Ehid/ 5N HATE  BRERR (#&7)
Lai Yok Mui 13042010 3,186,158 - - - 3,185,158 13/104/2010-12/04/2020 0419
b5 “Z-ZERATZA “Z-ZERATZAZ-3-3EMATCA
Liu Runtong 1310412010 31,861,575 - - - 31861575 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0419
AER ZZ-ZEMAT=EA “Z-ZEMATZAZ-F-FEMATCA
ZhangBenzheng  13/04/2010 2,124,105 - - - 2124105 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0419
FARE ZZ-ZEMAT=H “E-S5MAT=HE-S-F4MATA
JamesBeeland  09/11/2016 20,000,000 - - - 20000000  09/11/2016:-08/11/2026 0.150
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland ZZ-R"E+-ANE B AET-ANBEZSZET-ANA
Rogers Jr.
James Besland  16/10/2015 20,000,000 = = - 20000000  16/10/2015-15/10/202 0238
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland ZE-RETATAA “E-A5tA+AHEZE-RETATEA
Rogers Jr.
JamesBeeland  22/09/2014 20,000,000 - - - 20000000  22/09/2014-21/09/2024 0518
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland —Z-REAAZTZR ZE-REAACTZRZZEC-REAR=T-A
Rogers Jr.
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Br B XX FEE N AR B S E AR B
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements RARAFEAMKERETLERNL
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits B BEESHIITRBHAEBEAR
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities N AR HE AR A B 88 2 B D sk &7
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body BE(PREESF ) MER TEEE 17
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor BRBRIEANEESa 2B T\
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18, UWTFREEEMNARERRRESFZ
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or R IR ARNFEITEEMZ SRR -

had exercised any such right during the year.
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(c)

Short positions in underlying shares of the Company

No short positions of directors and chief executives in the
underlying shares of the equity derivatives of the Company and
its associated corporations were recorded in the register or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

(b)

Long positions in shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (not being a
Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had not been notified
of any person (other than the Directors whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
Scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 December
2001 has expired on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a
new share option scheme approved by shareholders on its annual
general meeting held on 21 June 2012 which complies with Chapter
23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme
(i) Purpose of the scheme
The purpose of the scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.

(i) Participants of the scheme

Pursuant to the scheme, the Company may grant share
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether fulltime
or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) Directors (whether executive Directors,
non-executive Directors or independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (iii) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.
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(iif)

(v)

(v)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
schemes

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme
was 649,895,812 shares, representing 8.39% of the total
issued share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under any schemes of the Company
(or its subsidiary) if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted pursuant to the scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including the
Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the options
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue, save for those share options already
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH
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(Vi)

(vii)

(Vi)

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer,
and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2012 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or Board may at any time terminate
the operation of the New Share Option Scheme) and
in such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the Old Share Option Scheme and the New
Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in
full force and effect.
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(2) Details of share options granted by the Company (2) ZELGFREHBREZFHIE
On 13 April 2010, 22 September 2014, 16 October 2015 and RZZE—ZTFMA+=H ZF—0NF
9 November 2016, options to subscribe for 84,000,000 shares, hA-+-B —Z—RE+A+<H
30,000,000 shares, 20,000,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares RZZE—RF+—AhBHRIREER
of the Company respectively were granted to the Directors and ARA)ETEE & T 33 8884,000,000
certain employees of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, f% -~ 30,000,0000% + 20,000,000 &
details of the outstanding options were as follows: 20,000,000 A A B & 1 2 B PR AE - 1Y
—E-N\FF+ZA=ZF+—H EEXRITE
BREZFBOET:
Number of share options
BREYE
OQutstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at 31
1 January during during during December Exercise
Date of grant 2018 the year the year the year 2018  Option period price
(HKS)
RZB-0\% RZF-0\f
-fA-H EMESE/ T-A=t+-8
RHEH AT ERRLE ERfTE %% HATE BRENR fiE®
(B7)
13/04/2010 82,840,005 = = - 82,840,095  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
ZT-TEMmA+=A (Note 1) Note 1) —Z-TFMAT=HE-F-TEMA+ZA
(Mi31) (M)
22/09/2014 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  22/09/2014-21/09/2024 0.518
“Z-MEAAZTZA ZE-PEARZTZREZT-MEAAZT-A
16/10/2015 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  16/10/2015-15/10/2025 0.238
ZE-RETATAA “3-RETA+AAEE-RET+ATRA
09/11/2016 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  09/11/2016-08/11/2026 0.150
ZZ-"§+-ANA ZE-nEt-ANAEZEZNET-AAA
Note: B 5

(1) Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, 84,000,000 shares of share
options were granted by the Company on 13 April 2010 and were

adjusted on 15 June 2010.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
There was no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance,
save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

LITIGATION

Arbitration Application Filed by Shenzhen Sinofortune
Education Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd (“Sinofortune
Education”) (formerly known as First China Securities
Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd)

Concerning the Repayment of Refundable Earnest Money
According to the announcements of the Company dated 30 January
2015, 3 February 2015, 29 May 2015, 17 September 2015, 1
December 2015, 16 February 2016, 10 June 2016, 13 June 2017,
2015 and 2016 annual reports, Sinofortune Education filed an
arbitration application to South China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (“SCIA”) against Mr. Yang Shunhong
concerning the repayment of the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 together with the interest of RMB997,260 and a
penalty of RMB18,800,000 payable to Sinofortune Education.
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The final judgement of the arbitration application has been handed
down by SCIA on 3 June 2016 that (a) Mr. Yang Shunhong
shall repay the refundable earnest money of RMB20,000,000 to
Sinofortune Education with penalty at the rate of 24% per annum
accrued since 31 August 2015 until the date of repayment of the
refundable earnest money as damages to Sinofortune Education
within 15 days upon the date of final judgment, (b) Mr. Yang
Shunhong shall bear the responsibility over the legal costs of
RMB500,000 incurred by Sinofortune Education in the Arbitration
and the costs of Arbitration of RMB343,482 within 15 days upon the
date of final judgment, (c) the final judgment is final and be legally
binding.

As Sinofortune Education neither received the repayment of the
refundable earnest money of RMB20,000,000, penalty nor legal
costs from Mr. Yang Shunhong, our PRC legal adviser has applied
to the Intermediate People’s Court in Suining City, Sichuan Province,
China (the “Court”) on behalf of Sinofortune Education to include
Mr. Yang Shunhong in the list of restricted high consumption, the
list of dishonest persons and the list of restricted departures. On
6 June 2017, the PRC legal adviser of the Company received the
execution judgement from the Court in relation to the compulsory
execution application for the repayment of the refundable earnest
money. According to the execution judgement, the Court terminated
the compulsory execution of repayment of the refundable earnest
money from Mr. Yang Shunhong and the Court concluded that
Mr. Yang Shunhong owns no executable assets after he pledged his
shares of RE)E THEEIRAB R A A (transliterated as Mingin Quantum
New Energy Co. Ltd.) (“Mingin Quantum”) to Sinofortune Education
as collateral. As at the date of this report, all the issued share capital
of Mingin Quantum are pledged to Sinofortune Education. In this
respect, the Company has sought legal opinion from its PRC legal
adviser on the execution judgment.

On 27 March 2018, Sinofortune Education has applied to the court
for restoration for the compulsory execution application against
Mr. Yang Shunhong for the reinstatement of the case. At the date
of this report, the court has not given written notice on this matter.
Sinofortune Education is still communicating with the court, in an
effort to resume the enforcement of this case.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchase and sales for the attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 174,261,134
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 198,116,788
Sales

— the largest customer 193,464,440
— five largest customers in aggregate 337,623,700

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On 28 June 2018, our Group retrieved 200,000,000 consideration
shares held in escrow arrangement and delivered the certificates to
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited
for cancellation. For more details, please refer to our announcement
dated 28 June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is
set out on pages 33 to 44 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuk Mui whose
biographical details are set out on page 14 of this annual report.
Ms. Woo Man Yi is the company secretary of the Company.
She is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, United Kingdom.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profits with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Company’s financial
results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

- the Articles of Association of the Company;

= the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

- the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

- any other factors that have material impact on the Company.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by CHENG & CHENG
LIMITED. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for reappointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code,
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors and two
non-executive Directors, which represent more than half of the
Board, the interests of the shareholders of the Company will be
adequately and fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The directors have complied with the Company’s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and five non-executive directors
(including three independent non-executive directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent non-
executive directors are independent. The present board is composed
of more than one-third of independent non-executive directors.

The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

James Beeland Rogers Jr. (Non-executive Director)
Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to
18 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly,
interim and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the
Group’s business to ensure that these risks are within manageable
limits. It is also mandated to approve any substantial investment,
acquisition or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters
that are delegated to the management include the execution of
business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the
preparation of quarterly, interim and annual reports for the Board’s
approval.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEERRE
Members 5= ] ERRITERRE
Wang Jiawei FEE 4/4
Lai Yuk Mui R 11 4/4
Liu Runtong 2 R 4/4
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 3/4
Zhang Benzheng sRANIE 4/4
Li Jianxing FRIT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen BR 18 X 4/4
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There were three general meetings during the year. The attendance FAHXBITZARE AT - EFERREKRE
of Directors at the general meetings was as follows: ZHEBERNT
Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service
HEERRE
Members =] ERERITERRE
Wang Jiawei FRE 2/3
Lai Yuk Mui REHG 3/3
Liu Runtong 2E R 0/3
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 2/3
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 0/3
Li Jianxing FREIT 2/3
Chen Shu Wen PR a1 X 0/3
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL EEEIIREEER

DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui and Mr. Liu
Runtong have attended training courses conducted by professional
parties. The attended directors have provided the Company
with their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate
Governance Code. All Directors were provided with reading materials
on relevant rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration
Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive
directors.
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As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of five directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms.
Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three
out of the five directors are independent non-executive directors.
Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive
director, is the chairman of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and
senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive schemes
for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses.

The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2018 by band is set out as follows:
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Nil to 1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 2
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and HEZE @R FAYRIT— A eH HKE

the attendance of its members was as follows:

ZHEREERRNT

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HESHRE
Members 5= ERERITERRE
Zhang Benzheng SRANIE 1/1
Wang Jiawei FRE 1/1
Lai Yuk Mui REHy 1/1
Li Jianxing TRET 1/1
Chen Shu Wen FeR 51 32 1/1
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration. There was no Director’s service contract requiring
approval during the year.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at year
end date, Nomination Committee consisted of four Directors,
Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing
and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three out of the four Directors
are independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang
Benzheng, being an independent nonexecutive Director, is the
chairman of the committee. Thus the present Committee consists
a majority of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee’s role and function includes, but is not limited to,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes; draw up, review and update, as appropriate,
the diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, review and update the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made; identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships based on the board diversity policy; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HESHRRE
Members =] ERERITERRE
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 1/1
Wang Jiawei FRE 1/1
Li Jianxing TR 1/1
Chen Shu Wen PR A5 2 1/1
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On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee reviews
the suggested candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work includes
reviewing the structure, size, independence, composition and
diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the Board and made recommendations
thereon. Drawing up, reviewing and updating, as appropriate, the
diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewing and updating the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made.

Board diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving sustainable and balanced development.

Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s nomination
policy and will take into account the board diversity policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. Having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board
without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
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The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the
implementation of the board diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions to the board
diversity policy that may be required and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

A copy of the board diversity policy has been published on the
Company’s website for public information. Currently, the Board
comprises seven members and the Board composition and diversity
are as follows:

Capacity: Executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors

Gender: Male and female

Age: 32-79

Nationality: Chinese and American

Length of service: 4-10 years

Board expertise: Finance, law, accounting, investment,

engineering, economic, insurance, investment
consulting analysis, academic

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2018, the Audit
Committee consisted of three independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor Zhang Benzheng and Mr. Chen Shu Wen.
Mr. Li Jianxing, being an independent non-executive director, is the
chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and was of the opinion that
such statements had complied with applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEERE
Members pA=] EREITERRE
Li Jianxing TR 5/5
Zhang Benzheng sRANIE 5/5
Chen Shu Wen FeR #5832 4/5

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 68 to
76.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited
by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that CHENG & CHENG LIMITED be reappointed as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED in respect of audit services
and non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$510,000 and
HK$70,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires management to establish and maintain sound and
effective system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The Board should conduct a
review of risk management and internal control system of the Group
at least annually, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls.

Risk management

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach
to identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the
first line of defense, business units are responsible for identifying,
assessing and monitoring risk associated with each business or
deal. The management, as the second line of defense, defines rule
sets and models, provides technical support, develops new system
and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are within
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As
the final line of defense, the internal control consultants assist the
Audit Committee to review the first and second lines of defenses.
With the assistance of the internal control consultants, a risk
register with risk rating and risk owners were compiled by taking
into account for continuous risk assessment purpose. Risk owners
are required to take mitigating actions to address the identified risks
and such actions are integrated in the day-to-day activities and
their effectiveness is closely monitored. During the year, the risk
register has been tabled for discussion and assessed the ratings
by key personnel and management, by considering the likelihood
and impact of each identified risk. A written risk assessment report
with the identified key risks, evaluation of related risk and relevant
mitigating actions have been reported to the Audit Committee and
reviewed by the Board. The written report facilitates the Board in
considering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks,
the Group’s ability in responding to changes in its business and the
external environment, as well as management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems.
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Risk management and internal controls

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key
risk exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and shareholders’ interests. The Group is committed to the
identification, evaluating and management of risks associated with
its business activities through ongoing assessment of a risk register,
by considering the likelihood and impact of each identified risk.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board has
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, by considering written reports prepared by
internal control consultants to the Audit Committee.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
which are considered effective and adequate.

Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the
Company or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors have
responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars
to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.
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EEXEERME

The Company has put in place on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to
place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time
for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Woo Man Yi. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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THE SCOPE, MATERIALITY AND REPORTING PERIOD
OF THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance report (the
“ESG Report”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). The ESG Report is issued
in accordance with Appendix 20 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Guidelines”) and its
“‘comply or explain” provisions of the GEM Listing Rules issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the overall
performance, risks, strategies, measures and commitment in four
areas, namely, quality of workplace environment, environmental
protection, operating practice and community involvement of the
Group’s business operations in Hong Kong and the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was principally engaged in
the: (i) provision of the precious metals spot trading and brokerage
services in the PRC, (ii) provision of securities and futures contracts
trading services in Hong Kong, (iii) trading and principal investments
in the PRC and Hong Kong, (iv) trading of electronic student cards
and school safety products and provision of electronic student card
platform in the PRC, (v) provision of stock information and research
services through the internet network in the PRC, and (vi) sales of
motor vehicles and provision of agency services in the PRC. Such
businesses were mainly operated in Mainland China. Apart from
certain aforementioned operations, the principal office in Hong Kong
was also responsible for the compliance with relevant rules and
regulations of the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”).

Upon materiality assessment, the ESG Report shall include
operations of the Group’s major subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong office. All information and data disclosed herein are from
internal documents and statistics.

For information about the Group’s corporate governance structure

and other relevant information, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 33 to 44 of the annual report.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees of the Group have participated
in preparing this report, assisted the Group in reviewing its
environmental, social, operating practices and governance issues
and assessed the importance of these issues to the businesses and
stakeholders of the Group, thereby making relevant disclosures.

MISSION AND VISION

We are an integrated financial service, student safety products and
electronic student card platform provider and parallel imported motor
vehicles supplier in Hong Kong and the PRC, striving to create a
comprehensive platform of financing, brokerage, financial information
and wealth planning services; whilst carrying out the exploration of
the parallel imported motor vehicles market in PRC so as to broaden
the source of income of the Group.

With the lack of investment information products and far-from-
sophisticated market in the PRC, medium and small investors
have voracious demand for such products. We are dedicated to
minimizing information asymmetry and promoting investor education
through provision of useful information service; improving market
environment with introduction of market competition in terms of
products and services, with a view to safeguarding medium and
small investors’ interests and becoming a quality integrated financial
service provider.

As a responsible enterprise, we also highly value communication with
investors and shareholders, clients, employees, business partners
and suppliers, community and other stakeholders while proactively
developing its business and improving its profitability for the purpose
of balancing their respective interests and fostering a sustainable
development.
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COMMITMENTS TO STAKEHOLDERS

We review the communication strategies of the Group from time
to time with the hope of communicating with stakeholders in an
effective, proactive and timely manner. With respect to different
stakeholders, we are committed to:

Investors and o
shareholders:

Employees: o

Clients: °

EREEEEERAF |

Complying with relevant regulations (e.g.
GEM Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance etc.)

Disclosing latest information in due course

Reinforcing corporate governance and risk
control

Focusing on improving operating efficiency
and financial growth, creating stable
returns

Providing safe workplace

Respecting all employees and ensuring fair
treatment

Supporting career growth and providing
internal training

Assuming product and service responsibility

Identifying client needs and improving
product and service quality

Respecting clients’ privacy and protecting
their interests
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RE - HERERHRSE

Business partners e
and suppliers:

Maintaining good internal control and
eradicating corruption

° Forging partnership to grow together

e  Setting up stringent procurement system to
contain risk
Community: e  Giving back to society and promoting self-
reliance

o Raising awareness of environmental
protection and helping the needy, nurturing
virtue and values

° Devoting to developing new products for
convenience of society

STAKEHOLDER OPINION

We welcome opinions on the Group’s approaches on the
environmental, social, and governance aspects upon reading the
ESG Report. Please share with us via:

Address: 16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Phone:  (852) 2297 9900

Fax: (852) 2865 3888

Email: info@sinofortune.hk

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is aware of the increasing emphasis of the public
and investors on environmental protection and corporate social
responsibility. Therefore, we have been active in reviewing our
environmental policies and minimize the pollution and environmental
damage arising from our daily business operation by striving to
improve the environmental management in the business process
through a series of measures and complying with the current
applicable regulations and standards concerning environmental
protection.
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During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of non-
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations relating
to exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges of
pollutants into water and land and generation of hazardous or non-
hazardous wastes that have a significant impact on the Group. The
Group also confirmed that, during the Reporting Period, it was not
subject to any penalty imposed by relevant government authorities
arising from non-compliance with the aforesaid laws and regulations
in the course of our operation.

EMISSIONS
The Group was primarily engaged in financial services where no
industrial production process was involved during the Reporting
Period; therefore, no direct emission of exhaust and greenhouse
gas, discharges of pollutants into water and land and generation
of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste were recorded.
The Group complies with relevant regulations promulgated by the
government and applicable to the Group, including the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance ( Z= 5,75 2 & #6{7] ) , Waste Disposal Ordinance
(BEMEE E &) , the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FF#E AR £ MEIIRF(R#EEX), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution
From Environmental Noise (% A R MBEIIRIFRE S LHRE) ,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of Environment
Impacts (R E AR EMBARFFEFE)E), Regulations of
Environment Protection in Construction Projects ( i %18 B IR {5 (R &
EIRIEM) , Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes (A% AR
AN B E B RE )5 IR 2 G087 ) and Decision of the State Council
on Several Issues Concerning Environmental Protection ( B 75B5% 8
RIRBRES TRENRE), as well as the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (2= 7.5 2 & Hil &5 .

We incorporate environmental consideration in our daily office
operation, including more effective use of resources to reduce waste.
We hope that our internal environmental protection policies and
measures can reduce the negative impact of our business operation
on environment and indirect carbon emission.
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By HEREABE

Air Pollution - Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse Gas Emissions as
well as dust pollution

In the course of daily operations, save for the greenhouse gas
emissions generated when vehicles consume fuel, the Group does
not generate any other direct greenhouse gas and exhaust gas
emissions arising from the operation of machinery, or dust pollution.
The Group’s indirect emission of greenhouse gas was mainly from
the consumption of electricity power and fuel of offices and vehicles.
The Group considers that such greenhouse gas emission level is
normal and reasonable.

Despite this, we are still working to reduce our carbon emissions
by keeping record of consumption level for each business, closely
monitoring emission level and regularly maintaining and repairing
machinery, equipment and vehicles, in order to prevent them from
generating excess emissions of exhaust caused by broken parts and
other reasons, and to facilitate the reduction of fuel consumption.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste Treatment

The major wastes we generate in the course of our operation include
paper, plastic, general office electronic equipment and kitchen
refuse. In addition to requiring our employees to properly treat such
office wastes and encouraging them to sort such office wastes
before treatment, we also arrange staff to uniformly treat them.
Meanwhile, we understand that electronic solid waste often contains
lead, mercury, cadmium, chromium and other chemicals and metals
and inevitably releases hazardous chemicals when they are treated.
Therefore, we reduce the generation of electronic solid waste by
way of donating computer and other used electronic supplies to
charitable bodies.

Wastewater Discharge

The Group only generates the general domestic wastewater instead
of any industrial wastewater in the course of operation. The water
supply and discharge of the Group are solely controlled by the
office building management office and it is not feasible for such
management office to provide water withdrawal and discharge data
or sub-meter for the Group. Therefore, we are not able to make
statistics of water supply and discharge of the Group. However, we
believe that domestic wastewater discharge level of the Group is
normal and reasonable.
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Summary of Emissions Data:

Type of emission

HRmES

RE - #HERERESE

M mEBRE:
Unit Quantity
ES fif HE

Carbon dioxide
— &bk
— Scope 1 - Direct emissions
—HEN-EEEN
— fuel consumption
— FUREFE
— Scope 2 - Indirect emissions
—FE2— BN

— electricity consumption

—-EBNERE
— Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions
—FE3— AR

— paper consumption

—MRIRIBRE

Exhaust
— Nitrogen oxide
—RE !
— Sulfur dioxide
=
— Suspended particles
— BN T

EELPEMERAT | —B—N\FER

25.8
tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent
W& bikE = 43.4
18.0
8,446.3
kg
Fi 160.7
621.9

"
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By HEREABE

Disclosures of the key performance indicators (KPI) of the Group in
Aspect A1 of the ESG Guidelines are summarised as follows:

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and emissions data
(if applicable) are set forth in the above data
highlights.

KPI A1.2 Emissions of greenhouse gases in total are set

forth in the above paragraphs. Greenhouse
gases (including sulphur dioxide and carbon
monoxide) generated in the course of daily
operations did not exceed the highest levels
permitted by relevant laws.

KPI' A1.3 No hazardous waste is generated in the course
of daily operations.

KPI A1.4 The staff or company engaged by the building
management office is generally responsible
for collecting the wastes generated by the
Group and it is not feasible for such building
management office to separately provide data
collected to individual occupant. Therefore,
there is no applicable data for non-hazardous
wastes in total.

KPI A1.5 Measures to reduce emissions and results
achieved can be referred to the above
paragraphs.

KPI A1.6 Methods of treating waste and measures to

reduce emissions are set forth in the paragraph
above headed Hazardous and Non-hazardous
Waste Treatment.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Company and its various subsidiaries strictly comply with
relevant local laws and regulations on environmental protection,
set internal guidelines and measures for this purpose, or work
in line with the rules of the office buildings, in order to achieve
energy saving and consumption reduction, minimizing negative
environmental impact of our business operation.

AR BB BESGIE I FAIEE WS ER
BRZERE BfdwT:

B B 45 A FE 1R AT A

RAR B IR IZAT.2

B B 45 N FE 1R A1.3

RASR B R IZAT .4
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B B2 4B AR 1RA1.6
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RE HERERBHRSE

GREEN OFFICE CULTURE BREWAIL

We review the operation of our business regularly. For instance, we T ffIE BT 2 ELBIE AT B RN
take necessary improvement measures for effective use of water, ZEEMUAFAIIOFAK B HESHAE
electricity, paper and other office resources, reduce or stop the BR BALEZEILFERREE RS RIR
use of materials that cause wastage of environment. During the 3R2ZAMm REHM AEBREKBRESD
Reporting Period, the following measures are implemented in the M — BB A FNE

course of our businesses:

- Use electronic documents and recycle paper to cut paper — ZFAETXHF  UWREREHEKRER:
consumption; B #R SR OB FE

- Use telephone conference system to reduce business trips; — MASHEEERS RO LERE:

- Lower electricity consumption by making use of natural light — HXFEZHAEBERENI &LED& Lt
and LED lighting system which has energy saving efficiency; RENBBERG ROHAEE

- Limit the use of air-conditioning to lower electricity — BHEZHABHFR HIOESE:

consumption;

e

-  Remind employees to cherish the use of water — REEEBIPBERK

We review the effectiveness of these measures from time to time 91 BF 4% &7 bt 55 58 it B9 B 5 7 (B JlE 2048
and make adjustments according to our operation to improve the &M A AR LEZRFERE HWER

efficiency of the use of resources. BB -

Summary of resource consumption data: BRBFESERE:

Type of resource consumption Unit Quantity
&R HAEES ES i BE
Electricity kilowatt hours

BN TFEB 59,252
Gasoline — vehicle litre

R — R E N 10,931
Paper kg

oK T 18,025

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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BRiE

HEREREE

Disclosures of the KPIs of the Group in Aspect A2 of the ESG
Guidelines are summarised as follows:

KPI'A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type and intensity has been set forth in the
summary of data above.

Most of the offices of the Group are solely
controlled by the office building management
office in terms of water supply and discharge,
it is not feasible for such management office to
provide water withdrawal and discharge data
or sub-meter for individual occupant, and the
Group considers that solely provision of the
data on its individual office is not the indicator of
actual use of water. Therefore, data relating to
total use of water is not included in this report.

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
has been set forth in the paragraph above.

The Group does not have any issues in
acquiring appropriate water sources that is
fit for purpose, and believes that the water
consumption is at a reasonable level. Water
efficiency initiatives have been set forth in the
paragraph above.

The use of packaging materials is not involved
in the businesses of the Group.

LA BB BESGIE S| A2 E M B S 4 X
BRZERE BfdwT:

B B 45 A FE 1R A2.1
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AR A UIEIRA2.3
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Despite that the Group’s major operations has no significant impact
on the environment and natural resources, we, as a responsible
corporate, are committed to minimizing such negative impact, and
assess environmental risks induced by our operations, in order to
formulate relevant measures.

Enhancing Environmental Awareness

We are deeply convinced that save for strictly requiring our
employees to carry out internal environmental measures formulated
by the Company, we also need to proactively improve the
environmental awareness of our employees so as to effectively
improve our environmental protection level. Therefore, the Group
reviews its own code of conduct, issues environmental guidelines
and notices to its employees and shares green office and other
relevant environmental information from time to time. We will also
consider participating in more feasible and appropriate activities with
a view to assisting our employees in enhancing their recognition over
environment and natural resources.

Disclosures of the KPIs of the Group in Aspect A3 of the ESG
Guidelines are summarised as follows:

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them have been set forth in the paragraph
above.

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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RE - HERERHRSE

SOCIETY
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
EMPLOYMENT

Summary of employment data:

Workforce statistic

& 8 &5t

#HE
1 17 & 55 THE Bl
&
BREBERE:

Unit
ES i

Quantity
HE

Total number of employees
BTHE
By gender
=R
- Male
el
- Female

-

By employment type

RERLE
— Full-time long-term employees
—2BERHET
— Full-time contracted employees
—ZREAENET
— Temporary/Part-time employees
—RRRBET

By rank
R AR
— Administrative and staff
—1THERBABR
— Other staff
—HMET

By age

RER
— Below 30
=30 AT
- 30-39
—30-395%
- 40-49
—40-495%
- 50-59
—50-595%
— 60 and above

—60BR 3 A

person

A

percentage
Bt

percentage

ANk

percentage
Btk

percentage
Btk
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38.5%

61.5%

50.6%

45.0%

4.4%

65.9%

34.1%

25.2%

31.9%

20.9%

11.0%

11.0%
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Workforce statistic Unit Quantity
& 8 4 5t B BE
Average service year
39 AR 7% 5 HA
— Administrative staff (male) year
—1THEEAE (BE) & 5.5
— Administrative staff (female)
—THREEAE (&) 6.7
— Other staff (male)
—HMBEI (5MH%) 2.6
— Other staff (female)
—HMmETI (xM) 6.0
New-recruited employees
FEET
— Male person
-5 A 2
— Female
-t 2
Employee turnover
BImE
— Male person
-5 A 5
- Female
-zt 0

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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RE - HERERHRSE

Employment, Remuneration and Benefit Policies

The Group prepared its internal employment policies and rules
pursuant to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other existing laws
and regulations. We inform our employees about the Group’s
employment policies and other information through our employee
manuals, other internal documents and communication methods. We
want to make sure that our employees understand their rights and
responsibilities, safeguarding the rights of both parties.

The Group determines employees’ salary, benefits and promotion
based upon their job nature, experience, work performance, financial
results and market condition. The Group guarantees fair treatment
of employees and prevent discrimination based on gender, race,
religion, age, marital and family status, disability or any other
grounds.

In accordance with the above-mentioned legal requirements and
industry standards, we offer employees basic salary, benefits and
rights (e.g. MPF, social insurance, directors and officers liability
insurance, medical benefits, legal and extra annual leave, sick leave,
allowance and severance pay).

Equal Opportunity and Diversity Policy

We value talents, consider employees as our most valuable and core
assets, uphold the concept of fairness, impartiality and openness
in employment, recruit good talents to provide sufficient talent
reserves for our Group’s various businesses, so as to strengthen the
competitiveness of our businesses.

We prohibit any discrimination of nationality, age, gender, religion,
disability, marital status and others, adopt calibre, performance and
other qualities as the criteria for recruitment, promotion and salary
increment. We encourage internal staff self-recommendation or
recruitment of good talents from the society. By a fair and merit-
based standardised recruitment principle, good talents suitable for
the job positions are selected, thereby providing continuous impetus
for corporate long-term development.
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Dismissal Policy

The Group complies with the guidance under relevant employment
ordinance. If terminating the employment of staff is required, we
will follow the standard procedures to handle and make reasonable
compensation to the dismissed employees. The relevant provisions
on termination of the employment are set out in the employment
contracts of every staff.

Employee Care

We attach importance to employees care and communication.
Various communication channels between the management and
employees have been established to take their communication to
the next level and improve operational efficiency. We also organize
activities (e.g. staff banquet) to improve the communication among
employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not been involved in
any incident of non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employment that had a significant impact on the Group.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Improve Safety Awareness

The Group is devoted to protecting our employees from safety
risks by providing an appropriate workplace. References to industry
practices and regulations were made to formulate work safety
guidelines which have been strictly enforced.

Employees are constantly reminded of the importance of work
health and safety. The Group provides relevant information on
crime prevention and emergency response and coordinates with
other organizations or property management company of the office
building to join regular fire drills.

Physical and Mental Health

We care for our employees, especially for their mental health. We
have been encouraging our employees to achieve work-life balance.
We hold different activities to promote esprit de corps, relieve stress
and create a harmonious working environment. Meanwhile, we
provide our employees with information about health and safety,
aiming to improve their health consciousness.

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant incident
of safety and work-related injury. There was no non-compliance
with health and safety laws and regulations that had an impact on
the Group relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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By HEREABE

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Human resources are key assets to corporate success. We believe
that the support from employees is the foundation of the Group’s
core value and competitiveness. Therefore, we offer employees
comprehensive on-the-job training and platforms for them to explore
their potential and achieve success.

The Group provides professional trainings to improve quality,
qualification and skills of the employees for their growth. We
encourage our staff to discuss with management and supervisors
on their promotion and career objectives, as well as join business-
related training programs.

During the Reporting Period, professional, training and development
programs arranged by the Group included but not limited to:

knowledge of financial service

S knowledge of information technology

- trainings on customer service/product knowledge
- regulatory seminars/guidance

S training on anti-corruption

During the Reporting Period, the total time of the training arranged
and funded by the Group and participated by the Group’s staff
amounted to 153 hours.

The Group also encourages the Directors and senior management
to participate in the training on the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and corporate
governance, so as to continuously improve the internal control and
corporate governance level of the Company, and we also encourage
accounting and company secretarial staff to conduct periodic
updates on relevant professional knowledge.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group’s internal rules and labour system are made in strict
adherence to the Employment Ordinance and the Regulation
on Labour Security Supervision, the Labour law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China and Labour Standards Law of the State Council of
the People’s Republic of China and international standards. All
recruitment process and promotion activities are closely monitored
under the Group’s human resources management scheme to prevent
child labour, forced labour, or any discrimination by race, religion,
age or disability. The Group will conduct investigations, punishment
or dismissal of relevant employees immediately when any non-
compliance is being discovered. If necessary, the Group will further
improve the labour mechanism against illegal behaviors.

During the Reporting Period, there was no child or forced labour in
the Group’s operations, nor any discriminating incidents involving
race, religion, age or disability.

OPERATING PRACTICES

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Procurement Policy

The Group is principally engaged in finance-related business.
By business nature and needs, the Company did not hire major
suppliers for provision of products, raw materials and services during
the Reporting Period, nor did it take part in any negotiation between
its corporate or institutional clients and their suppliers. Generally,
we did not enter into any long-term or bulk purchase agreements
for stationery, paper, computers and other office stationery and
equipment.

One of our subsidiaries purchases motherboards, modules, display
modules, batteries, cases and other products from its suppliers.
The suppliers are mainly from Chongging, Chengdu, Shenzhen,
Dongguan and other places.

Code of Conduct

We promote fair and open competition, aiming to develop long-term
relationship based on mutual trust. Our suppliers are required to
work in a responsible manner, and comply with all laws, international
treaties and contractual responsibilities. Therefore, the Company
keeps a close eye on procurement made by our staff and forbid
any practices that are against business ethics. The Company will
closely communicate with its subsidiaries and urge them to handle
relationship with suppliers and business partners in avoidance of
transfer of interests or exploitation of suppliers.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

RE - HERERHRSE

ZTEA

AEEERET (BEBIKROD ARPEAR
HKMBEBEBRE (SBREERGH) (P
EARKMBEEEE) (FEARKMBE S
BARNE) RABBHEEER) A2 ERKLH
THEE - HIRT AT RIFESI RS THIE A
BEREFLENGHOREAEEANER
EEGIERREE UAHBMEETINRE
B REER FH FiRIERSEREY
ANERITR BERRTMAERTR AKE
SHRFLALT BEoMREEWE T -MA
FE AEEEHUERTREFI=ESH
THH -

R HAR AR AR TS T 75
WS RN R BRSERE
o

EEEN

fresgEE

RIBE

PRELSREBEEME ERNEHBEER
FE FAUARARGEYNEREAREATE
HEEARMEHRER RMBERSE  THR
BERZHECERBEBTP EEHERNT
Be—HRME RMERBEXE AR B
EMAEXERR BERFREIMHEERR
ARSI KRERBEALD-

BAMER —RFRASREHERREE
RBRE BRER B IREER-Z
EHEBIEXRAEE KH RIINR=E
i o

TBFA

BAREAFARABRTE EEEREMREE
MATiEZ TEREBBE RFNHEEEA
BEEHITE ETHAEN BRANEE
MELT-HiL WPSERBETARZRER
B UTERAEBIMEEMERBDEXERNT
e R RMAZNETAREE BRET
ARENMLEEEHERREERHENEE
RSB R HEEENTTR

61



ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT

By HEREABE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Premium products and services can help build a strong corporate
reputation. We are dedicated to maintaining high level service and
product quality through internal control. Our products and services
include:

1. Securities brokerage and margin lending;
2. Stock information and research analysis;
3. Corporate finance solutions;

4. Asset management;

5. School safety products and electronic student cards and
provision of electronic student cards platform;

6. Sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services.

During the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from our customers related to the quality issues of the Group’s
products.

Communication with Customers

We strive to provide customers with competitive products and
services. We stress the importance of clients’ needs and collect their
opinions through exclusive account executives, both of which are the
foundation for the continuous improvement of our businesses.

Privacy Policies

Given its business nature, the Group handles a huge amount of
personal data or corporate information. The Group attaches high
importance to safeguarding clients’ interests and privacy, with
relevant guidelines and handbook prepared to regulate employees’
handling of personal data of clients. We sporadically arrange training
to raise the awareness of privacy protection. The Group will maintain
and review all client communication channels to obtain client
feedback, handle complaints timely and conduct inspection so as to
improve client service system.
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Publicity and Labels

In terms of the promotion of our products and services, we will
strictly comply with Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Interim Measures for the Administration of Internet Advertising
and other applicable laws and regulations on advertising and labels.
Our publicity should be an accurate reflection of the quality and
effectiveness of the Group’s products and services. We want to help
clients understand what to expect through our publicity and labels.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impacts on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to our products and services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION
The Group strictly complies with applicable anti-corruption laws and
moral standards.

The Group is determined to eliminate any corruption. The Board
adopts a zero-tolerance policy regarding corruption and fraud.
Such standard has been outlined in our operation and employment
policies. The Group proactively maintains a good corporate
governance and risk control to protect interests of stakeholders.

Employees are advised to comply with the anti-corruption and
antifraud guidelines of the ICAC; whilst relevant training and
information is regularly provided to raise their awareness. We urge
employees to maintain high standard of professional conduct and
strict follow the laws of Hong Kong and the PRC.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption awareness
and encourages them to report any corruption or fraud. We promptly
conduct inspection and take necessary measures while protecting
the identity of the whistleblower. During the Reporting Period, we
had not identified any non-compliance in relation to corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, which had a
significant impact on the Group.
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RE - HERERHRSE

COMMUNITY
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to becoming a responsible corporate
citizen. We offer appropriate resources to people in need in the
community. We hope that our employees will make a contribution to
communities through various activities and spread their love.

Apart from the above-mentioned activities, the Group will help
different institutions by donations. The Group will try to cooperate
with more institutions and give back to society.

CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF

#E

HERSE
AEEBNRRABEENEELR AiLR
NERBEMALRHAEER RFIHEE
BEEEY BETIHS REEER M
THEINHEERSR-

B EREBSN AEEFAERE AR S
FREE-AEER AR RETRAARA
- BRI -

FEBMAXSIMARAE (R -HER

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas

RIS

Content
kS

ERWMEES Rl

Section of the ESG Report
AESGHR & = ff

A. Environment
IRIR

A1 Emissions
HeR

General Disclosure

—RWE

A2 Use of Resources
EiRER

General Disclosure

— AR I BR

A3 The Environment

and Natural
Resources
RIERXAER

General Disclosure

— R R

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to exhaust and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges of pollutants
into water and land and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

BFRERMBEREHEN  AKRIHHNES - BER
BEEREVNELESNBRIETHETATERR
ENEBERRROIINER -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials

BERERER(B2EER K REAMRME) & BUR

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

BAEZETAHRREERAEREKRERT ENEE

Environmental Protection —
1. Emissions

RE—1.5HY

Environmental Protection —
2. Use of Resources

RE—2.8REMR

Environmental Protection —
3. The Environment and Natural
Resources

RER-BERERRXAER
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Subject Areas Content Section of the ESG Report
FEHEIE A A ESGiR & &
B. Social

HEHEHE

Employment and
Labour Practices

EBRETEH
B1 Employment
1= 1%

General Disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— AR I 5E

BRHM R E BERES TERE RY - 5%
g il RIBEUREMETE RENRE: &
SHETABEAZENHBEIZRRANER-

B2 Health and Safety
EERERZ
General Disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

—RIE

AMRHERTARARRBELREBRENSEY
B RSB A EALERMAR R I
B R

B3 Development and
Training
R R EE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

skills for discharging duties at work and description of

— M H R training activities.

ERRTEERIT TERE A M HE R e ) BUR Kt

MIFFEE o

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

Employment and Labour
Practices — 1. Employment

BEESTER-1.ER

Employment and Labour
Practices — 2. Health and
Safety

BREMSTER 2REELE

Employment and Labour
Practices — 3. Development and
Training

e K8 THER 3.3 R MIF
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Subject Areas Content Section of the ESG Report
TEHIS RE= AESGHR &5 Z i

B4 Labour Standards

ETHEA
General Disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with Employment and Labour
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Practices — 4. Labour
— M H R impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and Standards

forced labour.

ERRBIEH-4B5TEE
FAMEEISRBISTHER: RETHBETARE
A ENHBERRATIMER -

Operating Practices

2EED
B5 Supply Chain
Management
HrEsEIE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of Operating Practices — Supply
the supply chain. Chain Management
—MRIXEE
EIRHERNRE g R R BR LEBD —fEEER
B6 Product
Responsibility
EmREE
General Disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with Operating Practices — Product
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Responsibility
— R impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,

advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating 2:E1&%|—EmE T
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BRMREHRERNRBNEERELZE BS FHIL
REENARBRIDENEE  RETHRTABEAY
%W?FEE@%@&%EW‘JW%M

66 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



Subject Areas

RIS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBHRSE

Content

K

Section of the ESG Report
A ESGiR & &

B7 Anti-corruption
R&S

General Disclosure

—RWE

Community

iz

B8 Community
Investment
HEHRE

General Disclosure

—RWE

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

BRGLHE $R KFERAREORR: RETH
BUOANBERFENRBERRRPNES -

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

FRANHESBRTHREEMELEFTEMBRLE
BEBEZBHENENEEK-

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

Operating Practices — Anti-
corruption

LEBP-RESD

Community — Community
Investment

HE-HRREE
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmom g F M OF OB A N A

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 77 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

RERESERRATZERE
(RAESHESEMALZ HERLAF)
IRERGEEMBRRIELERS

BER
AZBEEEZINHRFI7TEEF27THER
TREEBERARALEMBEAR ([E£E])
ZEAMBHRR UEFAMBRREER
TE- NFFT A=+ -HZESHBNRN
BREHEZALFEZHEREREME
HRARE GEREZEHHEREGEARSE
MER UREEMBHRROME BREEE
B HRBE-

EERR EEMBHRRCREBT B ST
~g ([BEGFMAE]) BMNEBMEER
SRR ([BAEMBHREERN ) EEMI it
Rk EEER-_FT-NF+-_A=+—H
MEEM BN AREBEZA LFENER
EMBREANGARERE YCEREE
RAMGPINBEER RZ AREL -

BEROEGR
EERBEEBEAMASRMNELERE
A ([BAEZEA])ETEZ ERFTER
VETEESNREAN [ZBENHE
A MBRRARENEME] —HE—F
Mt - RIFEFEGSTMASH [EXSEE
Al (Ts7R1)) - BEFBYR E5E- Y
EBETIETEMERAEE -BFMHE B
FHESHNEZEREEREREEHRES
MEZERREEER-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B/ I B R

FREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RIEEEZEMNEXHE BRERETEAES
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated %T?E/‘Zliﬁﬁ MGG BERERPEREENS
financial statements of the current period. These matters were B -ZEFBEDERMEREEEATER
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial X®REREESEHETEE mMIAemtEE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we IHE®EZEXRE R -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition
(see note 5 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Key Audit Matter
FAREZEE

W 208 £ 22
(RERA P RMKRMIEES)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBEZPHEESE

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter
because of its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and is one of key performance
indicators of the Group. Accordingly, there may be
risks of material misstatements related to revenue
recognition.

WHBRAHGEMBRRENERNUBELE B &
SENBERERRER, — WHERS - HHEREEZSE
HeoEL ARt FEABRGEERNEANRER AR

i@ o
2

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included the following:

BEEARREERNERZRFERENT

= Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls in relating to revenue
recognition;

- THREAEEBERSERANERASIENNRT B
b S B R UM

= Inspecting sales agreements, on sample basis,
to identify terms and conditions which may affect
revenue recognition and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies;

— BRWEREEREHEHHRABRI TR ERS ﬁEE”E’J
R B AR ARG EEENKRSERBR

- Performing analytical review on revenue and gross
margin by motor vehicle products categories to
identify significant or unusual fluctuation on revenue;

- HERAEERENESNURRENXETONE
BE - LA Bl a5 O K IE 3 = H R &

- Testing on a sample basis, the supporting
documentation and the contractual terms of sales
transactions;

- REBREEREHEXZINERAXMERE HER
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Revenue recognition
(see note 5 of the consolidated financial statements)
(continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FAREZEE

W 208 £ 52
(RERA P MKRMEES)
(&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHERS X

Assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the reporting date
had been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing the transactions selected with relevant
underlying documentation, including customers’
receipts and goods delivery notes;

BMEELERBEBETR I RBAXY (BREER
Wig kB mRXE)  FERHmE R AR TR
ARHERCREE AR ANER:

Sending confirmations to the key customers to
confirm the year end trade balances and the yearly
sales transaction amounts.

MEIBEFPELBERAE HRAFREFERNFEH
EXHEH-
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The Key Audit Matter
FREEZEIE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I % B IRE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEEZPHEE S E

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group recognised revenue from motor vehicles
trading business amounted to HK$339,978,012, of
which HK$337,492,350 was related to situations
where the Group concluded that it acted as a principal
and had the primary responsibility for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified goods to customers
and HK$2,485,662 was related to situations where the
Group concluded that it acted as an agent in arranging
others to provide the specified goods to customers.
The Group recognised the revenue at gross amount as
a principal and the net amount as an agent.

o HE_ZT-N\E+_A=Z+—BHLEFEE &
SERAEHE RS RE /339,978,012 T
Hr 337,492,350 L EEERRERIEA
IZEARBITRAEFRHSTEEYNAZLRR K
2,485,662 L BEBRARERREBERHEAEMA M
FEFRHETEYNEREHR - BSEEBIAE/ATE
AR R AR AME R IR R ) W 25 )5 58 -

The Group determined whether itself is acting
as a principal or agent required judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
EREETAEARGNFTERNERSRESHITERA
HETRZEBMBHRBEERIER -

We focused on this area due to the significant
judgement involved in the assessment of
management’s determination of principal or agent for
the purpose of revenue recognition of motor vehicles
trading business.
EERIZEE D HRNERBER TEHEEB WA
RETFEHMNESREFHOTGL S REKNHEH-

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

S Reviewing and discussing with management of the

Group a number of sales contracts with customers
and purchase contracts with suppliers, on a sample
basis, assessing the management’s conclusion
based on the specific facts and circumstances and
the applicable accounting standard;

- RMEEREZTNE ESEERENRETPE]
UHEEEESH UAREHEFITIVNZEBES
A A EEERBABEERBANUKER A
A E R4

Evaluating whether the Group’s presentation of revenue
on a gross basis (as a principal) versus a net basis (as an
agent) was in conformity with the applicable accounting
standard:

i ESRERASEEI NG (EREFEHM) BLRF
BEEZNR (EARE)ZE2VBEARSHBR G LR
iﬁ ;
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Valuation of inventories
(see note 21 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Key Audit Matter
FREEZXEIE

FEHE

(R

A MBHRRME21)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEEZPHEE S E

We identified the valuation of inventories, which mainly
represents motor vehicles, as a key audit matter due
to the significant involvement in the management’s
estimation.

EEREE (TERRE)MERR —REREREE
THRER S RERNEREMG -

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of inventories of the motor vehicles amounted to
HK$58,070,925 representing 14% of total consolidated
assets of the Group.

RZE-N\F+ZA=1+—H AEFENEEEAR
58,070,925,%75'{5 EEERaEERE14% -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories
included:

BEEEHFERENREFEE:

Obtaining an understanding of the key controls of
the Group in relation to identification of slow-moving
inventories and preparation of ageing analysis of
inventories;
T EEBEFBRANFHETFERRREERESN
B R B 4 1

Perform physical inventory count and identifying
physically obsolete inventories, if any;
ETEMHTFERMENBHERRERFS (W)

Testing the ageing analysis of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the source documents;

PR EESRIRX M AAFERE DT

Discussing with the management and evaluating their
assessment on the estimation of the net realizable
value of inventories for those slow moving inventories
without/with little sales or movement during the year
or subsequent to the end of the reporting period;
and

HRFASREHREBLE B ﬁé’%&%@m
5%@%7?{!5@%’/\ ﬁﬂaﬁﬁ&aﬁﬁﬁ HiEFEn#
BOREMETRE &

Assessing the reasonableness, on a sample basis,
of the estimation of the net realizable value of
inventories with reference to the latest price list,
the recent selling prices, movements, physical
conditions, ageing analysis and subsequent sales of
inventories.

RIKEEZZEENENEREE ODHEE &
@J‘Eﬁ%ﬂﬁ‘)ﬁ‘%@%ﬁ*ﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁﬁ%nﬂﬁff—fm
FEMEFHEE-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

EHMREREESMBRRRIENEE
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019

Cheng Hong Cheung
Practising Certificate number P01802
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF PROFIT oR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EABEFEREMEEBRANE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2018 2017
—F—-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$ HK$
H 5 I 5 TT
Revenue W == 5 344,830,978 29,186,397
Other income and loss, net Hip A\ R EEFE 7 (5,475,964) (35,919,256)
Changes in inventories of DAY EA -
finished good (334,263,177) (17,821,020)
Written down of inventories FERE 21 (1,558,832) =
Other direct costs Hitb B (180,837) (228,682)
Employee benefits expenses EBERANAZ 10 (20,971,949) (20,368,421)
Depreciation of property, plant and % - #E RRETE
equipments 15 (2,778,272) (5,380,884)
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEHE 16 (34,335) L
Impairment of refundable earnest MBEFERREBWE
money paid for proposed business ~ FTX M AR EM E £ RE
acquisition in prior year - (23,052,000)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR 2w 27 12,360,193 =
Impairment of property, plant and Y2 - HeeE KR ERE
equipments 15 - (966,460)
Impairment loss of interests in REE R R =R EEER
associates 19 - (31,754,373)
Finance costs & AR 8 (412,593) (229,303)
Other operating expenses HihEEEMA 9 (23,530,110) (12,845,189)
Change in fair value of contingent EW K AREB 2 AT EES
consideration receivable - (13,441,448)
Share of loss of associates JE(L B & N R Es 1R 19 - (6,028,114)
Loss before income tax B TS B AT BT 1B 9 (32,014,898) (138,848,753)
Income tax income S B A 13 181,520 2,545,494
Loss for the year FAEE (31,833,378)  (136,303,259)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hit2m (&5E) BA:

income:
ltems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss

HEAJEEEFH D HE
Bzm A

Currency translation differences: HEEEN Z5
— Group —AEE (13,856,167) 6,300,738
— Associate i /NG| - 2,837,778
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMEE (EHE) WA -

for the year, net of tax 2R (13,856,167) 9,138,516
Total comprehensive loss FATHEEEBRE

for the year

(45,689,545)

(127,164,743)

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF PROFIT orR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EAeBEFERHEMETEBRANRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

(78,

2018 2017
—F—)\F —T—tfF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 T 5 TT
Loss attributable to: FE{GESiE -
Owners of the Company RRFIER A 14 (31,213,014)  (136,497,133)
Non-controlling interests IR = (620,364) 193,874
(31,833,378) (136,303,259)
Total comprehensive loss FRHENEEBEEE:
for the year attribute to:
Owners of the Company PiNNETEF SN (44,326,873)  (127,211,846)
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR A 2 (1,362,672) 47,103
(45,689,545) (127,164,743)
Loss per share attributable FREATIHEA
to owners of the Company fE{EEIREE
for the year
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BREAXRERE OBIW) 14
From loss for the year FREE (0.46) (2.10)
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) F#EgEE O81) 14
From loss for the year FANEE (0.46) (2.10)

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
HEMBMRKASRE

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZT—/\HF+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—F—-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$ HK$
M =E T BT
Non-current asset EREEE
Property, plant and equipments I ER Ty 15 30,027,465 34,114,533
Intangible assets mEE 16 66,088 104,500
Statutory deposits and other assets AEE & MHMWEE 17 505,001 505,001
Interests in associates RN 19 - =
Contingent consideration receivables [ & sk SA KB 20 - =
Rental and other deposits paid ENHEEREMIRE 25 132,865 808,915
30,731,419 35,527,949
Current assets HHEE
Inventories FE 21 59,794,498 124,155,521
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5/I8 22 24,015,171 9,424,160
Loans and receivables BER R ERFIE 23 6,534,605 597,960
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBGZEREE
through profit or loss 24 27,769,776 34,275,830
Prepayments, deposits and AR FRIE - e R EMEUWEIA
other receivables 25 101,933,362 24,897,114
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS
— trust accounts — (SR 26 8,299,365 9,765,651
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS
— general accounts —— R 26 153,053,508 170,932,310
381,400,285 374,048,546
Total assets BEE 412,131,704 409,576,495
Current liabilities HHERE
Trade payables JETE 5 3KI8 28 8,271,122 7,567,101
Other payables and accruals H A e A 30BN FE AT FE 29 15,775,576 7,401,511
Contract liabilities GHBE 30 2,303,236 -
Current income tax payable BV EA FE S AT 1S 70 - 59,704
Borrowings B 31 4,497,498 54,392,813
30,847,432 69,421,129
Net current assets RBEEFE 350,552,853 304,627,417
Total assets EEHERRHER
less current liabilities 381,284,272 340,155,366

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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CoNsoLIDATED STATEMENTS oF FINANCIAL PosiTioN

REMBRKA SR

As at 31 December 2018 H=F— ) \F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—F—-N\F —+tF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I &I
Non-current liabilities EREFE R
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSHRAasE 32 3,108,517 3,290,066
3,108,517 3,290,066
Net assets BEFE 378,175,755 336,865,300
Capital and reserves BAEREE
Share capital N 33 77,489,582 64,989,582
Share premium B 15 3% 1B 33 1,673,298,866 1,614,798,866
Other reserve E bR 34 - (16,000,000)
Special reserve 5 Bl 7 1 34 4,778,740 4,778,740
Statutory reserve ﬁ&mﬁﬁ 34 3,911,530 3,911,530
Translation reserve HiE®E 34 (22,295,947) (9,181,374)
Share-based compensation reserve fo’ﬁ HERE 35 30,554,498 30,554,498
Accumulated losses ZErEE (1,403,118,917) (1,371,889,661)
Equity attributable to owners of AQAT]HH AELEZS
the Company 364,618,352 321,962,181
Non-controlling interests FEIERRHEL 13,557,403 14,903,119
Total equity EGEE 378,175,755 336,865,300

Wang Jiawei
EEE
Director

EF

Lai Yuk Mui
REH
Director

EF
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS oF CHANGES IN Eaquity

mEREEZEH X

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATRENER
Share-based Non-
Share Share Other Special Statutory ion A lated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BE  RBEE  AREE  BRER  EREE  ERRE ROEREE  RER S kBREE  EROE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B o B o fon L B BT B B o
(Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 35)
(i) (M%) (i) (Hiss) (Wi (W)

Balance as at 1 January 2017 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 4718740 3911530 (18466661 30383874 (1,237573985) 462821946 6215475 469,037,421
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (136,497,183) (136,497,133) 193,874 (136,303,259)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 9,285,287 - - 9,285,287 (146,771) 9,138,516
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 11959200 11,959,200
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - - - - - 877,444 - 877,444 - 877,444
Shares retrieval from escrow arrangement - - (16,000,000) - - - - - (16,000,000) - (16,000,000)

Reversal of share-based contrioution reverse BREXIRERRNBRRES
upon the lapse of share option = = = = S S (706,820) 706,820 = = =
Deregistration of the subsidiary HEHBAR - - - - - - - - - (383) (383)
Transaction with non-controling interests (Note 37) 2R E&R 5 (I - - - - - - - 1ATA837 1474637 (3318276 (1,843,639)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RIZ—tE+A=T-A2&8 64,989,582 1,614798866  (16,000000) 4778740 3911530  (9,181374) 30554498 (1,371,889,661) 321,962,181  14903,119 336,865,300
Balance as at 1 January 2018 64,980,582 1,614,798,866 (16,000,000 4,778,740 3911530  (9,181,374) 30,554,498 (1,371,889,661) 321,962,181 14,903,119 336,865,300
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (31,213014) (31,213,014 (620,364)  (31,833,378)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - (13,113,859 - - (13,113,859 (742,308)  (13,856,167)
Cancellation of shares under escrow arrangement (2,000,000)  (14,000,000) 16,000,000 - - - - - - - -
New issuance during the year 14,500,000 72,500,000 - - - - - - 87,000,000 - 87,000,000
Transaction with non-controlling interests (Note 37) - - - - - (714) - (16,242) (16,956) 16,956 -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZF-NE+ZA=t-HzE8 77,489,582 1,673,298,866 - 4718740 3911530  (22,205947) 30,554,498 (1,403,118917) 364,618,352 13,557,403 378,175,755

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CasH FLows
EABREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E—)\F ZE—+F
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I T
Cash flows from CETHRBRHELRR
operating activities
Loss before income tax BR P15 B4 A B 18 (32,014,898)  (138,848,753)
Adjustments for: HTYSIBAE:
— Impairment loss on trade debts —BEBRERSE - 275,127
- Depreciation of property, — B RRENE
plant and equipment 2,778,272 5,380,884
- Loss on disposal of property, plant — &9 %  #eE &
and equipment XA - 279,964
— Amortisation of intangible assets ~ — & E # 4 34,335 =
— Written down of inventories —FERE 1,558,832 =
— Impairment of property, plant —WE - MeE RERERE
and equipment - 966,460
— Impairment of interests in associates — R E & A BliE s 2 B E - 31,754,373
- Impairment of refundable earnest —FRBAFEEZER
money paid for proposed IR P A PR B
business acquisition in prior year BEERE - 23,052,000
— Written off of property, o ER St
plant and equipment 34,451 S
- Change in fair value of contingent —JEW S RKEBEZ A FEE
consideration receivable - 13,441,448
— Fair value losses on securities —BHFEBE A TEEBE
trading 6,468,850 34,756,990
— Share of loss of associates —E(EEBE RN AEE - 6,028,114
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEWNB AR K& (12,360,193) =
- Equity-settled share based — RS E 2 B iE L
arrangements - 877,444
— Interest income — FLE U A (616,574) (1,489,699)
— Dividend income —REIWA (27,689) (867,288)
- Finance costs —BEKAR 412,593 229,303
Operating cash flows before EESSETRZ
changes in working capital HEHLRE (33,732,021) (24,163,633)
— Statutory deposits and other assets —&AE &4 & EMEE - 554,935
— Inventories -8 62,802,191 (121,565,197)
- Trade receivables —EWE S FIE (14,591,011) 4,850,802
- Prepayments, deposits and —ERFE-Eek
other receivables H th JE Y FRIB (75,854,560) (19,829,160)
— Amounts due from former Directors — J& Ui Bl {T & % 3k I8 - 331,419
- Financial assets at fair value — B AFEFARERZ
through profit or loss TELEE - 5,698,080
— Segregated trust bank balances —BYEERF &% 1,466,286 4,309,752
- Trade payables —ENE S RIE 704,021 (7,250,597)
— Other payables and accruals — E 4th B < 3B & FE T FRIE 13,695,789 5,232,670
— Contract liabilities —aHEaE (3,018,488) -
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT ofF CasH FLows
I%IT = Iﬁ ﬁ JIL % %‘54

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2018 2017
—E—N\FE —t
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I 7 TT
Cash used in operations TEHRAZHRE (48,527,793)  (151,830,929)
Income tax paid B EH (58,879) =
Interest received = UES) 378,516 1,489,699
Net cash used in operating FEETHBHZHELFE
activities (48,208,156) (150,341,230)
Cash flows from investing BETHMBHELRRE
activities
Decrease in deposit for purchase of 5)&9%%%%%%&
plant and equipment REzEe 646,386 259,215
Purchases of property, BEME- Mz e
plant and equipment (1,322,781) (4,629,453)
Purchases of intangible assets BERPAE = (104,498)
Proceeds from disposal of Hj’%%¥ L EVEL
property, plant & equipment T8 508 - 13,122
Proceeds from disposal HjEWJ;' AN RIFT1S IR
of subsidiaries 27 14,610,359 -
Gross increase in loans B3R % e R IE 1 N
and receivables (6,534,605) (8,969,400)
Repayment of loans and receivables & 3k & JiE U 58 U 7% 567,240 41,901,723
Dividend received from securities BWHEEERES KA
held for trading 27,689 867,288
Proceeds from redemption BRIZAFEFAEBRZ
of financial assets at fair value SREEMSNRIEA
through profit or loss 49,917,120 -
Investment in financial assets at KEREAFEFABRZZ
fair value through profit or loss CEEE (50,432,856) (10,763,280)
Interest income ) B WA 238,038 =
Net cash generated from BEEHELEZ
investing activities H&%E 7,716,590 18,574,717
Cash flows used in financing REEHTHRESRRE
activities
Acquisition of non-controlling A JE 4% s e 2 U
interest (Note 37) ( PH 5£37) - (1,843,639)
Capital contribution from FEERERTE
non-controlling interest - 11,959,200
New issuance of shares FAFEITHR
during the year 87,000,000 -
Repayments of bank borrowings RITIERZ B (2,058,514) (1,998,940)
Repayments of other unsecured loan HEMEKFE R 7 EX (45,379,200) =
Interest paid =AY (412,593) (229,303)
Proceeds from other unsecured loan L fth £ 1 18 B 2 F7 5 2008 - 47,836,800
Net cash generated from AEEHELEZHELFE
financing activities 39,149,693 55,724,118
Net decrease in cash and HeErBEL£%EHEIER
cash equivalents BLEE (1,341,873) (76,042,395)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzBEekReEHEEE
beginning of year 170,932,310 240,921,035
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgEH o ZE
changes (16,536,929) 6,053,670
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEBEERFEEEEEH
at end of year 26 153,053,508 170,932,310
ZESEEEERLE | —ZE-N\FEEH
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

84

GENERAL INFORMATION
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (are referred to the “Group”).

INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in (i) provision of the precious
metals spot trading and brokerage services in the PRC, (i)
provision of securities and futures contracts trading services
in Hong Kong, (i) trading and principal investments in the
PRC and Hong Kong, (iv) trading of electronic student cards
and school safety products and provision of electronic student
card platform in the PRC, (v) provision of stock information and
research services through the internet network in the PRC, and
(vi) sale of motor vehicles and the provision of agency services
in the PRC.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
is situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA
Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The functional currency of
the Company is Hong Kong dollars. The Group has selected
to present the consolidated financial statements in Hong Kong
dollars as the management considered it is more beneficial
to users of the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March
2019.

—R&EH
EREEEEEARARA ([ARF]) R
HtBAw (s [ AREE]) -

AEEZEHR

AEBEISRBONVETERESESER
BERXGREERT  (VEBBREZS
LEEEHEBRG : ()ERERE S
BEENEERE (WETRHEEETE
EHEERBZEEMMEHEETELFE
FE: (VEBDHBESRIRERE?
HARMERSE : R(VI)EREEETHE R
RERERS -

RKRAGIEREHRSREAEHS QA
FEaMEK L AREREBRAG AR
Al 7 5 fift 3% =5 8= {12 72 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
AR ZEELHEMBUREBFIRT
HEH64-66 MY KE161E

RA BB PR BE R FTGEM L7 ©

ZEREMBRRAUEBTE2Y A
THBARNINGEEESARE (AR
W) ARARYEEBRETL - AKH
BEUBT2IGAVBRRIVARE
EERSILHERAMBHRROEREM
ERABN HFREMBEREN
E-NE=ZAtT\REE=SHEREK
R
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of Stock Exchange
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“cQ”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (are referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associate.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the recognition of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—Z

2.

—NFtZA=t—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2.1

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new standards and interpretation issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
for the first time of which the followings are relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

o HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, and

° HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Group has not early applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet mandatorily effective
for the current year.

Upon initial application of the above new standards,
amendments and interpretations, there is no
significant impact to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and accordingly no adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings and
reserves at 1 January 2018 and no restatement to
the comparative information are required.

2.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@)

EREEEEERAF |

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continueq)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at 1 January
2018, if any. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

(i) Classification of financial assets and financial

liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of the standard
are not separated from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEHBEBE &)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(F)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BT ERKBREZEE
(continued) (%)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) FEBERNFETRAENEET
(continued) ER (&)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) ARV BmEERZESR [£
mMTAE] (&)
()  Classification of financial assets and financial i) 2MEEAEREBEZ
liabilities (continued) SkE (&)
Details about the Group’s accounting policies BRAAEEBERESH
for its financial assets and financial liabilities EERTREBENZ
are disclosed in note 2.9 to the consolidated BUERF BN ER A B IR
financial statements. M2 O -
The following table shows a reconciliation from TRIIFAEEBR=-Z
how the Group’s financial assets existed as of —N\EFE—HA—HFEZ
1 January 2018 were classified and measured TREERBEE SR
under HKAS 39 to how they are classified and ERIFEIR DB RFTE
measured under HKFRS 9: ZHERAMERERS
B 15 3R S5 X RISE 95
HRETE2HZE:
Old New Carrying Carrying
classification classification amount amount
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS9  under HKAS 39  Reclassification ~ Remeasurement under HKFRS 9
RIEER REEH RIEEA RIEEA
Rl MERERA it MR & A
FIMZENE HOMZHNE $305 2RI {E ENNE EFtE  FoSizKEE
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
A BT BT A
Trade receivables Trade receivables  Amortised cost 9,424,160 - - 9,424,160
EWE 5HE EWEHHHE BHmA
Loans and receivables Loans receivables  Amortised cost 597,960 - - 597,960
BERRIERE ERER BHEMA
Investments in listed FVTPL FVTPL 23,512,550 - - 23,512,550
equity securities
- held for trading (Note)
RETBRAESRZRE  RATE;ARE ROVEMARR
-BERE ()
Investment funds (Note) ~ FVTPL FVTPL 10,763,280 - - 10,763,280
HEES (M) RATEMARE BROTEHAER
Note: B &

Investment in listed equity securities — held for trading
and investment funds were classified for financial assets
at FVTPL under HKAS 39, these assets continue to be
measured as FVTPL under HKFRS 9.

RIBEFB ST EREI95 7
EHBRAEZZRE-FHEER
ERREEASESBERER
FEFARGZZEREE R
BEREBMBREERESR
HEBEMBRATERFAR

WitEe
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Notes 1o THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

() Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)
The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January
2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate
any financial asset or financial liability at FVTPL
at 1 January 2018.

(i) Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with
a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2.1

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Credit losses (continued)

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and loans and
receivables); and

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see
note 2.11.

The Group has concluded that there has
been no material impact on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost as at 1
January 2018 and 31 December 2018 upon
the initial application of the new impairment
requirements after considering all trade
receivables and loan and receivables were
either repaid in 2019 or the counterparty did
not have any historical default payment record.

2.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
retained earnings and reserves as at 1
January 2018, if any. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 continues
to be reported under HKAS 39 and thus
may not be comparable with the current
period.

The following assessments have been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at 1 January 2018 (the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 by the Group).

- the determination of the business model
within which a financial asset held.

- if, at the date of initial application, the
assessment of whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition would have involved
undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that financial asset.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale
of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 has introduced additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. Please see note 2.23 for
details of old and new accounting policies.

Based on the specific transitional provisions set
out in HKFRS 15, the Group had decided to
use the cumulative effect transition method and
had recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application of HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity as at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018), if any. Accordingly,
comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be presented under HKAS 11 and
HKAS 18. Also, the Group has applied the HKFRS
15 requirements only to contracts that were not
completed before 1 January 2018.

2.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition

Under HKAS 11 and HKAS 18, revenue arising
from construction contracts and provision of
services was recognised over time whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods had
passed to the customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. This may be at a single
point in time or over time.

Previously, revenue arising from provision of
services was recognised when the services are
rendered, and revenue from sale of goods was
generally recognised at a point in time when
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods had passed to the customers.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2.1

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

() Timing of revenue recognition (continued)
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. This may be
at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS
15 identifies the following three situations in
which control of the promised good or service
is regarded as being transferred over time:

° When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance, as
the entity performs;

o When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced;

o When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

() Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, if all the above-mentioned
3 criteria are not met, the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on the Group’s revenue
recognition policy.

As mentioned in note 5, the Group is engaged
in the following operations:

1. Sales of motor vehicle which the Group
acts as principal

2. Trading of electronic student cards and
school safety products

3. Provision of stock information

4. Provision of electronic student cards
platform
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2.1

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

() Timing of revenue recognition (continued)
5.  Provision of securities and futures
brokerage services

6. Agency fee income from motor vehicles
and accessories sourcing

In respect of (1) and (2), the application of
HKFRS 15 has not had any material impact
on the consolidated financial statements
— revenue continues to be recognised at a
particular point of time upon when goods are
delivered to customers and customers have
accepted the goods.

In respect of (3) to (4), the service income
from the provision of stock information, and
the service income from the provision of
the electronic student cards platform are
recognised over time because the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performed.

In respect of (5), as the commission income
from the provision of securities and futures
brokerage service are recognised when the
securities dealing services are rendered
to the customers at particular point of
time, the adoption of HKFRS 15 has not
had a significant impact on such revenue
recognition.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

In respect of (6), the adoption of HKFRS
15 does not have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements
because the Group, as an agent, arranges
the motor vehicles delivery to the customers
and the Group continues to recognise revenue
on a net basis and at a point in time that the
customers receive the motor vehicles.

Significant financing component

(i)

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received
significantly in advance of revenue recognition
or significantly deferred.

As the Group did not expect the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customers and the payments
from the customers exceeds one year, this
change in accounting policy had no effect on
retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.

Presentation of contract liabilities

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
classified deposits received from customers
in connection with the Group’s sales of
goods as other payables and accruals in the
consolidated statements of financial position.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, reclassifications
have been made from other payables
and accruals to contract liabilities for the
outstanding balance of deposits received from
customers.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Presentation of contract liabilities (continued)
The deposits received of HK$5,321,724 that
was previously classified as other payables
and accruals has been reclassified to contract
liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

The application of HKFRS 15 has resulted in
the following presentation changes:
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Notes 1o THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)
(iv) Disclosure of the estimated impact on the

EREEEEERAF |

amounts reported in respect of the year ended
31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018

The following tables summaries the estimated
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018, by
comparing the amounts reported under
HKFRS 15 in these consolidated financial
statements with estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised
under HKAS 18 if those superseded standards
had continued to apply to 2018 instead of
HKFRS 15. These tables show only those line
items impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15:
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

@

(continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(iv)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the

amounts reported in respect of the year ended

31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption

of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 (continued)

2. FEEFBOREE (&)

2.1
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Amounts
reported in Hypothetical
accordance amounts
with under
HKFRS 15 HKAS 18 Difference
RETEMBRE RETESHEL
#E A 55155% #1855
Ll LE R ER
(A) (B) (A) - (B)
(A) (B) (A -(B)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT BT
Line items in the RREEEMBREER
consolidated statement E15HRH_F—N\E
of financial position as +ZA=+-B&4&
at 31 December 2018 HERAREEMEE:
impacted by the adoption
of HKFRS 15:
Other payables and accruals & 4 5038 & JE 51 508 15,775,576 18,078,812 (2,303,236)
Contract liabilities 2,303,236 - 2,303,236
Line items in reconciliation % & &M iR & %8|
of profit before taxation FIMHEE-F—\F
to cash generated from +-A=+—-BLEE
operations for the year RERHETEEEN
ended 31 December 2018 HE&HREBNHE
impacted by the adoption
of HKFRS 15:
Increase in other payables — E 4 B 78 & B 5T 7B
and accruals 13,695,789 10,677,301 3,018,488
Decrease in contract liabilities & 418 &R (3,018,488) = (3,018,488)

Apart from the above-mentioned reclassification
of accounts, there is no significant differences
arising from the change in the accounting

policies.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an
entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)
22 does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the
Group.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
New and amended Standards issued but not yet

(®)

adopted

The Group has not applied any of the following
new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), amendments to HKFRSs and new
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) that
have been issued but are not yet mandatorily

effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

HK(IFRIC)
Interpretation 23

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019
2 Effective date not yet determined
s For those amendments that will become effective for annual

L eases’

Insurance Contracts®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2015-
2017 Cycle®

(Revised) Business
Combinations*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

b)

EREEEEERAF |

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
guidance including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

With regards to operating leases from lessee’s
prospective, HKFRS 16 requires a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability to be recognised for all
leases by lessees except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured
at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments.
Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will
also be affected as operating lease payments under
HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows;
whereas, under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease
payments will be split into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and
financing cash flows respectively.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

With regards to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive
disclosures in the financial statements.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$5,620,854, the majority
of which is payable between 1 and 5 years after
the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted.
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Notes 1o THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

However, the Group has not yet assessed the
amount of adjustments.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Subsidiaries

(a)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between Group Companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the
Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

HEEBEME (&)

22 MEBAS (£)

EREEEEERAF |

(b) Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. T BREE (2)
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Associates (continued) 2.3 HEAT (#&)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of profit of associates” accounted for equity
method in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the senior executive management that makes
strategic decisions.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—Z

2.

—NFtZA=t—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions);

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.5 MEEBRE (&)
(c) Group companies (continued) (c) ZEEETLE (&)

FTEEHBEME (&2)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

2.6

WRINEEEMELRENR
ATFEAEEFEIRERZ
BELRBERE WiREH
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Plant and machinery 10 years M2 KRR 104F

Land and Buildings 25 years T REF 25%F

Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years, or HEMHERE SE5% izl
over the term of leases B UBREER
if shorter %4

Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years MAERER SFEHF

R FL
Computer equipment 3 years BIEE 3F
Motor vehicles 3to 10 years I 3Z10%F

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

2.7

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7
(b)

(c)

(d)

Intangible assets (continued)

Trading rights

The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange
and on the Hong Kong Future Exchange Limited. The
trading rights are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Software

The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from 5 to 10 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date.

The expected useful life of the contractual customer
relationships determined to be 8 years. The
contractual customer relationships have a finite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the said expected useful
life of the customer relationships.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets
Classification
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see note 24. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)
Classification (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2.23(g).

Under HKFRS 9, a financial asset such as
receivables shall be subsequently measured at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions
are met: (a) the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Interest income from
the financial asset is calculated using the effective
interest method.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVTPL.
Any attributable transaction costs were recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

For investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, at the end of each reporting
period the fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve (recycling).
Dividend income from equity investments and
interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method were recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies
set out in notes 2.23(f) and 2.23(g), respectively.
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from
debt securities were also recognised in profit or
loss. When the investments were derecognised or
impaired (see note 2.11()) — policy applicable prior
to 1 January 2018), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified to profit or
loss.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within
“Other income and net losses” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

EREEEEERAF |

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amount and there is an intention to settled
on a net basic or realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
Credit losses from financial instruments
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
loans and receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
the investment fund, equity securities measured at
FVTPL, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

2.

FTEEHBEME (&2)

211 EEBEREERE (&)
EMTRZIEEEHE (&)

A)

B-F—/\F—H—H&E
BB x ()
BHEEBEE (£)
REEEHEEEER K
EEERBANHBZRA
LN EEZAERA
RER -ZEENBEEH
BAESH B KRBE
BRI TR 2 B R o

AR B IR T A T R o
—HIRE

— 12EARHEEEE:
ZEEHAARE R B
‘1218 A A AT RE % &
ZENEHEMEBHZE
B/ &

- 2HRMEEERE: &
FRBAEMEEER
BHAER AR 2 B
ARFHAMEEE
ZEANEHEMEBZE

B

FEWE 5 IR H B R —
EREEREHNBEREES
BrzeBAE-RFEeRE
ECERBEEBRILDENK
SEZBEEEBERERRK
REEEREETEN LE
BEHABEREZ BESAH
HE R BRBEHENRR

M RHE T EH R -

HRMBEEMEMTIA K
SEEREFN128 A BB
EEEENERRE KA
VIIRHERIAR B T ENE
ERBEEEN BEZB
ATEERBERASNEH
BHEEBERZ B ER
BRI o

118 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

EREEEEERAF |

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument (including a loan commitment) has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 30 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

= existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continueq)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are measured
at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling) and
should not reduce the carrying amount of the debt
securities.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.23(A)(e) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(A)

EREEEEERAF |

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery occurs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) 211 EEBEREERE (Z)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued) EHTAZEEEE (&)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (B) —E-NF—H—HFI#E
JH 8B
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Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on financial

assets not classified as at FVTPL (e.g. trade and
other receivables, available-for sale investments
and held-to-maturity debt securities). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only recognised to
the extent that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

- When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost
was considered doubtful but not remote,
associated impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
was satisfied that recovery was remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable was written
off against the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account were reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in first-
out (FIFO) method for the commodities finished goods
and the weighted average method for the student cards
and school safety products and specific identification
basis for the motor vehicles. The cost of finished goods is
arrived at based on purchase cost. It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.17 Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, the amounts received before
the related work was performed were presented as
“Received in advance from customers in respect of
trading of motor vehicles” under “Other payables and
accruals”. These balances have been reclassified on 1
January 2018 as shown in note 29.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHHERME£2)
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowings 2.18 &

126

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEFBREBE(£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Financial guarantee contracts

219 BIBEREH

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued, and
are initially recognised at fair value, which is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

- The amounts determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments; and

- The amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

The fair value of financial guarantee is determined
based on the present value of the differences in
cash flows between the contractual payments
required under the debt instrument and the
payments that would be required without the
guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

A provision would be recognised initially measured
at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair
value through profit and loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

S the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

When it became probable that (i) the holder of the
guarantee would call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of the claim on the
Group was expected to exceed the amount carried
in “trade and other payables” in respect of the
guarantee.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax

FTEEHBEME (&2)

2.20 BMHIRIBEEFRTSH

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2017: Nil).

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions

(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a

specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for

employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting

conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based compensation (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances, employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEHBEBE &)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Provisions and contingent liabilities

222 BIERJARERE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.23 Revenue recognition

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net
of discounts returns and value added taxes. The
Group recognises revenue when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, XEEHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

2.23 WratER (&)
(A) R=-FT—/NFE—F—HEHF

(continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(@) Commission income from securities and
futures brokerage is recognised on a trade
date basis.

(b) Consultancy fee income from provision of
stock information and network maintenance
are recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered, which is recognised over
time because the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the services performed by the Group.

(c) Fee earned from the provision of electronic
student cards platform over a period of time
are accrued over the contracted period
because the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the services performed by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

(d)

Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis
whilst unrealized fair value gains or losses
are recorded on change in fair value on the
reporting period.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

Revenue from sales of motor vehicles (in
situations where the Group is acting as the
principal) and electronic student cards and
school safety products is recognised at a point
of time when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the contract.

Agency incomes from trading of motor vehicles
and accessories sourcing is recognised on
a net basis and at a point in time, when the
control of the motor vehicles (with accessories,
if any) had been transferred to the customers.
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Notes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior 1 January 2018

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities, as described
below:

(a)

Commission income from securities and
futures brokerage is recognised on a trade
date basis.

Commission income from precious metal
brokerage is recognised on a trade date basis.

Service income are recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered.

Realized gains or losses on spot trading on
precious metal contracts are recorded on a
trade date basis whilst unrealized fair value
gains or losses are recognised by translating
the contract amounts at the prices ruling at the
end of each reporting period.

Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis
whilst unrealized fair value gains or losses
are recorded on change in fair value on the
reporting period.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior 1 January 2018
(continued)

(f)

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest
rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

Revenue from sales of motor vehicles and
electronic student cards and school safety
products is recognised upon transfer of
significant risk and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers.

Agency income from trading of motor vehicles
souring is recognised on a net basis, when the
agency services have been rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEEHBRBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases 2.24 {4
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and NEEE BRI D R & E R
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are REHAARB LY B AEE
classified as operating leases. Payments made under Ay -RESCEHNIH2ES
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the (£l B HEAKREZ EREER
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit %) RESERNEERATEEE
or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line Bk EME2EKARTZHE-

basis over the period of the lease.

2.25 Related parties 2.25 FEEAEANT
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: IATATHERBERNEEGRHE -
il :
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family (a) ZRALAFEUATEGHA
and that person THZATRER
() has control or joint control over the Group; () 7= 5l ok A AR &
;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEBEEAFE:
B3
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AAEEIAKEEA
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; ANETEEEAE:
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (o) MWTIEREHEER &
following conditions applies: FEB AR EAER
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZELHALREEEBR-—
same group; SEHKE QA
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of iy —EBARZ TR
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or AlkA BB (3
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); a5 S

=
i
5
al
SE‘I’
I

= D X om
B ool omf > md
fil

™
o =

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZEREAEEH AR
the same third party; —F=ITNEEDRE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —BEBRE-FEREN
and the other entity is an associate of the third BERE - ME—HEE
entity; REZE=ZSTEBRHE
NG
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2.26 Principal versus agent
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.
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NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Principal versus agent (continued) 2,26 TEAHKE (&)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A BE-F—NFE—HF—HEH

HEEBEME (&)

EREEEEERAF |

(continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified good
or service by another party. In this case, the Group
does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer.

When an entity that is a principal satisfies a
performance obligation, the entity recognises
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
the specified good or service transferred. When
an entity that is an agent satisfies a performance
obligation, the entity recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party. An entity’s fee or commission might
be the net amount of consideration that the entity
retains after paying the other party the consideration
received in exchange for the goods or services to be
provided by that party.

Indicators that an entity controls the specified good
or service before it is transferred to the customer
(and is therefore a principal) include, but are not
limited to, the following:

(@) the entity is primarily responsible for fulfilling
the promise to provide the specified good or
service. This typically includes responsibility
for the acceptability of the specified good or
service. If the entity is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified
good or service, this may indicate that the
other party involved in providing the specified
good or service is acting on the entity’s behalf.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Principal versus agent (continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

(b)

the entity has inventory risk before the
specified good or service has been transferred
to a customer or after transfer of control to the
customer (for example, if the customer has a
right of return).

the entity has discretion in establishing
the price for the specified good or service.
Establishing the price that the customer pays
for the specified good or service may indicate
that the entity has the ability to direct the use
of that good or service and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits. However, an
agent may have some flexibility in setting
prices in order to generate additional revenue
from its service of arranging for goods or
services to be provided by other parties to
customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Principal versus agent (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Under the requirements stated in HKAS 18
“Revenue” determining whether the Group is
acting as a principal or an agent requires judgment
and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances.

An entity is acting as a principal when it has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the sale of goods or the rendering
of services. Features that indicate that an entity is
acting as a principal include:

(@) the entity has the primary responsibility
for providing the goods or services to the
customer or for fulfilling the order, for example
by being responsible for the acceptability of
the products or services ordered or purchased
by the customer;

(b)  the entity has inventory risk before or after the
customer order, during shipping or on return;

(c) the entity has latitude in establishing prices,
either directly or indirectly, for example by
providing additional goods or services; and

(d) the entity bears the customer’s credit risk for
the amount receivable from the customer.

An entity is acting as an agent when it does not
have exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the sale of goods or the rendering
of services. One feature indicating that an entity
is acting as an agent is that the amount the entity
earns is predetermined, being either a fixed fee per
transaction or a stated percentage of the amount
billed to the customer.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair
value interest rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

3.1

(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchase by operating units
in currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs of the operating
units are denominated in the HK$ and RMB,
the respective functional currency of the Group
entities, with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities are principally denominated
in the respective functional currencies of HK$
and RMB. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flows generated from business transactions
locally. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from trading of listed equity securities
which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and the market price changed
on the unlisted investment funds classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its price risk arising from
these investments, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based in the exposure to related
price risk of these investments.

At the end of the reporting period, if the
quoted market prices of the trading securities
had been 5% higher or lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s
net loss for the year would decrease or
increase by approximately HK$712,000 (2017:
HK$985,000) as a result of changes in fair
value of securities held for trading.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and borrowings which carry prevailing
market interest rates. The directors considered
that the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.
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3.

—NFtZA=t—RLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

3.1

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable bank deposits and
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, if interest
rates on the bank borrowings had been
decreased/increased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$19,000 and HK
$27,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, if
interest rates on the bank deposits had been
decreased/increased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 would increase and
decrease by approximately HK$725,278 and
HK$792,912 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group
is exposed to the fair value interest rate risk
relating to the loans and receivables. However,
the Directors consider the repayable term of
the loans and receivables is within one year,
therefore, the fair value interest rate risk is
immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit
risk of the counterparty is managed at an early
stage and sufficient provision is made for possible
defaults. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets relate
mainly to cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, loans and receivables. It arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

3. MBERERE(F)
3.1 MBERER (&)

(b)

EE R
FERREXZIHFHER
HEWEE SIBAEEY
BEENRER -

AEBEEHRSEEREE
Z A e R AR AT I
BEURGHTZBEEER
RIEH B I HBERK
EE R BRI AEME
SEERBWESRZBR
MASEZZRRRY N E
* o

rEBEEREEZEERR
TEERBREERESEER
B RWEZFEANEME
WK M E RN EWRIR 215
ERBR-ETRAXZHTTE
HmMELS AR EREFR
RETHECREE-EEE
EHEEERREZEREE
BRI BT -

h PR UL E 5 SRIE N H i e UL
RME AEBEEHRMAER
KEBERX-—SBENERAEE
B & P T E RIS AR
ZEFEETPREPBET
HA R0 RC 8% S B A 3R
O UYEEINBHEBER
FPREFPREXEBAE L
ERENER - BHBEB1E
A2 BUSRKERZEH A
RBEMBRT BERES
AEREMESE -E—REB
AT AEETE@EEFPE
BEMm -



Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has certain concentrations of credit risk as
approximately 61% (2017: 48%) and 99% (2017:
93%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively within the
Brokerage and securities margin financing services
segment, sales of motor vehicles and provision of
agency services segment and trading of electronic
student cards and school safety product and
provision of electronic student card platform
segment. However, the directors of the Company
consider the credit risk is limited since the Group
has held certain listed equity securities of margin
clients as collateral over these receivables from the
brokerage and securities margin financing services
segment. For the sales of motor vehicles and
provision of agency services segment and trading of
electronic student cards and school safety product
and provision of electronic student card platform
segment, the customer’s past history of making
payments are good and no default record. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix
approach. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past one to two years.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance recognised in accordance with HKFRS
9 as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018.
Please refer to note 2.1(a)(iij and note 22 for the
expected credit loss assessment as at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018 respectively.

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see note 2.11(i) — policy applicable
prior to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017, no
trade receivables were determined to be impaired.
The aging analysis of trade debtors that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

3. HMBERERE (&)
3.1 MBERER (&)

(b)
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2017
—E—tF

HK$

BT

Neither past due nor impaired BR A 781 #f IR oK R (B 7,692,190
1-30 days past due #HI1 =30k 1,831,970

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to the government subsidy on the sales of
the imported motor vehicles management believed
that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there should not be
any significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERE(=Z)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBREKER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) HEEREEE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management EEgEARDECRKRE
rests with the board of directors. The Group BE FHEREF-A5EE
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate BaRmEk#ES R
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by B THESBALRERE
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash eRE UREHEMEE
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial LaEzR A ELER
assets and liabilities. RBE T RAR -
At 31 December 2018, the Group had borrowings RZE—-NE+ZRA=*+—
with carrying amounts of approximately B AKBERZEEEY
HK$4,497,000 (2017: HK$54,393,000) (Note 31). /34,497,000 T (ZE—+
% 54,393,000 7T ) (Mt
31)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEE2 R A BN RE M
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual RAR IR & AR BE IR 32 B
undiscounted payments, was as follows: HRmMT:
On demand Between Between Total Total
or within 1and 2 2and 5 Over undiscounted carrying
1 year years years 5 years cash flow amount
BEXY RUERAE
PRE 1E2f 2F5E 5L REEE BRREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2018 —F-0\f
Trade payables EREHHE 8,271,122 - - - 821,122 8,271,122
Other payablesand ~ EtERFER
accruals et B 15,775,576 - - - 15775576 15,775,576
Bank borrowings (Note) $£17f&2 (FisE) 4,657,557 - - - 4,657,557 4,497,498
2017 —E—+F
Trade payables ERESHE 7,567,101 - - - 7,567,101 7.567.101
Other payables and ~ E 4B FUAR
accruals JERT AR 7,401,511 - - - 7401511 7,401,511
Bank borrowings (Note) RT3k (Hi&) 6,872,170 - - - 6872170 6,556,013
Other borrowings Hibfa R 51,663,744 - - - 51,663,744 47,836,800
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
Note:
Bank loans HK$4,497,498 (2017: HK$$6,556,013) with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand
or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31
December 2018, the aggregate undiscounted amounts of principal
of the bank loans and interest thereon amounted to HK$4,657,557
(2017: HK$6,872,170). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be
repaid over a period of 2 (2017: 3) years in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

3.2 Capital management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
SFC and are required to comply with certain minimum
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt (including current and
non-current liabilities but excluding current or deferred
income tax liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (including share capital and premium, reserves,
accumulated losses and non-controlling interests as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HEEMGER (Z)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

During 2018, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio within 50%, which was
unchanged from 2017. The debt-to-adjusted capital
ratios as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were as

3.3

3.2 EXEHE (&)
rEBE_ZT-N\FEEH=T=
T+ EFENRK BRRBEKYH
RN R @ FFES0%A ©
“E-N\FR-F-—LE+ZA

follows: =T —HZEBHEHERAENL
ROT:
2018 2017
—E—-)\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
T 7 TT
Total debt BEB 30,847,432 69,421,129
Less: Bank balances and cash, BRTEBRERS
including bank trust BIERITELERP
accounts (Note 26) (FF7E26) (161,352,873)  (180,697,961)
Net debt BB FE 130,505,441 (111,276,832)
Total equity RmBE 378,175,755 336,865,300
Adjusted capital R Y N 378,175,755 336,865,300
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio ERECAERAR L X N/AZ i N/AT 75

Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

3.3 AFE{EZMHE
TRIZEEFEDTARATFEE
LERMTE - ZBERIERWMT:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e (EREEHBERNEREMS
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHmE(CREFHE) (F—

&) -
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within o ZEENBEANEE (EBR)X

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

M (R ER) BRZGA
BE(TBEEE—RZHRE)
(B=8) o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UMBEMER(£)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEZHE (&)

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based e EEXABBUYIIREAIER
on observable market data (that is, unobservable ZMEBEZE ASE (&
inputs) (level 3). FERZEABE) (F=

&) o
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@t -1 s5-4 5=
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\EF

+ZA=+—-H
Financial assets at fair value ZAFEFFABZZ
through profit or loss SREE (f5He4d)
(Note 24)
- securities held for trading —H{EEEZE 5 17,043,700 17,043,700 - -
- mandatorily required to be — B IR EADE A

classified as at fair value BRTERABR

through profit or loss 10,726,076 - 20 10,726,056
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+%F
+-A=1+—H
Financial assets at fair value &2 F{EFFABRZ
through profit or loss cREE (fisF24)
(Note 24)
- securities held for trading —#{EE E &5 23,512,550 23,512,550 - =
- Designated as at fair value —J§ERAFEGA
through profit or loss B& 10,763,280 = 10,763,280 -
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no RZE-—NER=ZZT—tF
transfers of fair value measurements between Level +ZA=+—H ' F—8% K
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level F= &ZF'?IETH—J F1E
3. HAEER BE=ZGINET
EEEYNEE =i

EELMEMERAT | —B—N\FER 153



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERE(=Z)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEZHE (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements FHAFE=RALBEIAEZEH
Significant
Valuation unobservable
techniques inputs Range
EXFUHE
fEEAE B\ B i & [
Loan receivable with equity Discounted Floating 4.35%
convertible term cash flow interest rate
BEETEBRESNERER BRHIRIA S RE F B =
The fair value of the loan receivable with the term of RS EIR A B AT iRk s 2 BN
convertible equity at the end of reporting period was ERZRAFEDBEREEE R
determined based on the discounted cash flow of the RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H
expected cash flow estimated by the management of the HBENEAReRE2MRES
Group as at 31 December 2018. The investment was MEETE ZIREHEBERZ-ZZT—N
subsequently refunded to the Group on 7 January 2019. F-HtARETAKH-
The movements during the period in the balance of these HARZEE="RAFEFEZ
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: EREFINT
HK$
BT
Loan receivable with equity convertible term BEETERERNERER
At 1 January 2018 R_E—-—NF—-H—H S
Payment for purchases BENX 10,726,056
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H 10,726,056
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.4 Financial instruments by category

BAFsE b EE ()
34 SMIANE

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
T 7T
Financial assets classified as loans R iEiR A MR R HE
and receivables as per consolidated %2 #8 /& E 7k & E W
statement of financial position HEZCHEE
Statutory deposits and other assets (A F &4 & E & E 505,001 505,001
Trade receivables FEWE 558 24,015,171 9,424,160
Deposits and other receivables & M H b fE U FRIE 3,653,882 21,012,266
Loans and receivables B R e WRIE 6,534,605 597,960
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIAS
including restricted cash (BEXERHR®) 161,352,873 180,697,961
196,061,532 212,237,348
Financial assets at fair value through & 2 F BT AEZE 2
profit or loss EEMEE 27,769,776 34,275,830
223,831,308 246,513,178
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 47 & B Ak L 3R &
as per consolidated statements of ~ HEEKATIR Z @B &
financial position
Trade payables JERTE 5 5KIA 8,271,122 7,567,101
Other payables and accruals Ho b B FRI8 & E T IR 15,775,576 7,401,511
Borrowings B 4,497,498 54,392,813
28,544,196 69,361,425
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets
other than goodwill

The Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
intangible assets, in order to ascertain the amount
of amortisation charges for each reporting period.

Impairment of intangible assets other than
goodwill

The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible
assets other than goodwill have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policy
stated in note 2.8. If the recoverable amount of
an intangible asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The assessment of the recoverable amount
requires the use of estimates and assumptions.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
(c) Credit risk of trade and other receivables and

(d)

loans and receivables

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix approach
to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
determination of default rates takes into account
historical data and forward looking information
which involves a significant degree of management
judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the
customers or the forecast economic conditions
were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be
higher than estimated.

Impairment of interests in associates
Determining whether interests in associates are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of the interests in associates. The Group
recognised the impairment of interests in associate
based on an assessments of future economic
benefits of the investment that will flow to the Group
in prior years. The associate ceased its business
due to the policy review by the PRC government,
and such review has not yet completed up to
present. Where the policy will be completed and the
expectation is different from the originate estimate,
such difference will impact the interests in associate
in the period in which such estimates has been
changed.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
(e) Estimated useful lives and impairment of

property, plant and equipment

The Group has significant property, plant and
equipment. The Group is required to estimate the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to ascertain the amount of depreciation charges for
each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of
purchase of these assets after considering business
developments and the Group’s strategies. The
Group performs annual reviews to assess the
appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected
adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results,
negative industry and economic trends. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of the
review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
() Income taxes

(9)

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
overseas jurisdictions and Hong Kong. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination are made.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which depends on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
also requires determination of the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option or appreciation right, volatility
and dividend vyield and making assumptions about
them. The Group use a binomial model for new
share options scheme to measure the fair value
of equity-settled transactions with employees at
the grant date. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in note 35.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s

accounting policies

Determining the basis on impairment made on the
interests in associates

The Group has made substantial investments in
associates. The Group conducts impairment reviews
of these assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

During 2018, after reviewing the business environment
and past performance of the investments, management
considers that no reversal of impairment for the PRC
associates (2017: HK$31,754,373) (Note 19) due to the
continuing suspension of business of those associates in
the foreseeable future.

As the commodities trading policies review conducted
by the government of Qianhai, there was a suspension
on the business operation of Qianhai First China, an
associate of the Group, in prior year. The review was
still not completed as at the end of the current reporting
period and therefore the business operation of Qianhai
First China has not yet resumed up to present. Due to
the uncertainty in the timing of the new industry policies
introduced, the management of the Group considers that
it is appropriate not to reverse any impairment recognised
in prior years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s

accounting policies (continued)

Determining the basis on impairment refundable
earnest money paid for proposed business
acquisition in previous year

The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,052,000) for the
proposed acquisition for the entire registered capital
of Mingin Quantum in January 2015. The Group has
received the collateral which is entire shares of Mingin
Quantum from the vendor. The proposed acquisition
terminated in May 2015 and the Group filed an arbitration
application (the “Arbitration”) to South China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (“SCIA”) for
the repayment of the overdue receivables.

Although the Final Judgment ordered the vendors to
repay the refundable earnest money to the Group, the
vendor did not return the said deposits to the Group.
On 6 June 2017, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) legal advisor of the Company received the
execution judgment (the “Execution Judgment”) issued
by Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”) of Suining
District, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017. According
to the execution judgment, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the said deposits
from the vendor and the Court concluded that the
vendor owns no executable assets after he pledged his
shares of the Mingin Quantum to the Group. The Group
continued to communicate with its PRC lawyer to follow
up the claims from the Court during the current year
but the status was not changed. The management had
made an impairment of refundable earnest money paid
the proposed acquisition of Mingin Quantum in year
2017. Based on the facts and circumstances described
above, the management considers the recoverability
of refundable earnest money paid for the aforesaid
acquisition is remote.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s
accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles
trading business
The Group assesses its business relationship with
suppliers and customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles business and determines that the Group
acts as a principal in some arrangements and acts as
agent in other arrangements. The factors taken into
account by management in assessing whether the Group
acts as the principal or agent include:

(ii)

Whether the Group had the primary responsibility for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified good or
service.

Whether the Group has inventory risk before the
specified good or service has been transferred to
a customer and whether the Group is exposed to
significant inventory risk. The Group considered that
it has minimal inventory risk in respect of situtations
where the Group concluded that it itself is just an
agent in arranging goods to be delivered to the
customers. In those situations, basically, the Group
only places purchase orders to suppliers after it has
received sales orders from customers. On the other
hand, where the Group concludes that it itself is a
principal, it is mainly relating to situtations where
the Group has significant inventory risk regarding
trading of the motor vehicles which the Group did
not receive any sale orders from customers before
purchasing the motor vehicles from the suppliers.

Whether the Group has discretion in establishing the
price for the specified good or service and whether
the Group is exposed to significant price risk. The
Group basically agreed the price of the motor
vehicles with the customers before purchasing the
motor vehicles from the suppliers in situations where
the Group concludes that it itself is an agent while
the Group has discretion in establishing the price for
the motor vehicles with the customers or exposure
to significant price risk for the sales transactions
where the Group concludes that it is a principal.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EXEFHEFTRAE (&)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s 42 ERAATSHIBERELHZE

accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles

trading business (continued)

(iv)  Whether the pre-agreed sales contracts are
legally binding for the customers even under the
circumstances that only insignificant deposits
received from the customers before the Group
settling the entire purchase amounts taking into
account the fact that HKFRS 15 has specifically
removed the factor about whether the entity is
exposed to credit risk for the amount receivable
from the customer.

Motor vehicles purchased for the transactions in
agency nature

In arrangement entered during the year, the Group
arranged the purchase of the motor vehicles on behalf of
its customers under as agency arrangement. The motor
vehicles had arrived at the public warehouses. However,
due to the delay in custom declaration, the motor vehicles
are still kept in the public warehouse as 31 December
2018 and up to the date when the consolidated financial
statement are authorised for issue. In the opinion of the
Company’s directors (after consulting its PRC lawyer and
taking into accounts), the possibility for the customers
to walk away from the contracts and request for the
compensation is low. Therefore the purchase amounts
of the motor vehicles for these agency arrangement of
HK$23,004,479 had been classified as a prepayment and
no provision of the compensation needed to be made due
to the delay.
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5.

REVENUE
Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

5. Wz
W 25 41 5>

REIBEMRIMBERIDONELAOK

major products or service lines is as follows: Enk el (TN
2018 2017
—F-N\f —tF
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Revenue from contracts with HEMBGHREERF1REE
customers within the scope MEER S kS
of HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products or BEIZEMIRBERD
service lines
— Commission income from securities — &5 KEE&LHAS
and futures brokerage services g A BR 7% 661,470 724,089
- Trading of electronic student cards ~ —$4&EE FE4 &
and school safety products RE X2 Em 126,913 176,621
— Provision of electronic student card —iREEEFELEET S
platform 3,301,471 5,105,830
— Service income from provision of —REREEM
stock information Z R HA 226,972 839,364
— Sales of motor vehicle where —AEFRETEEFMNZ
the Group acts as principal AEEE 337,492,350 19,202,360
— Agency fee income from —-AEE G2 REBEBERAR
trading of motor vehicles and Be R B8
accessories sourcing 2,485,662 2,403,970
344,294,838 28,452,234
Revenue from other sources REHMBIKRREZWKE
— Interest income from clients —RERPZFBWA 536,140 734,163
Revenue g 344,830,978 29,186,397
Proceeds from trading of securities HEFEH TS HIA - 2,214,371
Turnover L 344,830,978 31,400,768
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BB HREER
recognition within the scope of "k155ﬁ§l§ Nk
HKFRS 15 Was R R A
— Over time — IR By R ER 3,528,443 5,945,194
— At a point in time — R F R 340,766,395 22,507,040
344,294,838 28,452,234

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
geographic markets is disclosed in note 6.
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Notes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

A MR R M

—NF+ZRA=+—RLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SEEH
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the ERERRECERRARR 2T
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company. FE(MTEE]) TESEEMX
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in EBZ2ARRE UFZRRAERSEE
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating RoBEZEREETEENH-
segments were determined based on these reports.
In current year, the Group was organized into six operating E/\Zr'iiﬁ CAREBESANEEEIHRF
divisions and each of the operating divisions represented an ZEBEBHPIREK— TI EERAZEHRD
operating and reportable segment: (1) provision of brokerage % TR EELEEREHFREFSBHER
and securities margin financing services; (2) precious metals %:QBESBHRERS MEL: (3 )iﬁ’E
spot trading and brokerage; (3) trading of electronic student EFELBRRELEZEMREHRSE
cards and school safety products and provision of electronic BAETR WEERBERE: 6 )?m
student card platform; (4) trading and principal investments; (5) HREZEARMPERT  RO)HEEE
provision of stock information and research services; and (6) DR ERERS -
sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services.
The segment information of the reportable segments for the BHE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HBILFE
year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows: ZAMESH2AHERAT -
Trading of
electronic
student cards
and school
Brokerage safety Provision of Sales of
and products and stock motor
securities Precious provision of information  vehicles and
margin metals spot electronic Trading and and provision of
financing tradingand  student card principal research agency
services brokerage platform investments services services Total
HEEY
BEERKE
HER B8R R2ER Rt
E5RES REXAR REEF BE REEAR HERER
HERE EIERE BEEES EE‘?&Q WRRE REKERE @
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
fior oo AT AT B B B
Disaggregated by timing of BRUBASENE5R
revenue recognition within BENEUERERERAS
the scope of HKFRS 15
Over time REHA - - 3,301,471 - 226,972 - 3,528,443
At a point in time REHY 661,470 126913 - - 330978012 340,766,395
661,470 = 3,428,384 - 26072 339978012 344,204,838
Segment revenue from external HREFHHUA
customers 1,197,610 = 3,428,384 = 26972 339978012 344,830,078
Other income and loss, BABHHEMBAR
net by segment EEFE 64,334 30,017 14,551 (6,440,602) 111,869 486,955  (5,731,076)'
Segment results in‘aué (3,681,127) (230530)  (1,799,857)  (13,323,725)  (5,969,203) (6,684,411)  (31,688,853)
Net unallocated expenses AARRLFE (12,529,657)
Other income and loss, net /Mﬁ(/\&@}@@@ 228,800
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries Ed%W%’AETZ%Té 12,360,193
Finance costs RERA (412,593)
Interest income FIBMA 27,212
Loss before income tax BRESHAER (32,014,898)
Income tax income FEHKA 181,520
Loss for the year FRER (31,833,378)
1 Equivalent to the total balances stated in note 7 L B3P 7 2 AR TT

ZE-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁ*ﬂiﬁ*ﬁl (%)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the HE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: sl $ﬁ &5 D2 A HERAT
Trading of
electronic
student cards
and school
Brokerage safety Provision of Sales of
and products and stock motor
securities Precious provision of information  vehicles and
margin metals spot electronic Trading and and provision of
financing tradingand  student card principal research agency
services brokerage platform investments services services Total
HEET
BEERRE
L ESE RRERR Rt
FHREL  RERER REST EER REEAR  HEAER
BEARE gERE  BEETA ERE AR REKERSY @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$
B A B BT BT AT AT
Disaggregated by timing of BERHBASEAE R
revenue recognition within BEMRNERDERAS
the scope of HKFRS 15
Over time RERE = = 5,105,330 = 839,364 = 5,945,194
At a point in time RS 724,089 - 176,621 - - 21,606,330 22,507,040
724,089 - 5,282,451 - 839,364 21,606,330 28,452,234
Segment revenue from ¢l AHRA
external customers 1,458,252 - 5,282,451 - 839,364 21,606,330 29,186,397
Other income and loss, BABHHEBBEAR
net by segment ERFE 93,289 (74,134) 32228 (37,254,892) 612,905 76,549 (36,514,055)"
Segment results PHEE (3,310,926) (494,309)  (16,231,861)  (44,726,648)  (28,005,672) 2,853,774 (89,915,642)
Net unallocated expenses KAERZFE (11,516,120)
Other income and loss, net HpWARBESE 205,991
Finance costs BEKA (229,303)
Interest income MEBA 388,808'
Share of loss of associates F’E HHENAER (6,028,114)
Impairment loss of interests REERRAER RAEEE
in associates (31,754,373)
Loss before income tax BRETEHAER (138,848,753)
Income tax income FEHKA 2,545,494
Loss for the year FRER (136,303,259)
! Equivalent to the total balances stated in note 7 1 Bt sY7 2 S 5B ARTS

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses is
adjusted losses before interest and taxes. To arrive at adjusted
losses, the Group’s losses are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as gains
on disposal of subsidiaries, share of losses of associates,
impairment loss on interests in associates and head office or
corporate administration costs.

R @& n & %%U‘XEETEZE%Z%?DB?
MBRRAREHEER RHEDNLH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEEH (&)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHIEFE
2018 is as follows: ZHMYEERAT :
Trading of
electronic
student
cards and
Brokerage school safety
and products and Provision of Sales of motor
securities Precious  provision of stock  vehicles and
margin  metals spot electronic  Tradingand  information  provision of
financing  trading and  student card principal  and research agency
services brokerage platform  investments services services  Unallocated Total
&
i B354ER
BER B2E RERZERR R
EEREE  BAXAR REEY EER RESAR  HERER
AR GERE  FEEFE BERE WERE REKERB ROE Foh
HKS HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS$ HK$
7 ET E 7 ET #E &7 EN
Addition to property, plant nE BERFERE
and equipment 6,450 - 47,076 - 7,931 1,016,714 244,610 1,322,781
Depreciation and amortisation 47 & k% 1,620 43,690 164,394 16,688 428,481 439,291 1,718,443 2,812,607
Written down of inventories - - 1,558,832 - - - - 1,558,832
Fair value losses on securities HFRE
trading - - - 6,468,850 - - - 6,468,850
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (& KB 2 7] 2 W - - - - - - 12,360,193 12,360,193
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IBER(F)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_ZT—+F+T-_A=1+T—HLEFE
2017 is as follows: ZHMDEERDT
Trading of
electronic
student
cards and
Brokerage school safety
and products and Provision of ~ Sales of motor
securities Precious provision of stock  vehicles and
margin metals spot electronic Trading and information provision of
financing tradingand  student card principal  and research agency
services brokerage platform investments services services Unallocated Total
HE
 EIEEER
_ #gR 848 RER2ERR R
EZRES  RERHR REET REEAR  HERER
HERY GRky  BEETA BERE RUKEERE AR @t
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS$ HK$
AT BT BT B BT AT AT
Addition to property, plant nE BEREERE
and equipment - - 116,056 - 3,439,454 932,389 141,654 4,629,453
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & J & & - 121,985 2,999,917 49,992 530,049 3,157 1,675,784 5,380,884
Impairment of property, plant 91 B2 k& EHE
and equipment - - 996,460 - - - - 966,460
Change in fair value of contingent BRI AREZ ATEES
consideration receivable - - 13,441,448 - - - - 13,441,448
Fair value losses on securites ~ #5EE A TEEE
trading - - - 34,756,990 - - - 34,756,990
Impairment of refundable eamest 3t@% FERHEKIE
money paid for proposed AR SR
business acquisition in prior year - - - - 23,052,000 - - 23,052,000
Impairment loss of interests i~ B & A AR 2 REEE
associates - - - - - - 31,754,373 31,754,373
Share of loss of associates EREBEARER - - - - - - 6,028,114 6,028,114

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

SEER (&)
R-E—NER—

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018

—tF+=A

EREEEEERAF |

and 2017 are as follows:

=+t—H E’J/\*BQF&@TJZDT-

Segment assets 2018 2017
PHEE —F—N\F —tF
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Brokerage and securities margin K RBHREFSHERS
financing services 30,660,935 34,832,881
Precious metals spot trading and BEeBRERH RELRE
brokerage 18,363,164 19,591,506
Trading of electronic student HEBTEEEK
cards and school safety products RE %2 Em
and provision of electronic student LRHEEFELETS
card platform 7,790,384 9,632,932
Trading and principal investments EERAERE 17,177,710 53,328,020
Provision of stock information and TR R E A R I 5 AR 7
research services 54,076,132 42,404,137
Sales of motor vehicles and HE B RIEHRIERE
provision of agency services 182,185,908 175,851,667
310,254,233 335,641,143
Unallocated KA 101,877,471 73,935,352
Consolidated assets HEEE 412,131,704 409,576,495
Segment liabilities 2018 2017
SEEE —F—N\F —tF
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Brokerage and securities margin KERBEFRBSBERS
financing services 8,430,923 7,750,081
Precious metals spot trading and BEeBRERH RELRE
brokerage 319,792 337,086
Trading of electronic student HEBTELERK
cards and school safety products RE %2 Em
and provision of electronic student LRHEFELEETS
card platform 564,294 195,515
Trading and principal investments EENBERE - 36,760
Provision of stock information and REREEMRHARRE
research services 240,344 232,582
Sales of motor vehicles and HERERERRERSE
provision of agency services 15,937,754 53,370,110
25,493,107 61,922,134
Unallocated AOE 8,462,842 10,789,061
Consolidated liabilities FeasE 33,955,949 72,711,195

ZE-NFEFR
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, statutory deposits and other
assets, inventories, trade, and other receivables, deposits, loan
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, contract liabilities, current income tax
payables and deferred income tax liabilities.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the

SEEHE (7F)
DHMEETZBREYE HERRE-
BIVEE - i:ﬁ?ﬁ’f&ﬁﬁﬂéﬁ? FE
e B 5 5RA e B JE W ROR - R
EWER BAFEFAAER Z/i\ mE
EURRITEBRIEE -

DHMBEIERRENEZNA Hit
BNRBAREFER aNAE BN
AHmENREEMENHAE-

AEEXTERBFERPEEZ KBS
REPZWAREF MRS D

geographic areas in which the customers is located.

2018 2017
—E'—N\%F —+tF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Revenue g

Hong Kong &5 1,197,610 1,458,252
The PRC H 343,633,368 27,728,145
344,830,978 29,186,397

Other income and loss, net Hiblg AN REEFE
Hong Kong BB (6,122,319) (36,674,217)
The PRC A [ 646,355 754,961
(5,475,964) (35,919,256)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The geographical location of specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets,
statutory deposits, deposit paid and other assets, and location
of operations, in the case of interests in associates.

6.

SEEHE (7F)

HRYE BELRE BEHRRDE
EZHBUENEREENERULEM
EOHRNEREE ZERE CHES
NEMEE HiBUEHEREME
EEMME  HRNRBE QR 2
AIERNEEMME

2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—+F
HK$ HK$
T T
Specified non-current assets BEERBEE
Hong Kong &%E 28,361,217 29,846,907
The PRC s 2,370,202 5,681,042
30,731,419 35,527,949
Information about major customers EEERZEH

During the current year, two of the Group’s customers located
in the PRC accounted for 56.1% and 30.4% of the Group’s
revenue in amount of HK$193,464,440 and HK$104,909,686
respectively, which were from segment of sales of motor
vehicles and provision of agency services.

During 2017, two of the Group’s customers, located in
the PRC accounted for 15.4% and 59.8% of the Group’s
revenue in the amount of HK$4,517,263 and HK$17,459,632
respectively, which were from segment of trading of electronic
student cards and school safety products and provision of
electronic student card platform and sales of motor vehicles
and provision of agency services respectively.

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

EAFAN AEEMERAEFBRNEF
D RMEANE B I E556.1% 1230.4% £ 58
2 7 5193,464,4407% 7t 52 104,909,686
B TIRBEETERRERERYS
28R

REZT—+F AEEREBRETPHL
BPEAREEWZS15.4%K%59.8% &%
5 Bl B4,517,2637%8 T }%17,459,6327%
TN BREHEETFELEEZERRE
TEEMURREEFEEFLE K
EAERRERER
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7.

OTHER INCOME AND LOSS, NET 7. HtBAREBIEEE
2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—+F
HK$ HK$
I 7 TT
Other income Hibdg A
CCASS fee income RREZERGERKA 18,792 17,708
Handling fee income FEBEWA - 52,906
Interest income on bank deposits RITF R F B A 377,655 558,149
Other interest income! H A F B g AL 238,919 197,387
Dividend income from BIEEEZHMREWMA
securities held for trading 27,689 867,288
Sundry income MIEWA 141,954 684,380
805,009 2,377,813
Other gain or loss, net HibWr sy 548 % E
Financial assets at fair value - /NS = N = Ergvd
through profit or loss (Note 24) SHEE (Wik24)
— Unrealised fair value losses —-REBBEBFLEEL
on securities trading NEEEE (6,468,850) (34,756,990)
— Realized losses on trading of securites —HEFEH 2 B &IHEE - (3,478,154)
— Exchange gain — & 7 U&= 222,328 218,039
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEE B REE
plant and equipment FriS &1 - (279,964)
— Written off of property, — W% 33 R AR RS
plant and equipment (34,451) -
(6,280,973)  (38,297,069)
(5,475,964)  (35,919,256)

! The other interest income of the Group are arising from the loan

receivables from third parties and the interest income from the financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss.

REBMEMA S WARE BRE=TTEK
MR HEFABRZ SBEEMSZHM B
Ao
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MIERF
2018 2017
—E-)\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
T BT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITEFZFEAL 171,590 229,303
Interest expenses on unsecured EERAEE R EMAX
borrowings — related party (Note 38ii)) — A REE AL (M FE38(i)) 241,003 =
412,593 229,303
9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KFIEBiREE
2018 2017
—E-)\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
T BT
Loss before income tax has been BrETISTLATES 18 -
arrived at after charging (crediting): Bk (5t A) T3BIE:
Auditors’ remuneration 2% S0 AN B &
— audit services —FBZIRTF 510,000 470,000
— other services — H th AR 75 70,000 150,000
Foreign exchange difference, net E X =7 FE (222,328) (218,039)
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEWEz2LERNAS
rented premises 2,387,261 1,770,705
Legal and professional fee FEEREEER 1,559,058 976,291
Declaration services fee W RS E A 1,423,382 =
Exhibition and marketing fee RERTHERER 2,206,062 =
Transportation, accessories and storage B B MNAKE 3,805,870 =
10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10. EETEAMRAX
2018 2017
—E-)\EF —Z
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
Wages and salaries I&ENEHS 19,507,080 18,826,907
Share options granted to BTESREE 2BRE
Directors and employees - 877,444
Pension costs — defined contribution RIS KA
schemes — & B RGTE 1,464,869 664,070
Employee benefits expenses including EERAMMAZ
Director’s remuneration BREESEMNE 20,971,949 20,368,421

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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11.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2018

11.

EFRIETHAENE

BE-_E—-N\E+-A=+—HILEE

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Name of Director Fees in kind scheme Total
Fe
BER  BHhetEZ
Sz Lk BYAE EEHR Ry
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT BT BT
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IEREL
Chief Executive Officer) (FERITHBEH) - 1,800,000 18,000 1,818,000
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REignt - 600,000 18,000 618,000
Non-executive Director EHTESE
Mr. Liu Runtong AEREE - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 5t 4 - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RALHR 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Li Jianxing TROKE 125,000 - - 125,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen R 81 U 120,000 - - 120,000
375,000 2,400,000 36,000 2,811,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EEREETBAEMNE (&
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—+tF+A=1T—BHLEFE
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Name of Director Notes Fees in kind scheme Total
(Note (i)
e
BER RK&HEL
Bt Mt aE we EMFla EEHR e
(F3E()
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and ITRELE
Chief Executive Officer) (XRRITHER) - 1,800,000 18,000 1,818,000
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui BRIt - 600,000 18,000 618,000
Non-executive Director FRTEE
Mr. Liu Runtong el iohes = S = =
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers
s (i) - 877,444 - 877,444
Independent non-executive BUAEHITEE
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Li Jianxing FROLE 125,000 - - 125,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen [F3D°€ €5 120,000 - = 120,000
375,000 3,277,444 36,000 3,688,444
Note: i
(i) Benefits in kind include share options. During the year ended 31

December 2017, the entitled portion out of the total 20,000,000 share
options with an aggregate fair value of HK$877,444 were granted by the
Group to the Director of the Company under the Company’s share option
scheme.

“Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind” paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid in respect
of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2017: Nil).

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

0} EVFmeEERE-BE-S—tF+=
A=+—RALLFE AEERBEAAGZE
AR 5T & i 3% F AR 5 #E F 2 $620,000,000
MEBERERPRENESD ZBOEREZA
VB B877,44478 7T

ENHTESAATARZ[FHE 2
MEREDNZ] —RAREZFIALE
BARBIREMERRREENEBRE
e TR < -

FR AEFRVTEREESIHTAME
YE &R 5] A0 B8 sk 7 0 BE AN &= [ B 2 22 B
SERBBEHE(ZS— L5 &) -F
W IWEEERERRZRETAEH S
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. AEREHFAT

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2017: three) directors of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017:
Nil).

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2017: two) individuals are as follows:

FREEBEERBHALOEMS
—EFLE ZE)EF REZME
AR -

FRAAEETERNRERSHFALX
MERIB S E ARSI INBE R BN E
e BRI RRERAE (2Tt
FE)

S = (=F—4F : M) ATH B
THRBMT:

2018 2017

—T—)\&F T tF

HK$ HK$

I BT

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMmME 5,805,000 5,160,000
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B3R 52,500 36,000
5,857,500 5,196,000

= (ZE—tF MU ESFALZ
e X TyIEE :

The emoluments of the three (2017: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2018 2017

—F-N\fE e

Number of Number of

individual individual

HK$ T A8 A
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 1 -
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0012 1,500,000 - -
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 %2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 %3,000,000 1 1
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INCOME TAX INCOME

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as
the group companies that are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
had incurred a tax loss for the year (2017: Nil). PRC Enterprise
Income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2017: 15%
to 25%) on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
arising in or derived from PRC for the year.

In accordance with the “Catalogue of Encouraged Industries
in Western Region” approved by the State Council, as one
of the subsidiaries engaged in an encouraged business in
Chongqing, it enjoyed the reduced PRC Enterprise Income
tax rate of 15% in last year. However, this preferential tax rate
was not applicable in current year due to the change in PRC
government policy.

13. FAigHUA

EENEHRAFEREBELENLR
BEB 2 AT ERBEAEIER E16.5%
(ZZE—tF:16.5%):tE-AZHE
FEHFENER D RF NERIEE
B T ERMERELEENERIE
HEHE (ZE—FE) PR ER
BHEARPEMBARFRNEES KR
B BMERBEMIE25% (ZF—+
F:15%E25% ) T RETHR

R IR i B RS Be A 2 K70 BB 1 S B
EXBE) HPF-—RHBARNREE
MRETZMCEBBERL #NEF
FETEECEMBHERHRE15% B
B E-BEREARTEBRAFREDN
N ERFEDSTEM-

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Current income tax: BN ERFTIS AL :
Current tax on profits for the year A A B ER B IR
- PRC Enterprise Income tax —FECEMSR 29 58,965
Total current tax BV ERTR B 48 58 29 58,965
Deferred tax income (Note 32): BIEFTIS T (MI7E32) ¢
Current year KEE (181,549) (2,604,459)
Income tax income FriS A (181,520) (2,545,494)

Under the current general provision of the PRC enterprise
income tax law and published tax circulars, deferred taxation
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on
unremitted earnings of a PRC associate of the Group at the
rate of 10%. As the management made a full impairment on the
interests in PRC associate in last year, the deferred tax liabilities
attributable to withholding tax on unremitted earnings of the
PRC associate made previously had been fully reversed in last
year accordingly.

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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13.

INCOME TAX INCOME (continued)

No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect
of the unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2018
and 2017, the unrecognised temporary differences in respect
of the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries attributable
to the Group are RMB54,026,789 and RMB57,679,623
respectively.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable to losses of the consolidated entities as follows:

13. FIRHKA (&)

HRAEBBEREEHZENBARZ
EEEK BEEEZREXBEITERTR
152k E - iR Mt P BB ARl 2K
ERBMNEREEHBEEE - R_F
—NER_E—+F+-_A=+—8"
AERBEBAEBR 2 KENBRARZ
REHBF EREZEDFAARE
54,026,7897T & A R#57,679,6237T ©

WRAEARGEER BB 2B RG
B OAEBEZRIESHABEHESR
BReBENE:

2018 2017
—E—-)\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
#IT BT

BR P 15 354 A1 85 18

Loss before income tax

(32,014,898)  (138,848,753)

Tax calculated at company’s domestic
tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

AR B AT R16.5%
(ZE—+%F:16.5%)

FE 2R (5,282,458) (22,910,044)

Tax effects of: LANIEE 2 S & -
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries —REMEEEREEZ

operating in other jurisdictions oSN A NP (1,245,479) (3,075,400)
- Income not subject to tax — AR A (3,024,260) (8,214)
- Expenses not deductible for —HHIBBE MR

tax purposes 53 436,747 14,394,607
- Others —HAth 1,115,445 1,427,236
- Unused tax losses not recognised —RKERZADAMEERE 2,790,560 9,014,491
- Tax loss not allowable — NERFR 2 A EE 4,154,904 1,674,328
— Prior year’s tax losses utilized —FRAZBRETFE

in this year s EE - (523,051)
— Temporary differences not provided —ABEB I ERER 872,992 (116,537)
— Reversal of withholding tax — BB - (2,422,910)
— Under-provision in prior year —NEFELE 29 =
Income tax income Fr S U A (181,520) (2,545,494)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

A MR R M

—NF+ZRA=+—RLFE

Effect of new issues of shares

BTk E

321,780,822

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AKAEEEAEEERER KB EEIE
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the TR B A T 8RR &
following data:
2018 2017
—F—N\F —+F
HK$ HK$
I 7S TT
Loss E5t8
Loss for the purposes of basic and ARFtESRERK
diluted loss per share ﬁ&ﬁ@’ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ?ﬁ (31,213,014)  (136,497,133)
2018 2017
—F—N\F —t
Number of shares AV g =]
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BzEBTEER 6,498,958,120 6,498,958,120
Effect of cancellation of escrow FHETEE R CRYD
shares retrieved -2 (101,917,908) =

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for calculating basic

R EEREAREERE

EEITEABNEFEH

and diluted loss per share (Note) (H3E) 6,718,821,034  6,498,958,120
2018 2017
—E—N\FE —tF
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Loss per share FREE (0.0046) (0.0210)
Diluted loss per share FR#EEER (0.0046) (0.0210)
Note: Bt 5
The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December BE-Z—)\FR=ZF—tF+-A=+—HIEF
2018 and 2017 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options ENSREEEEZAETEBRIARRESE

outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS 15. Y% HBRRE
Office
Plant and Land and Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
machinery buildings improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total
BAZRE
HERRH IHRiEF HEHERE RER EERT RE @zt
(Note 1)
(BizE1)
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
BT AT B BT B A BT
As at 1 January 2017 RZ%-t£-f-8
Cost it 861,157 40,327,455 952,626 14,926,695 539,322 5,642,314 63,249,569
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (432,355) (9,544,164) (875,379) (11,263,289) (477,083) (4,869,447 (27,461,691)
Net book amount REFE 428,802 30,783,291 77,247 3,663,412 62,259 772,867 35,787,878

Year ended 31 December 2017 ~ HE-F-t%&

+ZA=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount 428,802 30,783,291 77,247 3,663,412 62,259 772,867 35,787,878
Additions 7 - - 2,061,341 1,266,507 90,720 1,210,885 4,629,453
Currency translation difference ERERER 16,509 - 71,410 182,004 - 67,710 337,633
Disposals and written off HE R - - - (293,087) - - (293,087)
Impairment loss (Note 2) REBE (FF2) (287,574) = 2,411) (676,415) = = (966,460)
Depreciation charge FERR (157,787 (1,613,009) (318240)  (2915,79%) (48,440) (327,572)  (5,380,884)
Closing net book amount HREEFE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1,723,890 34,114,533
As at 31 December 2017 R-F-t&+-R=+-H
Cost HA 927,924 40,327,455 3,122,176 13,806,510 630,042 7,104,285 65,918,342
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERRE
impairment ©27924) (11157263  (1,232,889)  (12,579,885) (525503 (5380345  (31,803,809)
Net book amount EAFE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1,723,890 34,114,533
Year ended 31 December 2018 ~ HE-T—-\&
+ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount SNETEE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1723800 34,114,533
Additions NE - - 811,218 495,133 16,430 - 1,322,781
Currency translation difference EBERER - - (48,000) (34,624) - (67,484) (150,108)
Disposals and written off HE R - - - (34,451) - - (34,451)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (1,653,481) (740,441) - (53,096) (2,447,018)
Depreciation charge TERE - (1,613,098) (328,336) (328,108) (53,254) (455,476) (2,778,272)
Closing net book amount HREEFE - 27,557,094 670,688 584,134 67,715 1,147,834 30,027,465
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZB-\E+ZHA=1+-H
Cost mA 880,250 40,327,455 1,746,077 11,916,175 646,472 6,624,259 62,140,690
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERRE
and impairment (880,250) (12,770,361) (1,075,389) (11,332,041) (578,757) (5,476,425) (32,113,225)

Net book amount EmFE - 21,557,094 670,688 584,134 67,715 1,147,834 30,027,465
Note: B 5T
1. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, land and buildings in Hong Kong 1. RZB-NEFRZZ—tF+_A=+—

under long lease with a carrying value of HK$27,557,094 (2017: B RERFHAREEREREEAR

HK$29,170,192) was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group 27,557,004 7L (ZF —+ 4 : 29,170,192

(Note 31). BL)ZTHREFCHAEARSBSALEE

SRATIE RAEH IR (PI3ES1) o

2. The impairment loss was related to assets that have become obsolete. 2. BEBEEREEZSREEH -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Contractual
customer
Software Trading rights relationship Total
B X5 ENEFRf st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
As at 1 January 2017 R=%¥-tF-A-H
Cost B A 26,528,746 3,224,000 201,996,340 231,749,086
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEBERAE
impairment (26,528,746)  (3,223,098)  (201,996,340)  (231,749,084)
Net book amount REFE - 2 = 2
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-F-tf¥
+ZHA=+-HILEE
Opening net book amount BREFE - 2 - 2
Addition NE 100,713 - - 100,713
Currency transaction difference EMBhEEE 3,785 - - 3,785
Closing net book amount HREEFE 104,498 2 = 104,500
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—-t&E+=-A=+-H
Cost A 26,633,244 3,224,000 201,996,340 231,853,584
Accumulated amortisation and A EHERRE
impairment (26,528,746) (3,223,998)  (201,996,340)  (231,749,084)
Net book amount REFE 104,498 2 - 104,500
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-F-0\f¥
+=ZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREmFE 104,498 2 - 104,500
Currency transaction difference ERBREER (4,077) - - (4,077)
Amortisation charges BT M (34,335) - - (34,335)
Closing net book amount HREmEFE 66,086 2 - 66,088
As at 31 December 2018 R-Z¥-\g+ZA=+-H
Cost b 22,385,577 3,024,000 201,996,340 227,605,917
Accumulated amortisation and R BERAE
impairment (22,319,491) (3,223,998)  (201,996,340) (227,539,829)
Net book amount REFE 66,086 2 - 66,088

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The

amortisation charge for the year is presented in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income separately.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il

(iv)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the software mainly represents X £
BE MRS FEH V2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144807), X £ BRI
HHRGEFZ#FV2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144929), X £ @ E NI
BR 7% 49 u5 80 {FV2.0 (Registration No: 2013SR145090) and 2.4G & JERFID
BENZ 2 AR E A (Registration No:2014SR037656) with the estimated
useful life of 10 years.

The contractual relationships with customers were acquired through the
acquisition of FIITTKE2BEEFEABR AR (transliterated as Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd) in year 2014. The management of the Group
reviewed the expected useful life of the contractual customer relationships
and determined that the useful life assessment is 8 years. The contractual
customer relationships are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the said
expected useful life of the customer relationships.

For the purpose of impairment testing of the contractual relationships
with customers and the software, those intangible assets have been
allocated to a CGU representing the operating activities of /& Il X 238
BB R A A (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd). A
impairment test of these intangible assets was carried out by management
based on value-in-use calculation and with reference to business valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer in prior year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group continued to deal
with the technical problems for adopting the Beidu navigating chips in
its products, and the technical problems were still unsolved. Based on
the impairment test performed, no reversal of impairment is made due to
unsatisfactory performance of the business in current year.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2018 represent two (2017: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2017: one) trading right on
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).

ﬁﬁ/éé (”,g
REEBHEAXNEEBREREMEE
WABRKANEBZS -

GEX

(i) RZE-—NFRZF—+F+_A=+—
B #®HEEHRAERTNRSE FEE8MH
V2.0 (& 4% 5% : 2013SR144807) ~ K £3@
RREFRHFZEFV2.0 (FEMHER:
2013SR144929) * X £ i 7 i AR 74 49 1t X
V2.0 M 45 : 2013SR145090) K2.4G
BERFIDEBZZ R ARE M (FEMETE:
2014SR037656) ' st Al E M FEA R T4 o

(i) BEPZENANBEEREEN_T-—HFE
WERIITREBRRERRAES K&
EEREEMANEFPBAENEDERSF
B WRAEERAFHFERNFE - EHNEP
BA AR R IR A AN R R AT HE SH 51 BR - B SH TH
REAEREPREN L BEHERF S

Ho
=

iy HAEOFPEARRMTZRERNANE &%

BREECHREERTAYIMREBR

ﬁﬂﬁ AREERHZREELEM - EEE

RBEFEERBEREEFEY2EME

T EEGEMETZEBEES LBV EE
EITRER A

RZB-NF+_A=+—HLFE £&
li@i’ﬁj}ﬁm?&?fﬁéuuqﬂ%ﬁﬁit#EM%
2R 2 B EE A BEMEEDR
ﬂ#xk"@i@iﬁﬁ/ﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁ' BMRAFENE
BRATEEMELRELEDSE-

vy RZB-NFTA=+—HZRZEEM
B(ZE—tF MR)BIAXFHER A
(Z2—tF R EFEHRERIMER
REV([ERPR]) 22 5%k

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

17. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 17. AERERHAMBEE
2018 2017
—T-N\E —T—+F
HK$ HK$
BT T
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEAERREEER R
Company Limited (‘HKSCC”) (IBEBHEE])
— Contribution fund deposit - REEESEK® 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit — B E 100,000 100,000
The Stock Exchange of BEABERXGMBERRATA
Hong Kong Limited
— Compensation fund deposit BEESES 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit *E1%§{£T§§ 100,000 100,000
- Stamp duty deposit —HERZze 5,000 5,000
The Securities and Futures BEABFNMPEEH
Commission of Hong Kong ERLTEE
- Deposits for responsible officers V- UN=E&n 100,000 100,000
Guangdong Previous Metals F?%%%%?ﬁ% ROLBERAA
Exchange Limited (“PMEC”) (I& RZH0])
- Reserve fund deposit -—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂiﬁi\/ 1 1
505,001 505,001
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18. RMBATZIRE
ATAR_E-N\FR-F—tF+=
AZ+—BZARAEEMBLAA

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017:

184

Place of incorporation/

B

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind  and place of share capital/registered Interest
Name of legal entity operations capital held
EMAL MR EETRE/
2 EEREER TEXBREENY it iR A otk 3
Sinofortune Financial Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 611,700 ordinary shares 100%
(BVI) Limited Limited liability company of US$1 each
Sinofortune Financial Holdings EBREES FRAR  REZR 611,700 BREE 100%
(BVI) Limited 1R EBR
Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Securities trading in HK$3 100%
company Hong Kong
TREARRT BB BRAA REEREZFEE 3BT 100%
Sinofortune Securities Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Securities and futures HK$67,000,000 100%
company brokerage and
securities margin
financing services
in Hong Kong
EEEFBRRA BA ARRA REEREZFR 67,000,000/ 10 100%
HEREAR
EFRECRERS
Sinofortune Processing Services Limited  Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Provision of a trading HKS$2 100%
company platform in Hong Kong
Sinofortune Processing Services Limited &% AR A Al REBRHEZ ST A 2B 100%
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited liability company each
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited KERAHE BRAR  REERR 1REREE 100%
1ET 2 EBR
Sinofortune Global Wealth Hong Kong, Limited liability  Provision of wealth HK$6,000,000 100%
Management Limited company management services
in Hong Kong
ERBHEHBERAA B BRATA REEREHME 6,000,000 7 100%
EERH%
Sinofortune Property Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Property holding HK$1 100%
company
ERMEARAR B BRATF SERES 18T 100%
Aceview International Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited liability company of US$1 each
HRERERAA RERLHEE BRAR  REBR 1REREE 100%
1R EBk

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBASIZIRE (&)

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind  and place of share capital/registered Interest

Name of legal entity operations capital held
MBI IR E#TRE/

& EERRER TEEBREERY AR AEE HEERD

GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 35,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited liability company of US$1 each

GoHi Holdings Limited RERLES FRAF  REEK 35,0008 BRAEE 100%

1R EBR

FUNEBHEREXABRA PRC, Foreign wholly-owned  Provision of education Registered capital 100%
(formerly known as &% & ua # enterprise information and of RMB40,000,000
(FI)BR A7) (transliterated as consultancy service
Shenzhen Sinofortune Education in PRC (formerly
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd) engaged as provision
(“Sinofortune Education”) of stock information

and research services

in the PRC)
A EEYEREAAEGRD hE NEEERE RPEREHEEARE HMERR 100%
(MBEERSHH (mﬁ\\)ﬁlﬂ&&aﬂ) ARE (2R ER S AR #40,000,0007C
([£E8%E)) ARERFEARRR

%)

FNERFHEEEBRAF PRC, Limited liability Investment holding Registered capital Disposed
(trangliterated as Shenzhen Sky company and provision of of RMB3,000,000  (2017: 100%)
Picture Culture Communications development and
Company Limited) (“Sky Picture”) design of TV programs
(Note 1 and 2) and artwork in the

PRC

mﬁ\\i% ﬁmt%}%ﬁﬁwﬂ hE BERAT RPERERR - AMERR BHE

(TBRFHR]) (MiE1ke) RERRAERG AR AR®3,000000 (ZZ—t%F:
Efir 100% )

AN EERZBENEER AT PRC, Limited liability Development and sales Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen First China  company of school safety of RMB7,000,000
School Safety Network Technology products
Company Limited)

RNEERZBRURARRA hEARAF RERHERERZER AMERR 100%

AR #7,000,0007
AN EBBERMER A PRC, Limited liability Development and Registered capital Disposed

(trangliterated as Shenzhen Wealth company sales of software of RMB52,000,000  (2017: 100%)
Alliance Networking Company Limited) for information
(“Wealth Alliance”) (Note 1 and 2) network equipment,
terminal products and
calculators in the PRC
RYERBEREMER A hE BRAT RABERERHEEERE AMERE BHE
(r=8l) (MTuﬂ)Siz) BRERY RRER ARH#52,000,000 (ZF—tF:
Ret&& 100% )
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBASIZIRE (&)

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind  and place of share capital/registered Interest
Name of legal entity operations capital held
MBI IR E#TRE/
& EERRER TEEBREERY AR AEE HEERD
AT REBRBEBRAA PRC, Limited liability Trading of electronic Registered capital 100%
(trangliterated as Shenzhen Star company student cards and of RMB45,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd) provision of electronic
student card platform
RYTREBREERAA hE BRAT HEETEERE AMERBARE 100%
RUETELEET R 45,000,0007C
FBREHEEBLEERDA PRC, Limited liability Precious metals Registered capital 80%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Guoyin company brokerage and of RMB20,000,000
Brilliant Precious Metals Limited) spot trading
(“Guoyin”)
AERECEEBEEERAA hE BRAT ERRERRRERS AMERE 80%
(TER]) AR #20,000,0007C
ERRALEEARESERAA PRC, Limited liability Sales of motor vehicles Registered capital 93.33%
(transliterated as Chongging Shengyu company and provision of of RMB150,000,000  (2017: 90%)
Hong Jia International Trading agency services (of which RMB100,000,000
Company Limited) has been paid up as at
("Sheng Yu Hong Jia") (Note 3) 31 December 2017)
EERALRARESERAR hEHRAF HENERRURE RS AMERR 93.33%
(&mihz]) (K&E3) AK¥150,000,0000 (ZF—+%F:
(& AR¥100,000,0007 90%)
WZZ—t%5
TZRA=+—HE&R)

Note 1:  The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly MizX1: HBMRABARERANEEEEXABEREZ
held by nominees on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100% ZERWB AT ZRARKZD RAEEFE
effective interest in the subsidiary. ZHBATN00%E B -

Note 2:  There subsidiaries were disposed of on 1 July 2018. MeE2: ZEMBATRZ=ZZE—/\FtA—BH

€= o
Note 3:  The proportion of ownership interests in Sheng Yu Hong Jia held by M3 : FRAREEFARALENERL OIS

the Group has been changed from 90% to 93.33% during the year. 90% & 7393.33% °

ERBIEERRYAREXEREE
BRIBEFEZHEBRR -EFERR"
FHOIEAMKE AR 2 BB ERRER
NI

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
subsidiaries

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
subsidiaries:

RMBASZRE (&)
ARMBASI ZRBERNAGR

AEBHREBEEBEMB AR Z AT A

=

2018 2017
—E-)\EF —E—+tfF
HK$ HK$
&I 7T
Commitment to provide funding RERKFLTER AR
if called 7,941,360 68,167,440

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries.

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2018 is HK$13,557,403 (2017: HK$14,903,119), of which
HK$2,474,194 (2017: HK2,654,964) is for Guoyin and
HK$11,083,209 (2017: 12,248,155) is for Sheng Yu Hong Jia.
The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiary is
not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to Guoyin
and Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the two subsidiaries of the Group
which have a material non-controlling interests (NCI). The
summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

&

AZE—NFRZ-ZFE—+tF+=A8
=t B - YEAEEAEERHERF
ZHEFZHIARBE-

BERIEERER
R-ZE-—NFE+_A=+—B3kE
A% #E 28 448 B13,557,403%8 1 ( =
T —+F:14,903,119%8 )  H &
B3R FEAE2,474,1948 T (ZF —+
% :2,654,964% T ) & B% A A 3 FE
511,083,209 Tt (=& — £ F:
12,248,155/ 70) - B E [ 8B 2 &)
RIEIE RS T NE K -

FEXHBRERZHBLSZHEE
HHTE
TREHIANEERE A ERIFFEBE
m (JFmE i as) 2 MY B 2t A) B4R Jo 2%
AEhER 2B R TX 25 2 M5 EF R
B2 B E 5 A2 5RH
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Material non-controlling interest (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries

18. RMIBATZIRE (&)
BEXRIiERER (F)
FEXHBRERZHBLASZHEE

with material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (E)
Summarized statement of financial position BRI EE
Sheng Yu Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Hong Jia Guoyin
ke Bk #ahE ElsR
2018 2018 2017 2017
—E-0\E —E-0\F —T—tF —T—tF
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT Yo
Current wE
Assets BE 180,638,540 18,363,165 174,002,368 19,524,210
Liabilities B (15,937,754) (3819,792)  (53,370,110) (337,086)
Total current net assets REEELTFE 164,700,786 18,043,373 120,632,258 19,187,124
Non-current ¥RE
Assets BE 1,547,368 - 1,849,297 67,296
Liabilities =4 - - - -
Total non-current net assets FERBEELFE 1,547,368 - 1,849,297 67,296
Net assets BEFE 166,248,154 18,043,373 122,481,555 19,254,420
Non-controlling interests FERER 11,083,209 2,474,194 12,248,155 2,654,964
Summarized statement of profit or loss and other B RAMEERAREREE
comprehensive income
Sheng Yu Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Hong Jia Guoyin
BanhE Bk EanhE BB
2018 2018 2017 2017
—E-N\f —E-0\E ZE—tF ZE—tF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT AT
Revenue g 339,978,012 - 21,606,330 -
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETERAT (BEB),/FE (6,925,413) (230,530) 2,912,736 (494,309)
Income tax expense FIBMAx (29) - (58,965) =
(Loss)/Profit for the year Ei(BE) /8 (6,925,442) (230,530) 2,858,771 (494,309)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hiv2m (BE) KA (9,670,461) (989,190) 35,783 (753,128)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E (BB WALE (16,595,903) (1,219,720 2,889,554 (1,247 ,437)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income BERREHERER
allocated to non-controlling interest 2E (BR) KWALE (1,181,902) (180,770) 288,955 (241,852)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & JE 2 f& 7 25 & 2 A% 5. -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMIBATZI®E (&)
Material non-controlling interest (continued) BT ER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries FEXHERERZHBLAGIZHBE
with material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)
Summarized statement of cash flows B mEkimE
Sheng Yu Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Hong Jia Guoyin
Ak Bk EanhE EIsR
2018 2018 2017 2017
—B-N\F —E-0\EF e —T—+F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT Yo
Net cash generated from/(used in) meEHEL/ (PH) 2
operating activities BeFE (31,384,480) 404,472 (100,095,933) 9,873,398
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEHEL/ (BA)Z
investing activities e FE 9,865,266 (10,726,055) (1,035,593) 4,858
Net cash from financing activities MEERYELE RS FE 11,103,797 - 119,592,000 =
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekReZFBEER
and cash equivalents (B /B hn%EE (10,415,417) (10,321,583) 18,460,474 9,878,256
Cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#] 23R &% {EEH 18,484,050 18,797,546 = 8,285,985
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERE& s F & (690,452) (959,542) 23,576 633,305
Cash equivalents at end of the year FRzBEEEEE 7,378,181 7,516,421 18,484,050 18,797,546

The information above is the amount before inter-company

UEEMSHKREEARBRHEZE

eliminations. LE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEQATZ2HEE
2018 2017
—E-)\E —T—tF
HK$ HK$
T 7T
Share of net assets EIEFEE - -
Started from November 2015, there was a suspension on the B-Z—hF+— A ARENEET

business operation of the associate, Qianhai First China due
to the commodities trading policies review conducted by the
government of Qianhai. Up to present, the review was still not
completed as at the end of the current reporting period and
therefore the business operation of Qianhai First China had
not yet resumed. The management of the Company do not
expect the associate can resume its business activities in the
foreseeable future. The interests in this associate had been fully

impaired in previous year.

ZE-NFEFR

ETEmMRIBERRER BaRa
ﬁf%%mi‘«%%ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁiﬁgﬁ/\m

BMEHARESDATR  BALAEE
iEZ%ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁEVI@ AARERE
TEHARZ B & A AN ] R B 2R g R iE
E¥BEES -RNEBE AR 2 EE=E R
FFEBERE-



190

NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MO OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE—-Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Apart from the above, the accumulated impairment of interests
in associates includes the full impairment on the investments in
respect of BZ (E=E) RERRX ZH L AR A A (transliterated
as First China (Liaoning) Agricultural Products Trading Centre
Company Limited) due to the continuing dormancy of the
associate during the year. This associate was indirectly held by
one of the subsidiaries in the Group and it had been disposed
of during the year through the disposal of such subsidiary.

The associate named RIFEF mBREERMER A F
(transliterated as Shenzhen Zhongcai Yingtong Information
Technology Company Limited) had been suspended by the
PRC authority. The interests in this associate had been fully
impaired in previous year.

19.

REEAT 2% (F)

Br baiE SN R E ARz a2 REt
HEERAHEE (BEE)REMRS
FLERARZERE ZBBURE  JIH
RARFEZBERNBNFEEE ML
REHAEE —FHMNEAREERER
BEREFAHEAKENE BB A
& e

B 8D FRYIR I R B R AT R A
A1 Mo B B B R - 3
g% 2 7 M 22 B DA 4 1 2 BORL
e

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2018 and RZE-—NEFERZZE—tF+=A
2017 are as follows: =t+t—B AEEBERRZFBN
T
Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and kind of Particulars of issued Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities shares held held
st AL RS FiiFE B TRG
&1 HREEEREN IEXH #1E Fi F i i
RIS EERR AR PRC, Limited Provision of trading platform Registered capital 38%
ZHRLBRAT liability company ~ for precious metal and of RMB38,000,000
(transliterated as Shenzhen provision of related
Qianhai First China International consultancy services
Commodities Exchange Centre
Limited)
AYNAEEERRE R mE ARAA REEEERHTAVRMEME AMERE 38%
XHRLERRA] B AR AR #38,000,0007T
BE(FEE)EEMRZTD PRC, Limited Sale of agricultural products, Registered capital Disposed
BRAA liability company ~ provision of transportation of RMB225,000,000 (2017: 45%)
(transliterated as First China services and e-commerce
(Liaoning) Agricultural Products services
Trading Centre Company
Limited) (Note 1)
BE(RB)RERRIFL hEl - BRAA HEREm REERREHN AMER A EHE
BRAR (FEE1) ETRBRE AR%225,000,0000 (ZZ—tF:
45% )
Note 1: The indirectly held associate had been disposed of on 1 July 2018 et ZRBEBBEZHERRNR =T —N\F

through the disposal of the subsidiary held by the Group.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The above associates are private companies and there is no
quoted market value available.

tA-HAEHLEAKENMBRRM
B

LA E RRERBERENGS
MBHRERAARK-

A EBERRIESMARRAILE™T
LEEANH2E-
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Commitments in respect of associates

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
associates:

REtEAT 2R (&)
FRBEAT ZRIE
AEBEHEERHEBE AR ZU TR
b

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—LtF
HK$ HK$
&I T
Commitment to provide funding REXKKHE THERAERZ
if called EF 21,555,105 289,412,624

Litigation in respect of associates

As at 31 December 2018, Qianhai First China has some
unresolved legal cases relating to the contracts dispute with
some investors and involving the total claimed amount of
RMB2,280,731 (equivalent to HK$2,587,444). According to
the legal opinion obtained from the Group’s PRC lawyer, the
PRC lawyer opined that from recent judgments, the courts
tends to rule in favour of the investors in claims of similar
nature, therefore it is likely Qianhai First China may have to
compensate these investors accordingly. The Group considers
that the associate has sufficient financial ability to compensate
the claim from investors, therefore no further provision of
liabilities needed to made by the Group.

Save as mentioned above, there are no other contingent
liabilities of the associates at 31 December 2018.

Individually immaterial Associates

Due to the suspension of the associate’s business, the
management of the Group consider it to be immaterial
associates. The Group has interests in an immaterial associate
that is accounted for using the equity method.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

BB 2 A T H R 2 ARk

N-ZE—-NF+-A=+—H AEH
EEETMABRZEAZTREEAS
NEAUBBREERG IS RBERE
EAAARE2280,731T (HER
2,587,444870) - RIEB A KB/ F
BMRBZEEER TEEMRE
BIEFEHFR REUEERRP X
BRBAREREFRIEEENHR E
LA S EERAAEAREREZSRE
HZ-AREERAEBLE AR AEREHUK
BENAREREERE ALHAEEE
TR ATIRAERE-

BREXFEEN R_F—-—NF+=H
St—H BMEARMEREMIAR

& o

BERFEEBHEAT
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.
Commitments in respect of associates (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not

REEAB Z2H#ER (&)
ARABEAB Z&iE (&)
BRI T EERELNEZELEH

192

individually material

2018 2017
—E—-)\£F —T—+4F
HK$ HK$
I BT

Aggregate carrying amount after
impairment of individually immaterial
associates in the consolidated
financial statements

(ERIRS=R:3 AN
REFEMBHRRBERZ
BAREE

Aggregate amounts of the operating
loss of those associates

RZEBMENRREXEBBELZ
BT

(26,267,677)

(16,027,413)

Aggregate amounts of translation
reserve arising from translating of
the associate’s financial statements

ESEANCR: L NI A B F
MELZER FEHEESRE

(2,080,927)

7,805,876

Total comprehensive loss

EHEEIEER

(28,348,604)

(8,221,537)
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Notes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_-Z

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE

A MR R M

—NF+ZRA=+—RLFE

20. B AR(E

2018 2017

—E—)\F —+F

HK$ HK$

I 7 TT

At 1 January n—H—H - 29,441,448

Change in fair value NEEED = (13,441,448)
Shares retrieval from WEIFEELBEZRHD

escrow arrangement - (16,000,000)

At 31 December R+-—A=+—8 - -

The contingent consideration receivable is related to the
acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Limited in year
2014.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the vendors guaranteed
to the Group that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd. (based on its audited accounts) for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2015, 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be as follows:
(i) for the year ending 31 December 2015: not less than
RMB20,000,000; (i) for the year ending 31 December 2016:
not less than RMB30,000,000; (iii) for the year ending 31
December 2017: not less than RMB40,000,000.

Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Limited, failed to achieve
any of above-mentioned profit guarantees. As at 31
December 2017, none of the ordinary shares of the Company
(i..200,000,000 shares of the Company) mentioned above
have been released by the escrow agent to the vendors. At
the same date, the vendors have confirmed to the Group that
they would give up the 200,000,000 shares, all contingent
consideration receivable has been derecognised accordingly.
On 28 June 2018, all escrow shares had been retrieved and
delivered the certificates for the 200,000,000 consideration
shares to Hong Kong branch share registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited for cancellation.

ZE-NFEFR

EWHAREIRR —F—
EBMZEBERAFER-

PO 4 e g R I

BREWERZE EARAEERE FIT
REBHUEBERARRBEE-_ZTE—RHF+=
H +—B - ZE—R"F+ZA=+—HEK

T—+F+ A=+ HLE=ZEYBREE
BFEZBRBZFNE (BREBEECEZER) W

T EBE_T—RAF+-A=1+—RHLF
RN ARE20,000,0007T: ()EZE =

—RNE+-_A=1+—BIEE:-TIPRAERE
#30,000,0007T : iV 2L —+tF+ A

=+—BIEFE

JG °

DR AR 840,000,000
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21.

22,

INVENTORIES 21. B8
2018 2017
—F-)\F —ET—+F
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Finished goods B 59,794,498 124,155,521

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

BRAFAXYFABRBZFEESEOM

expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: ONE
2018 2017
—E-N\%F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
I BT
Amount of inventories sold BEEFESH 334,263,177 17,821,020
Written down of inventories FERE 1,558,832 =
335,822,009 17,821,020
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWE SRIE
2018 2017
—B-N\F  —Tt%F
HK$ HK$
T 75 T
Amounts receivable arising from BH AL ETSFTE £ FEWEE |
securities broking:
Margin clients REBEEEF 3,083,334 2,614,525
Cash clients ReERP 4,009,110 4,490,031
Brokers and dealers B kX558 6 6
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BARPREEBR AR (OFE)
Company Limited (net) 100,900 487,628
Amounts receivable arising from REAEE S 2 EWGRIA
trading of motor vehicle 16,368,896 1,764,580
Other trade receivables Hip W E 5 IA 452,925 67,390
24,015,171 9,424,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable
on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates
and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of
approximately HK$17,959,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$22,584,000). No aged analysis is disclosed as,
in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the business of
securities margin financing. The Group considers that the credit
risk arising from the amounts receivable from margin clients is

significantly mitigated by the client’s pledged securities.

Amount receivable from one of rolling balance cash client
with amount of HK$3,968,304 are repayable on demand and
bearing interest at 9% per annum. The Group manages credit
risk by continuously monitoring the cash client’s securities held
by the Group, of which the total market value of approximately
HK$8,242,416 as at 31 December 2018. The Group considers
that the credit risk arising from the amount receivable from this

cash client is minimal.

The settlement terms of amounts receivable from cash clients
and clearing house are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days. Accounts receivable from cash clients and clearing house

are neither past due nor impaired.

The trade receivables arising from provision of electronic
student card platform are due immediately from date of
billing, and the customer historically settled the amounts
around 1 month from the date of billing. The Group has not
recognised an expected credit loss because the counterparty
is a reputable telecommunication company in the People’s
Republic of China, of which the management considered that
the historical settlement pattern of the counterparty and no

historical default record.

Amount receivable arising from the trading of motor vehicles
includes the receivables from customers and the government
subsidy on the sales of the imported motor vehicles with

amount of HK$14,735,245 and HK$1,633,651 respectively.

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

22,

BKESRIE (&)
FEWRFBESBEFPREAKREREER
BEROTMBAMNEGFE LURERPR
—TE-NE+-_A=t+—BHETE
4317,959,0008 T (=& — k£ F:
22,584,000 7T ) < IRt X BT LT B 55
ERH - ENFBHFRESHREEB 2
L EERBRED MY B EMEIME
B HABERBERROTN ANEBERA
ERREBESEFPHREFMEEANEERR
AREFPRERESMAER D -

EUREFR —BRGEKRBEEEFPRIES
%8 /43,968,304 B T B ERE B MK
FREIEF B - NEBIBBIFEERZ
ReBFPFHAEERANEZESFKERRE
BRR MaLBFHFR_E—N\F+=
A=+—HMAamEYS8,242,416/8 T o A
CEERAEZESBEFHNEMEENEE
[ B2 AR 14 o

EUREEP P REERAFARE
TR BHPE—IMER S BRI
B bt AR E & B P SRS SRR 2
FREA=ZTHAR -BURREFPRFR
REE N R RER KRB H TR R (E

RUHETELEFRELZREESK
HRBEREEAANKIH BXFB
ZERLRERPE-—BAALTREER
BH-AEBYERIAEREEEE R
AREF I ATEARKME —KANE
EAQR BEEEBRSHFIRIBES
BRARI BWEE S ZELCH -

HEREEAZERNNEREERE
FREREBHEEEDRE ZBN
WEL &% D Rl A14,735,2457%8 T M
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The receivables from customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles are due in 120 days from date of billing while
the historical settlement pattern of the government subsidy on
the sales of the imported motor vehicles are around 180 days
from the date of application.

Considering the receivables from customers arising from
trading of motor vehicles are not yet past due at 31 December
2018 and the historical payment record of the customers are
good, the management considers no expected credit loss
should be provided.

For the government subsidy on the sales of imported motor
vehicles, the management takes reference to the historical
settlement pattern of the subsidy, they considers it is not
necessary to provide the expected credit loss on the subsidy
receivables at 31 December 2018.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk

arising from trade receivables are set out in note 3.1(b).

The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables based
on invoice dated at the reporting period:

22,

FEWE ZRRIE (&)
EUAEHEZEFESFEBZELER
EHHR120BNEIH - MARHEE

ODREMRARG 2 BEEERABE
RSB HFEBHELN1808

RZEBE-—NF+ZA=+—80 FEH
BEAEEERNEWE P RIE R RS A
RzEPHRE NSRRI BEE
REEFZTIEREHREREX-

BB N ENBTRE SRES
E@Ey BEREER BAEER -
T-N\F+- A=+ Az EKRET
R

ﬁ@$ﬁlﬁfﬁ RN Y E 5 5 IR P

EEFEERRZE - TFBENKFE
3.1(b) °
W E HFRIAR B EHRIREERH

BREe D ATU0 T ¢

2018 2017

—B-N\E —E—LtF

HK$ HK$

AT BT

0-30 days 0%230H 6,917,061 1,831,970
31-90 days 31290H 5,176,173 -
91-180 days 912180H 4,728,587 -
181-365 days 181£E365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A E - =
16,821,821 1,831,970
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables. There is no recent history of default on the
trade receivables.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

22,

FEW & S RRIE (&
RBEHR RAREE

[k = U E 5

REZREE BREBRESEF A
S AEBYEAREE 5 HIAR B ER
EIRmEEA - L HFEWE ZRALE

AT HA R GREC 8%

AEERKESFAZREERNATE

denominated in the following currencies: HME -
2018 2017
—F-)\%F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
I BT
Hong Kong dollars BT 7,193,350 7,592,190
RMB AR 16,821,821 1,831,970
24,015,171 9,424,160
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 23. ERREWKRIE

At initial recognition, the Group determined the fair value of
the loans receivable equivalent to their principal amounts. The
analysis of the carrying amount of loans receivable as at 31

REXERE AEEETRRKERZ
NFEREREREE - N _T—N\F
F—E—+F+_A=1+—HEKEXR

December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: ZEmMESMOT
2018 2017
ZF-N\F —F e
HK$ HK$
I 75 T
Loans to third party ERTE=FH 1,134,480 597,960
Loans to associate ERTHE QT 5,400,125 -
6,534,605 597,960

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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23. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. ERRIEWRIE (£Z)

198

During the year ended 31 December 2018, RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,134,480) (2017: RMB500,000 (equivalent
to HK$597,960)) of the Group’s loans receivable were arising
from one PRC subsidiary of the Company and are denominated
in RMB. The loans receivable bore interest at an annual
contractual rate of 12% (effective interest rate 12.33%) with
the maturity date to 20 July 2019. The Group did not hold any
collateral on these loan receivables. The loan receivable was
not past due at 31 December 2018 and it is expected to be
recovered in coming year.

The Group provided a short term financing of RMB4,760,000
(equivalent to HK$5,400,125) to Qianhai First China for its’
daily maintenance during the year 2018. The loans receivable
bore interest at an annual contractual rate of 1.95% (effective
interest rate 1.96%), and it had been fully recovered on 19
February 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, RMB500,000
(equivalent to HK$597,960) of the Group’s loans receivable
were arising from one PRC subsidiary of the Company and
are denominated in RMB. This loan receivable bore interest
at annual effective rate of 1.95%. The Group did not hold any
collateral on these loan receivables. The loan receivable is
expected to be recovered within one year.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, no loans and receivables
were past due.

The management of the Group assessed that no expected
credit loss on these loans receivable are required to be
recognised, after taking into account that the loans and
receivables are not yet past due and the loan receivables in
amount of RMB4,760,000 had been fully repaid in February
2019.

HE-_Z—-N\F+-_A=Z+—H8LHF
B AEE 2z EWREFRAR,000,000
7T (FBEM1,134,4808 T) (—F—+
& AR #500,0007t (48 & $597,960
BIL) ) IREARAN— BB
DRV AARBEE - ZEKERIZE
HEME12ER B (BEBRFF E12.33
E) IHAA-—ZE-HAELA=-+AH-
AEBETERZERKEFFTETMIK
HR-EREZR -_ZE—N\E+_A
=+ BRI ZEKERESR
RAF U [a]

AEBR-_ZE— N\FAEAEEERE
— S G HRE AR 4,760,000t (85
75,400,125%8 L) A{EE B E & - 7%
EREFIZRENFFNE1.95EFE (B
BREFIR196E)  BEEN -_ZT—NF
—AthB2EkE-

HE-Z—+tF+=-A=+—HLHF
& AEBREIEZF ARE500,0007T
(FEZER597,9608 7T) IR E AN A G —
MPBEMB AT AAREE %F
FEM B IR ER F K195 B - &K
@MW ERZ SR E T TR
Mo BB RIEHEN —FRLkE -

R-ZBE-NER-_F—+F+=-A
=t+—H FEERRERFIERER
o

AEBEEEHATE KEBEERKE
WHRBEBMAAHAEKERARE
4,760,000 RN T NF-_AKH
BEE HARRZSRKER A
EEBE-
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

24, RAFEFANERZEMEE

2018 2017
—E—)\F —ZET—tF
HK$ HK$
T 7 TT
Listed equity — held for trading LRE-—FIEER
Equity securities — Hong Kong AT SE-FHB 17,043,700 23,512,550
Financial asset mandatorily required to 2% E B D 5
be classified as at fair value through A FEF A8~
profit and loss EREE 10,726,076 10,763,280
27,769,776 34,275,830

The details of the listed equity held for trading are as follows:

FIFEBE 2 EmRENFHBET

Fair value

loss on

No. of share held Approximately Fair value securities

as at 31 December percentage of as at 31 December trading for

Stock code Company name 2018 shareholding 2018 2018

RZB-N\% RZB-\% —F-\EE

+ZR=+-H +ZR=+-H2 BEEREESZ

RER A5EHR rRYE XEBREML AF{E ATERE

HK$ HKS

BT BT

01335 Sheen Tai 75,238,000 3.07% 14,295,220 (6,395,230)
JEZ 12 AR

06898 China Aluminum 2,454,000 0.26% 2,748,480 (73,620)
el

Listed shares-held for trading IiRE-HEEE 17,043,700 (6,468,850)

The financial asset mandatorily required to be classified as
at fair value through profit and loss represents an amount
of RMB18 (equivalent to HK$20) (2017: RMB9,000,000)
(equivalent to HK$10,763,280) invested in a fund known as 81
B E (transliterated as Cai Fu Bao) which is managed by 3
AL EERM AR QA (transliterated as China Southern Asset
Management Co., Limited) as at year end. This investment
fund provides the unguaranteed expected floating returns of
approximately 4% per annum and can be refunded one day
after instruction is given to the securities company. The Group
withdrew the significant balances from the fund account during
the year.

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

FR -BERTEASBAEAFETA
BaemBEEREREAESEERG
ERAREEMNKEESMEENERE
SEARBAI8T (HER208 L) (=
= —+ 4 : AR¥9,000,0007t (HE R
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, BMAFEHIINEBEHZEMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into an agreement with FEIsEWRIFEERE ORI BR A A
(“‘FE ¥ AP RHEL) in an amount of RMB9,454,600 (equivalent to
HK$10,726,056) regarding the finance on the potential project
called # B B £ B2 E X R H B (“the project”) developed
by FEImE¥WER. According to the agreement, the lending
amounts would be returned to the Group together with the
interest charged at lending rate imposed by The People’s
Bank of China after 2-year contracted period if the project is
not approved by China government. However, if the project is
approved by China government, the lending amounts would be
used to convert to the 18.91% equity interests in Eix A ¥ RHE
and no amounts would be repaid to the Group.

However, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the
management expect that it will still take long time for the
approval of the # BB ZZE MBI EEXEIAE after reassessing
the current status of the project based on the latest information
available, and both contracted parties had signed the early
repayment contract accordingly before the year end date. The
whole lending amounts had been refunded to the Group on 7
January 2019.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “operating activities” in respect of held for
trading equity securities and “investing activities” in respect
of financial assets mandatorily to be classified as fair value
through profit and loss respectively in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in “other income and loss, net”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The fair value of all equity securities held in trading is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

The fair value of the financial asset mandatorily classified as
at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2018
(i.e. the loan receivable with equity convertible term) was
determined based on the discounted cash flow of the expected
cash flow estimated by the management of the Group as at 31
December 2018. The investment was subsequently refunded to
the Group on 7 January 2019.

(%)
HE-_Z—-N\F+-_A=Z+—H8LHF
EAEERBEREYREER ORI
BERAB ([EHEEDEE]) AENE
AEEREGTHNEEEXREEMNEBEE
B(lZzEB)BERHmREMRIEAT
Y& A ANREK 4546007 (HER
10,726,05678 70 ) iip sk o ARIEZ a5 -
iWsZ BB R &P BEBRFIE  BIRMRF
AHEE EReBERERTBRARIR
1T E RS P R 5T B A BB RIET
REB AT - MFZIE B & BEBUT I
- REFeEBEEB AmE LRI
18.91% M AT RALEEEE
EREHE -

A BHEZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
HFE BERTESHER BEE
BHEEHNTHEEREEDNBESE
EEERREESEE IENAL &
RRER BRIHNSAHERERB A
FERMNEBAHN - R_T—NE—A
+tH EBReB2BEOERETALEHR-

BRAFEFABREZEBEED BN
EREREBRATEEERD | H25 (M
REFEERAEFNEREE) & &
BRI N2 (WABFDBREA
FEFABENEREE)

BAFEAABRRZEMEEZAFE
Bt AGAEEREMEEBARSE
Z TEAW AR EBIRFE] A -

EREEERAES 2 AFELRE
RERERM S L2 AKEAEFE-

R-ZE-NF+-_A=1+—8 &H5
BRABRAFEFABZENEREE (B
AR EBHRERZBEENR) 22 FE
TIRBAEEERER T \F+=
A=+—BfAstNBEHARERE 2R
BeRnEET ZBREHEBRR-F—A
F-ALtBRRETAEER-
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25 BEffRE- -HEREMEKRIE

RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
—E-)\&F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
Other receivables H b e W SRR 1,682,475 20,434,990
Other deposits and prepayments H Atz & MBI IE 100,383,752 5,266,039
102,066,227 25,701,029

Represented by: B T3 &EERR:
Non-current assets EREBEE 132,865 803,915
Current assets MBEEE 101,933,362 24,897,114
102,066,227 25,701,029

As at 31 December 2018, the other receivables mainly
represents the net amounts of the Input and Output Value
Added Tax on the purchase and sales of the imported motor
vehicles in amount of RMB211,085 (equivalent to HK$239,472)
(2017: RMB15,674,573 (equivalent to HK$18,745,536)). Such
receivables in relation to the value-added tax would be utilized
while selling motor vehicles in subsequent period.

As at 31 December 2018, the other deposit mainly represents
the amounts of trade deposit paid for the purchase of motor
vehicles which had not yet delivered to the Group, in amount
of RMB58,804,245 (equivalent to HK$66,712,240) and the
amounts for the purchase of motor vehicles as explained
in note 4.2, in amount of RMB20,277,554 (equivalent to
HK$23,004,479).

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

W_ZB-NEFE+-A=+—8 Hittpe
WHRBEEHREFTHENAENEER
SHIE IR EBOF R A R®211,0855T (4
BR239,472% L) (ZE—tF: AR
#15,674,5737C (48 & 718,745,536/
TL) ) o ZEHBBERNEREBER
Hig M E REMREEA -

N NFE+-A=+—80 Hipix
CEEERBENARETAERZA
BYNHE SiEe ARES8,804,2457T
(¥8 % 766,712,240 7T ) K 0Bt 554.2
Fi it 5% B )5 B8 518 A R #620,277,5547T
(¥ E 723,004,479 L) °
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(a)

26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SRITHBRRIRE
Cash and cash equivalent (a) RERBR&E&LEEIEH
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFHERS 159,252,327 168,739,802
Short-term pledged bank AR EERTT B E H) 5 B
deposits used for securing BHEFRITER
banking facilities - 9,875,538
Short-term bank deposits MHERITIF X 2,100,546 2,082,621
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeFEER 161,352,873 180,697,961

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$65,189,227 (2017:
HK$88,552,762) which are denominated in RMB. The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC

Government.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks

with no recent history of default.

Bank balances and cash include the following for the

RZE—NF+_A=+—H 'K
SEHUARBEINBEZRITEH K
04 #965,189,227 8T (Z & —+

53

£F 88,552,762/ 71 ) - ¥4
TAE H AR RSN R BT E

Z INEE B IR ©

BERRTEBEREERIARE
AT ERHE R AC 8% Z SR1T

MR RERERME  RITHEHK

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: RSB EATEIE:
2018 2017
—E'—N\%FE —E—+F
HK$ HK$
I BT
General accounts and cash —REF MBS 153,053,508 170,932,310
Segregated trust bank balances B3 {57LEE P & & 8,299,365 9,765,651
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEMBEEER 161,352,873 180,697,961
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and noncash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

—NF+ZRA=+—RLFE

26. SRITHEGBRIRE (£)
MEEHMEEEBEZHIER

(b)

TRFAAFTBAEERE LB T

?EEﬁZ“@j

BRERENIER

SE B - WA EE AL A EER

EREEEEERAF |

liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flows $E BiReRenERNIER
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement MEETHAELEZRESRERE
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. KRB TmEZAG
Unsecured Total
borrowing - liabilities
Secured related party from
bank (see note financing
borrowing 38(ii)) activities
WmIREE- AL EE
A ARAEANT FREAE
SRITIEE (R PMIsE38(ii)) Bf54EE
HK$ HK$ HK$
T T T
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—H—H 6,556,013 47,836,800 54,392,813
Changes from financing EIERESREE ) :
cash flow:
Repayment of unsecured (& & E K {5 & —
borrowing — related BREATL
party - (45,379,200) (45,379,200)
Repayments of bank RITERZERK
borrowings (2,058,515) - (2,058,515)
Interest paid =ENELES (171,590) (241,003) (412,593)
Total changes from BRERSREFZ LT
financing cash flows (2,230,105) (45,620,203) (47,850,308)
Exchange adjustments R % - (2,457,600) (2,457,600)
Other changes: H b :
Interest expenses FBEFRX 171,590 241,003 412,593
Total other changes Hib & ez 171,590 241,003 412,593
As at 31 December 2018 R Z=Z— /\F
+=—A=+—H 4,497,498 - 4,497,498

ZE-NFEFR
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

26. SRITHEGBRIRE (£)

(b)

MESHFMELBRZHER

activities (continued) (%)
Unsecured Total
borrowing — liabilities
Secured related party from
bank (see note financing
borrowing 38(ii)) activities
EIEFEE - MEEH
BEA BREANL FrEE %
wRITEE  (RMEE38() ) BEERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
78T 7T BT
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 8,554,953 - 8,554,953
Changes from financing BIEIR&HREEH):
cash flow:
Proceeds from new FTIg MR E TS RIA —
unsecured borrowing -  B#EA L
related party - 47,836,800 47,836,800
Repayments of bank RITBE ZEXK
borrowings (1,998,940) - (1,998,940)
Interest paid =ENELES (229,303) - (229,303)
Total changes from BRERSREF LT
financing cash flows (2,228,243) 47,836,800 45,608,557
Other changes: H b &
Interest expenses B X 229,303 = 229,303
Total other changes Hth& g 229,303 - 229,303
As at 31 December 2017 RZ=F—+ 4
+=—A=+—H 6,556,013 47,836,800 54,392,813
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27. HEMEAT

On 1 July 2018, the Group disposed of 100% equity interest
in Sky Picture, Wealth Alliance and the associate, First China
(Liaoning) Agricultural Products Trading Centre Company
Limited which was held by Wealth Alliance at RMB12,656,750
(equivalent to HK$14,938,382). Summary of the effect of the

disposal is as follows:

RZE—NEFE+LA—HB ZxEERZAR
#12,656,7507T (4855 72 14,938,382/
T)REERFR EHEKHEREFEL
HEQAAEE(EE)EERR P L
BRAT100% M Atz - BEEBE 2
LT

2018
—B-N\E
HK$
T
Net assets disposal of: BEHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipments W% e R R 2,447,018
Other receivable H fth & W k18 603,832
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBRNIR® 328,023
Other payables and accruals Ha etk ERTE A (1,802,158)
1,576,715
Exchange loss on translating foreign operation RHERF EEREREE 2
transferred from equity to profit or loss WMEGINETS 2 IE K B8
upon disposal 1,001,474
2,578,189
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE W B QA 2 e 12,360,193
14,938,382
Satisfied by: ATHNG B
Cash consideration received BWRERE 14,938,382
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash FHELENBARIZRER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of ReFEBEEEFRADN:
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration BeRE 14,938,382
Cash and bank deposit disposal of EHERS RBITER (328,023)
Net cash consideration received BUWIREREFHE 14,610,359

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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28. TRADE PAYABLES

28. ENESRIE

2018 2017
ZF-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
AT T

Amounts payable arising B AR 4D TG P EE A FE N RUIE

from securities broking:

Margin clients REFEEEF 532,037 716,274
Cash clients ReRP 7,733,188 6,844,930
Other trade payables Hib e & B RE 5,897 5,897
8,271,122 7,567,101

Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of the business of securities margin
financing.

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts payable to margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the
end of each reporting period:

ENRESCEFPHRRABREREE -E
REFRECHEXB ML EFR
RRE DT AL EAE A RESMEE - KRB
R ARER DA ©

EFRLEERBELRNFRARE
RZAPR-FIMEZXZAAN B
EREMRESEFPKEN RRAR
=tBARBEE-

17
BR

HMEMNE S HRERSRE PR R
2R CINE

2018 2017

—F-N\£E ZE—LtF

HK$ HK$

I BT

0-30 days 0£30H - -
31-90 days 31290H - =
91-180 days 912180H - -
181-365 days 181%£365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A £ 5,897 5,897
5,897 5,897
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 were the following amounts:

29. H{hFEMRIE R ERTRRIE
AEER_ZE—NFER_F—CF+=
AZt+—RAZzHMENZESFEATK

I8 :
1 January
31 December 2018 31 December
2018 (Note (i) 2017
—E-N\F
—E-N\E —HA—H —E—+tF
+=-HA=+—H (K&EH) +=ZA=+—8
HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT BT
Other payables and accruals H A e 5B KB AT 3R 2,141,058 2,079,787 2,079,787
Received in advance from E@REB S EPBKR
customers in respect of trading  (Ff (i)
of motor vehicles (Note (i) - - 5,321,724
Provision of consumption tax and BEBAREZEREER
customs duties in respect of KR
purchase of motor vehicles 13,634,518 - -
15,775,576 2,079,787 7,401,511
Note: B 5

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018.

(if) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as
“Received in advance from customer” in respect of trading of motor
vehicles under “Other payables and accruals” were reclassified to contract
liabilities (see note 30).

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

(i)

RERAR-Z-\F—-A-HRARHFE
EERERAE B REERNFE155 W
BHE -

RABBIBMELRFE1SRIR - ZAIEEA
[E A e SRR R AT RIR] BT B BRE
BH5Z [BFPRAKRR] Z2RRENSBRA
HaE (F2HME30) °
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

30. 8XEE

1 January
31 December 2018 31 December
2018 (Note (i) 2017
—E-N\EF
—E-N\E —H—H —E—tF
+=A=+-—H (B3E@H) +=—A=+—H°
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Billing in advance of performance &8 4.2 ¥8 4% 88 2% (B (i) )
(Note (ii))
- Agency services —RERH 2,282,952 5,321,724 =
- Trading as principal - FEHMHEE 20,284 = =
2,303,236 5,321,724 =
Notes: [{bg=3

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018.

(if) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as
“Received in advance from customers in respect of trading of motor
vehicles” under “Other payables and accruals” (note 29) were reclassified
to contract liabilities.

The contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

RERR-ZT—\F—

A—RARAAFEE

EERERAEBMGREERNFE155 1

BHE-

RABBIBRELRFE1SHIL - ZATEEA
[EA NIRRT R AT [BHAE
B 52 B8P EMGR] (ME29) 2 RIAEH

DERANEE-

BHNRELEAN —FRER/KA -
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 30.
The payment terms have impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognized. When the Group receives a deposit
before fulfilling its agency obligations on sourcing and principal
obligations on trading of the motor vehicles, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
consideration received is recognised as revenue.

SHARE (&)
XNGERECERANABESRELY
B-HAKERBTEABERE TED
REGODAEEIRHEETENTESN
BEEMESES AEREHNMEME
EENRAE BEECRRERER/K
A e

Movements in contract liabilities EHEaEEH
HK$
T
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-—NF—HA—B2Z&&% 5,321,724
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of BRERNBRAmMSEHNEERD
recognising revenue during the year (5,321,724)
Increase in contract liabilities NEEHHREHRERBE 2
as a result of billing in advance of FERREMSALABFEIEM
principal and agency service rendered 2,303,236
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZBE-N\F+ZA=+—R2Z&HK 2,303,236
31. BORROWINGS 31. ™
2018 2017
—F-N\fE —ET—LtF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Secured borrowing included in ARSI BENEREER
current liabilities — bank borrowings —RITIER 4,497,498 6,556,013
Unsecured borrowing included in FFAMEB BENEEKTER
current liabilities — related party — B @E AL (R FE38(i))
(see Note 38(ii) - 47,836,800
4,497,498 54,392,813
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31. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@) The maturity of borrowings is as follows (note (c)):

31. #® (&

B EE

(a)

EREEBBEFHBEOT (M) :

2018 2017

—E-N\fE —E—tF

HK$ HK$

&I BT

On demand or within one year BERS—FR 2,120,923 49,896,532
In the second year F_F 2,190,889 2,122,380
In the third to fifth year F=FEERF 185,686 2,373,901
4,497,498 54,392,813

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by the charges over the Group’s land and buildings (Note 15)
and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (Note 38). At 31
December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated
in HK$, bearing floating interest rate of 3.25% (2017: 3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2017, the unsecured borrowing from related party are
demonstrated in RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$47,836,800) bearing
interest rate of 8% per annum. This unsecured borrowing had been fully

repaid during the year.

The related party is controlled by the father-in-law of Mr. Wang Jiawei, the
Company’s director and is therefore a deemed connected person of the

Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.

(b) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreement.

(c) The bank borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan

agreement contains a repayment on demand clause.

RZEBE-NFERZZ—tF+ZA=+—
B AEBRITERERIEEZ L HRETF
(15 ERER WA RRREAA
ER(MIFES8) RZE—NFRZFT—+
FH+ZA=+—HB NEBEZRITEREGN
BIHE Y EFLAFE32585E (2T —+
F:3E)FHE-

R-E—tE+-_A=+—8B KEBEHE
AT 2 IR E KR A R #40,000,0007T
(#8E 747,836,800/8 7T ) * I & F LASIE 7
BN ZEERERCEHEE-
MEATHARREETIRZRAEZENE
#l FAULIREGEM ET R AR AR QR Z
BEAL-

e & 8RO IR Bk i ok PR FEE 48 3% B HAH

X E R B R R B SRR R R
TREFRRBEERTZ5 -
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

32. BEFBHAMR

BEREMEHEBEZEHET:

Undistributed

Accelerated profits of
tax foreign
depreciation associate Total
B
BEATZ
MRBIAIRE K53 B i F &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
7T BT BT
Balance as at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—HA—Bw#&s 3,471,615 2,333,085 5,804,700
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (181,549) (2,422,910) (2,604,459)
Currency translation difference R = 89,825 89,825
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF
+ZA=+—HHK
e 3,290,066 - 3,290,066
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF
—RA—Am#&EH 3,290,066 - 3,290,066
Credited to profit or loss T AB &= (181,549) = (181,549)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=+—8HK
#E R 3,108,517 - 3,108,517

The deferred tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated tax
depreciation as at 31 December 2018.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated
unused tax losses available for offset against future profits due

to the uncertainty of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2018, the unrecognised tax losses
of the Group amounted to HK$284,259,718 (2017:
HK$289,329,550). These tax losses have no expiry date except
that HK$46,633,994 will expire from 2019 to 2023 (2017:

HK$54,721,208 expire from 2018 to 2022).

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H REH
HEERBMRBEBIE -

ERARBERETE B RABRR WAL ER
REFBHRRAAAARHEARNEZ

fmat RE) A B B 1R

Eo

RZBE—NE+A=+—8H K&
B 2 KR IEE 18 5284,259,7187

RIE T IR E

7T (== —+ £ : 289,329,550/ 7T ) ©

$246,633,994B LN —NLF =
—FHEER(ZE -5
54,721,208 B TR —_E— \FE T
ZZFHEER) N R ERIEE B E

— =

JE B
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33.

34.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 33. BARRE
Number of Share
issued shares Ordinary shares premium Total
ERFTRHHE AR BHER it
(in thousands) HK$ HK$ HK$
(FH) BT AT BT
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R-ZT—+%—A—H"
1 January 2018 ZE—+&+ZA=+-8HkK
—E-N\¥—F—H 6,498,958 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 1,679,788,448
Cancellation of shares under escrow HHETAERHEZRG
arrangement (200,000) (2,000,000) (14,000,000) (16,000,000)
New issuance during the year ERFET 1,450,000 14,500,000 72,500,000 87,000,000
At 31 December 2018 R-E—-NE+-FA=+—H 7,748,958 77,489,582 1,673,298,866 1,750,788,448
On 28 June 2018, the Company retrieved 200,000,000 RZE-NFAZTNR KAAFHK
consideration shares held in escrow arrangement and delivered [l 1R #% 5t & L BE 5 B .2200,000,000%
the certificates for the 200,000,000 consideration shares to RERG LREEERNBFPERLD
its Hong Kong branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars EREBBSHELERAREIFEE NG
Limited for cancellation. §5200,000,000% X & A {7 ©
On 3 September 2018, new shares of 1,450,000,000 was to R=—ZF—)\FHLA=H" 1,450,000,000
be subscripted. The issuance completed on 12 October 2018. BHBRDERE - FTERZE—NF
+A+=-B%K-
The total authorized number of ordinary shares is A TE iR % 48 81 4 10,000,000,0000%
10,000,000,000 shares (2017: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a —Z —+ % :10,000,000,0000% ) -
par value of HK$0.01 per share (2017: HK$0.01 per share). Al BEEACOIET(ZE—tF R
issued shares are fully paid. 0.017870) - FTE B BTG R E S
E °
34. i

RESERVE

() Special reserve
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganization undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

(ii) Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution
of their post-tax profits in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations. A company may discontinue the
contribution when aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves shall only be used make up
losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operation, or to increase the capital of the companies.

() *hlfEE
REEZ KRB IERARRIE
MEERRARMNR-ZEZ
— A+ —BHEGEMLEMAT#ETTE
EEHMBITRG 2 EEET
88 Sinofortune Financial Holdings
(BVI) Limited 2 817 AR AN T 1B J iR
PmBEREEEZ -

(i) EERRE
RIFFRBEERRER  AEQAR
DIREBR TR TR BRATERE
HEIBEEFFBEMN10% - E AR
EEAEBBENGENZEE M
B ARE50%0F - A7) A = 1k B o
EEAEBBEEIRIVAERBE A
MR EARRMEESIENA
AR E Ao
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34. RESERVE (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.5.

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises of the effect of the escrow
shares retrieval and to be cancelled, in accordance with
the arrangement.

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which persons working for the interest of the Group are
entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme and
any other share options schemes of the Company to any
person (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant of options
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people and the parties working for the interest of the
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
Old Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

34. & (2)

(iii)

(iv)

BE 5 it 18

R EERREEIN BT R
RMEELNMAELEZRE %
BIIRBE M 2. 55 &St BUR R
#e

Hit
HifEEeRREME LS D
A TEEIAEERD IEE-

35. HERzHEsTE

(a)

Bt
ARRRABRETE MAKRSE
BAMmTHEZATREESAR
AR HE - FRIFEB AR AR
RESAE - TRRBBERETS
FAT At s &7 TR
2B RN BAE T/
BARATEDETRN30% © K
FESARTRRELLE T
PR BB IR HE B HR A AR+ — &
AR RIEEBREFT S RAR
AMEMEMEREFICELS
ERTEMALZERE (B2FEE
TTME R W) R AT L BB ALAE ) JE 1T s
EERBEETZRDERE  TF
BBARACETRD1% -

ARARENR=_FF—F1+_H
TERBBZRESR  RAEBEK
e EBRESEEERAAR
SEMETHEZALTRETRH
ESARRRIRE S - WM
Fz Mt EAKEZ MEHER A
BREERANKE 2FENEE
REN-RBEFRETE NAQ
AEFGNRAAERER (BEA
AAREMBARES) RHBRK
B ARBEARRBA d I A
RAAAERMRE=ZTRLEE
Pt AR FA TR E LR
HEmHIRBZER -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 84,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company. The fair value of 84,000,000 share options
granted under the share option scheme on 13 April 2010
was determined by the Directors to be HK$23,382,573
with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers using a binomial
model. The inputs into the model included grant date
share price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419 per
share, expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option life
of 10 years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-free
interest rate of 2.833%.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme on 21 June 2012.

35. RERRHERTEl (&)

(a)

ERREsTE (2)
EMBRESALSARLZE
B M1AT BhE-—RAR
EFQRNSEARAZHBAMLT
A BTTIE - R AR 2 TTEHIR
B ERERREF T EEE
T

TEEHE=ESET HTMERT
JI=F 2 H&&HER: ()VARARN
KT BRI Z WmE : ()RR
BEROBHAAEARZ A ZFY
W8 ¢ K (i) E 1A -

RZEBE-—ZFNA+=ZH"  MAR
AAETEEREEREAIRBAL
84,000,000/% A& A &) f& 17 2 88 A%
E-BEEL2ERBY HEMEME
“THEMErFERNET  HER
ET RZZE—ZEFHA+=AR
15 B8 A% 4 51 81 % i) 284,000,000
o 8 B 1 2~ ¥ &23,382,573
BT -EBERA 2@ ASIEERE
EEBHRERABIT 1T
BAFR0419B T FBHKIEA
103.41% - TEERBE AR #E BA R 210
F FEHRB AT R ERRF
& 52.833% ©

ARAR=FE—F+=AT+LA
R B R BN = ——
F+=A+AAEIE - ARTR
—E-—EXAt—BRAH
WRE A
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BERRHETE| (&)

(@) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)
The following table discloses the movements of the share
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme

(a) ERRRRMESTE ()
TREBBEE_FT-N\FE+-A
=t+—BLEFEREEBRE

during the year ended 31 December 2018: SR ERE 228
Number of share options
BRExE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Reclassification Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2018 the year the year the year 2018
R-E-\& Rog-N%
-A-H +-B=+-H
REARE A iR {TRHE HATE REREHIE ERiTR EREH HARITE
Lai Yuk Mui (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 3,186,158 - - - 3,186,158
RIMLL (HTES) —T-%% 04198 T-ZFMAT=RE
BMAtT=H “ECTENATCA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
UBALE (FUTES) —E-%E 0.419% T
MA+T=H
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director)
FREHR (BUEHEE) -T-%f% 0.419% T
MAT=H
Sub-total for directors 37,171,838 - - - 37,171,838
BNt
3 employees* 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010 12/04/2020 45,668,257 - - - 45,668,257
—EREE “3-%% 041987 e
mA+=H
Sub-total for employees 45,668,257 - - - 45,668,257
EE /Nt
Total 82,840,095 - - - 82,840,095
o3
Weight average exercise price 0.419 - - - 0.419
METHTEE
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. RERxHERHEl (&)
(a) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EREIRESTE(£Z)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERHZE-T—+tF+=A
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme ST —HLEFEREBEEERER
during the year ended 31 December 2017: SR ERE 228
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding QOutstanding
asat  Reclassification Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year the year 2017
RZB-t% RZE-tf
-A-A TZA=t-H
ERARA RiLAH g RHE HATR  REREFHE ERITE ERER WA
Lai Yuk Mui (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 3,186,158 - - - 3,186,158
RIMLL (H7ES) —T-%% 041987  -Z-TEMATZHE
MmA+=R “ECTENATCA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,675 - - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
UBALE (FUTES) —2-%Zf 0419%T T-TEMAT=AZE
MA+=H ZEMATZA
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director)
FALHR (BUENiTEE) —F-IF 041987 —T-TENAT=AZE
mA+=H “E-REMATCA
Sub-total for directors 37,171,838 - - - 37,171,838
BNt
3 employees* 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 45,668,257 S = = 45,668,257
—%REE —3-%% 04198 —E-TEWMAT=HE
MA+=A “E-ZEMA+ZA
1 employee” 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - (4,248,210) -
-%EE ZB%tE 021581 ZEZLENRARAZ
hAZA “2-tENARA
Sub-total for employees 49,916,467 - - (4,248,210) 45,668,257
(B8 /NGt
Total 87,088,305 - - (4,248,210) 82,840,095
&t
Weight average exercise price 0.409 - - - 0.419
MEFHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 82,840,095
(2017: 82,840,095) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under result in the issue of 82,840,095
(2017: 82,840,095) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$828,401 and
share premium of HK$33,881,599 (2017: share capital of
HK$828,401 and share premium of HK$33,881,599).

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a New Share Option scheme
under which person working for the interest of the Group
are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in
the Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company to any person(including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

35. RERRHERTEl (&)

(a)

(b)

EEiEsTE (&)
R=ZFE—NFE+=ZA=+—8"
NN FHE82,840,09510 (—F—+
1 82,840,09517 ) 1R ¥k & BE AR
FHEIE L 2 AR MR TTIE - ek
TrZHEBREEZEITE  BE®
FAHNE£1782,840,0950 (—Z T —+
& :82,840,0958 ) AN A &) E @
%+ DA B2 BE A BB SRR Z<828,4017%8
T M7 4 E33,881,599% 7T ( —
T — - F R AR828,40178 7T & &
17 3% 1833,881,599/8 7T ) °

R At ST B
ARRREHBRESE ARAE
SEM@mITIEZ ATIRHESAR
AR HE - FRIFEB AR AR
RESCAE - TRRENEEES
B M AR H A R R A & AT TR
oz BTSRRI #E - A5
HBA R R B BEITARH30% °
FRIFESARARRELMME B
IR B B BT ER+ =
18 A 8AfE] - R4 g A =t 8 R X
RAEFEMERE S E RN
BeXTEMNALZERE (2%
EATE R HARTTRERE) BITE
HEZEEBERTZRRREC T
BEBARREEITHRMNI% -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to
are solution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
there by providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group. Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for settlement in respect of goods or services provided to
the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

35. RERRHERTEl (&)

(b)

s (2

ARABRER-_F—-—Z-FXA
“t—BBBZIRER  RANE
Pt E - FBREAIEEAR
AEEMETIEZ AL REES
ARFIBEZHE MG REZ
Mo AN B 2 M ERE LS - ASE
BERAKEBEZNENEHEKRE
N RBEHERETE NARE
ZerRAERER (BREART
REMBARES) R HBAE
ARREAR QB © 51 R A
AR RIMNRE =TT R L BRE
A ZFEALTAAEEREHE
MR ZER -

EMBRER AR RN 2B
PRI A1E T - B —RA R
EESRAZARAZHEANE
B R 1T 2 - MERE AR Z TTE HAIR
R EREREG T EEA
T4

TEEHEESETE  HHMERT
II=ZFZz &= ER: \ARA RN
REHBRHZWHE: (RORE
EROBHMAEXSHEZFH
W8 R (i) AR A BB E{E
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

35. RERRHERTEl (&)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FEERRMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-_ZT-NF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =T —HIEFEREBRERER
during the year ended 31 December 2018: SR LBERE 2
Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2018 the year the year 2018
RZF-\E RZF-\&
-A-8 +ZB=+-H
RS piedu] =L TR TEEE i K 17 ERRH LS i R AT 6
Mr. James Besland Rogers Jr. 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/09/2014 - 21/09/2024 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr e ZE 4% 05188 Z—ET-MEAA=+=HE
(FF817E%) ABE=t=R ZZ-MEAA=T-B
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr i —E-HF 023881 Z—T-RE+A+/AAEZE
(FEHITES) +A+~E —Z-Rf+ATEA
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 9 November 2016 HK$0.15  09/11/2016 - 08/11/2026 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr 52 —E—AF 01581t  ZE-~E+-ARHE
(F#7E%) +-ANA ZZ2-RE+-ANR
Total 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000
g
\Weight average exercise price 0.302 - - 0.302

MEFHTEE

ERETEEEARAT | ZE2-NFFH
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

35. MERRHERTEl (&

The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) HEBREIESTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREZEHE_ZT—+tF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =T —HIEFEREBRERER
during the year ended 31 December 2017: SR ERE 2
Number of share options
BREY A
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year 2017
RIB—t% RZZ-t+%
-R-H +=ZA=t-R
ERALA Rt A8 IRE  REE HATTR FRRH ERER AT
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/09/2014 - 21/09/2024 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Begland Rogers Jr i —Z -4 051881 —E-RMFAR-T-RHZ
(FEHITES) hE=t=R ZZREARZT-H
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr 52 —E-1F 023831 Z—T-AF+A+AAZ
(Fa17Es) TA+AA “Z-RF+ATEA
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 9 November 2016 HK$0.15  09/11/2016 - 08/11/2026 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Begland Rogers Jrfi & ZE—RF 0158 ZE-~E+-ANBEZE
(FEHITEE) T—ANE ZEZREH-ANB
Total 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000
@it
Weight average exercise price 0.302 - - 0.302

MEFHTEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 60,000,000
(2017: 60,000,000) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the New Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would result in the issue of 60,000,000 (2017:
60,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$600,000 (2017:
HK$600,000) and share premium of HK$17,520,000
(2017: HK$17,520,000).

R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—8"
AR F)H60,000,00010 (ZZF—+
F 1 60,000,00017 ) 18 #5 37 B I% e
FHEIR I 2 B AR M 1 R 1T 1 o W]
BRTITCEREREZEHITHFE B8
%8 5D E 1760,000,000/% ( =&
— 44 : 60,000,0000% ) Zx 1 &) &
i A% - DA K EE A B SR ZR600,000
BT (ZZF—+t 4% : 600,000 7T)
N 17345 1817,520,0008 7T ( ==
— -+ :17,520,0008 7T ) °

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



NoTes T0 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—ZT— \F+-_A=+—RAILFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. FEMRtEstEl (&)
(b) The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FRERARMERTEI (&)

The share options granted to Mr. James Beeland Rogers
Jr. may be exercisable at any time during the exercisable
period. In the event that the service agreement is
terminated before the term ends, they shall be entitled
to the said share options on a pro rata basis, and any
excess share options granted to but not exercised by
them shall lapse.

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c)
The fair value of share options granted under the scheme
at the date of grant was determined using the Binomial
option pricing model with the following inputs:

#% ¥ James Beeland Rogers Jr.%t
4 2 B AR RE BT RN 1T B N £E (] B
T LATT(E o 14 AR TS 17 sk 1O HABR 45
RATEAR I BEEERIELOI=E
ELBERE MESEERER
BT A MBEERERS

2 o

BREZAFERRER

R R EIRBE R SIRE 2
BRE 2 R FETRA —HA
EERAZTIBAREEE:

9 November

2016

—F—RE

Date of grant pds =G| +—AAH
Fair value at the date of grant RELEBBHZAFE HK$0.075
Exercise price per share FRTEE HK$0.15
Expected volatility T8 B 1R 83%
Expected dividend yield T8 B R B e R -
Expected option period (years) T8 BB AR i HABR (4F) 10
Risk-free rate £ [ g A & 1.01%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
of the shares of the Company over the expected option
period. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value of the share options
granted. During the year, no equity-settled share-based
payment has been recognised in profit or loss (2017:
HK$877,444) .

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

TE HA BRI HR N R TR ER R 1R T AR
BADBRMBEZRERET
B ZSXEH ABRz2EHNE
BREVEOREIBREZAFE-
TR A DR A4S B3 AR D
SR BEPER(ZE—+F:
877,44477T) o
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36.

37.

—NFtZA=t—RLFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating

36.

EERORE

FEEEARBEA
RZFE-NF+-_A=1+—H X&HE
RIBTATRELEHORERYE RN

leases in respect of rented premises as follows: ZARREEHEERBRENT
2018 2017
—E—)\F —tF
HK$ HK$
I P8 TT
No later than one year —F R 2,382,575 2,598,200

Later than one year and —FELEAFEA

no later than five years 3,238,279 6,081,780
5,620,854 8,679,980

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to five years (2017: one to five years).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The Group completed making the additional capital
contribution of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$60,362,500)
to Sheng Yu Hong Jia on 25 October 2018. Following
completion of making the additional capital contribution to
Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the Group increased 3.33% interest held
in Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the Sheng Yu Hong Jia is owned as to
93.33% by the Group and as to 6.67% by an independent third
party joint venture partner. Immediately prior to the additional
capital contribution, the carrying amount of the additional
3.33% non-controlling interest in Sheng Yu Hong Jia was
RMB14,947 (equivalent to HK$16,956). The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interest and increase in equity
attributable of HK$16,956.

37.

HARKNEMEZEHTFHIBRER—

AF(ZE—+tF —ZERHF)-
FERERERS
AEBER-_ZE-/\F+A-tHAR

FX 17 B% 6 5L 3= 1€ A R #50,000,0007T
(FBZ75060,362,500/8 7T ) 2 R8N & ©
ERAEAAEED BN E %

TN B [ 18 4 BX A 5 32 3.33% R 5 0 BOm
AhEHRAEBRRE —EZBIUE=ZFEE
D B H93.33% K 75 [26.67 %K
HoBEBINER RBAEZE
IN3.33% IR 2 REE A AR
14,9477 (FHE 16,9568 7T) - A 5%
W SRR A JE P IR M 2 I N FE A A i
16,9568 It °
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37. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (continued)

On 10 February 2017, the Group acquired an additional
25% of the registered capital of Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant
Precious Metals Limited for RMB1,640,001 (equivalent to
HK$1,843,639) from non-controlling interests. Immediately
prior to the purchase, the carrying amount of the 25% non-
controlling interest in Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant Precious Metals
Limited was RMB2,951,756 (equivalent to HK$3,318,276).
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest of
HK$3,318,276 and increase in equity attributable to owners of
the parent of HK$1,474,637.

The effect on the equity attributable to the Group during the
year is summarized as follows:

37.

A MR R M

—NF+ZRA=+—RLFE

EEERERX S (7))

RZZFE—+F-A+8 AEEREE
A% #E 25 LA A R 1,640,001 7T (HHE R
1,843,639/ 70 ) W B R I BU IR Bkt &
TELEBR AR ZEINL%REME
Ko ZZWHER RIEYFERTES
EBREER AT Z25%IE R ERE 2
BREEAAR2051,7567C (FHE R
3,318,276/ 7T ) o A5 B M TR FE 12 AR 42
&= 438,318,276 B T R AR A A
JEAEREZS 2 IN1,474,6378 7T °

FAHAREEROEE 2B AN
T

2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
HK$ HK$
I 78T
Carrying amount of BRI R s 2 BREE
non-controlling interests acquired 16,956 3,318,276
Consideration paid to BT IE TR ERNRE
non-controlling interests - (1,843,639)
Excess of consideration paid R 2 IEHE HXT W
recognised in the transactions with R EEERBB
non-controlling interests reserve EHREZ@%’E
within equity 16,956 1,474,637

ZE-NFEFR
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38.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

38. EXEREALRS

BRitir & MR E A

BERBEECRS

RSN AEEREARNTLATERXN

Group had the following significant related party transactions EHEBEALRS:
during the year:
2018 2017
—E-\EF —E—+F
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 I S TT
Service income received from BEREREFLHERE
Guangdong Brightzone BHABR AR
Financial Company Limited (TERER])WERZ
(“Guangdong Brightzone”) AR 7 A 0 222,418 839,363
Unsecured borrowings RKEBHEEATZ
from related party 43 1 fE 3R (ii) - 47,836,800
2018 2017
—E—)\F ZE—+F
HK$ HK$
I 7S TT
Key management compensation FTEEBEABZHMN
— Salaries and other short-term - FehEMECHEERT
employee benefits 2,775,000 2,775,000
— Share options — - 877,444
— Post-employment benefits —BEE AR 36,000 36,000
2,811,000 3,688,444
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone pursuant to which Guangdong
Brightzone has appointed Wealth Alliance for the website operation
and sales promotion services. The service income was based on terms
agreed between the parties involved. Guangdong Brightzone is owned
as to 51.43% by Shenzhen Guangxin and the remaining interests by
independent third parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin Investment Company Limited is controlled by Ms.
Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming
(who is a former Director of the Company) and is therefore an associate of
a connected person of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong
Brightzone under the Sales Agency Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules.

During the year 2017, one of the Group’s subsidiaries entered into a loan
agreement with P9)I{Z SR EHIAFR QA (transliterated as Sichuan
Desheng Group Vanadium & Titanium Co., Ltd.) (“Sichuan Desheng”)
for borrowing an unsecured loan in amount of RMB40,000,000, bearing
interest of 8% per annum and repayable within one year. The amount
and interest of RMB204,444 (equivalent to HK$241,003) was fully repaid
during the year 2018.

Sichuan Desheng is controlled by the father-in-law of Mr. Wong Jiawei,
the Company’s Director and is therefore a deemed connected person
of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
borrowing transaction constitutes connected transaction on the party of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent
of HK$30,230,000 (2017: HK$30,230,000) to a bank in
respect of general banking facility granted to two (2017: two)
of its subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2018, an amount of
HK$4,497,498 (2017: HK$6,556,013) of such facility was being
utilized by the subsidiaries. In the opinion of the Directors, no
material liabilities will arise from the above corporate guarantee
which arose in the ordinary course of business and fair value of
the corporate guarantee granted by the Company is immaterial.

£EEREBEERAT | —B-NFEH

W

(i)

(ii)

38. EXARAEALRS (&)

EBE(ARRIZ2EWBAR) BRERBR
FNmE Bl BERIERELEBIRHESN
B REMOBEHERERE  REIK
ATDRIBEESEENEREE -BRERS
AERINEERBLE=ZFHEB51.43% K
Fleatas -

RYITEEREBERAFNARLSE LR
Bl REELZ T ARRRFEESTEXHL
EZEE Bt RAARBREALZE
ZA(EZRGEMETRRA) - Btk - R %
GEMLEMHRA SHAERERREHER
BiR#ET 2 X BBRARR 2 FEMER
5o

20174 RE B &) — 8 2 7 & )|
ERBEENKARDR ([0)IEB] )T
B as - KR 8 A R 40,000,000
T ERIRTFSERE  R—FRER-
BEAFERFEARKE204,4447T (FBER
241,003 TT) ER-ZE—\ERNREEE -

mNEBRAAREEEREEEIENE
H - B AR BGEM E AR AR /AR RE 2
BEAL Bt RIEGEMLE TR A &5
RHBRARBDZFHEBERS -

ARAFEMBFEIRMR(ZT—L
F MER)MBLARZ —MIBITEERR
771E 130,230,000 T (= E —t & :
30,230,000 L) < R Al ER - R ZF
—N\NFE+=—A=1+—H ZEHWEAF
A ZEE &8 /54,497,4988 70 (=&
—+ % :6,556,013/8 L) cEBER A"
RBEEEFI Lz FRARERTS
EXEREE BARRAKREQRE
RZAFELTERK-
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39. KASIMBRRBERER

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-)\F —T—+F
Note HK$ HK$
M E BT BT
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment M e R E 294,290 155,025
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 18 168,317,500 107,955,000
Interests in associates YRR/ I e - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL B JB A B FRIE 58,948,266 54,742,373
227,560,056 162,852,398
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFEBE -ZER
other receivables H {th jE W 5008 528,186 213,838
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 69,185,398 40,248,949
69,713,584 40,462,787
Total assets EEEE 297,273,640 208,315,185
Current liabilities F =R
Other payables and accruals H {th B A 3008 K B R FUIA 817,500 903,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1B B A B FUE 13,606,591 13,606,591
14,424,091 14,510,091
Net current assets REEEEE 55,289,493 25,952,696
Net assets BEEFHE 282,849,549 188,805,094
Capital and reserves BAEREE
Share capital fi% < 77,489,582 64,989,582
Share premium B 17 5 (B 1,673,298,866 1,614,798,866
Other reserve E bR - (16,000,000)
Share-based compensation reserve A&7 # (& f# # 30,554,498 30,554,498
Accumulated losses ZErEE (1,498,493,397) (1,505,537,852)
Total equity HEREE 282,849,549 188,805,094

Wang Jiawei
E=E
Director

EF

Lai Yuk Mui
REH

Director

EF
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Share Share Other compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses  Total equity
[N e by i 8 Hithits ROWERE RithE ELGE
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT A BT BT BT
Balance as at 1 January 2017 RZB—+5-f-AzkH 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 30,383874 (1,075848,867) 634,323,455
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (430,395,805)  (430,395,805)
Equity-settled share option IRESE 2 BRERH
arrangements - - - 877,444 - 877,444
Share retrieval from escrow arrangement W EEE R R = - (16,000,000) = - (16,000,000)
Transfer of share-based BREXBRERROBERE
compensation reserve upon
the lapse of share options - - - (706,820) 706,820 -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 S 3
TZA=+-RAzE&H 64,989,582  1,614,798,866 (16,000,000) 30,554,498 (1,505,537,862) 188,805,094
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZF-N\E-R—B2&H 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 (16,000,000) 30,554,498 (1,505,537,852) 188,805,094
Profit for the year FRFIE - - - - 7,044,455 7,044,455
Cancellation of shares under escrow FHTERHE RN
arrangement (2,000,000)  (14,000,000) 16,000,000 - - -
New issuance during the year FRIBT 14,500,000 72,500,000 - - - 87,000,000
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+ZA=+-Az&H 717,489,582 1,673,298,866 - 30,554,498 (1,498,493,397) 282,849,549
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B %=

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published

audited consolidated financial statements is set out below:

mEECNBEERZ

REMBHRRZAKHE
BEREAMBFEEENNEERBBHRE
;o

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-0\E —T—+F —E-RE —E-0E —E-mE
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT o BT BT B

RESULTS £
Revenue ey 344,830,978 29,186,397 8,896,415 45,714,003 40,616,592
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEHAT (1) /718 (32,014,898) (138,848,753) (277,782,737)  (79,676,433) 120,366,125
Income tax income/(expense) FERBA/ (B%) 181,520 2,545,494 32,879,188 18,628,673 (3,147,706)
Profit from discontinued operation BRIEEEEBHE - - - - =
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)/FIH (31,833,378)  (136,303,259)  (244,903,549)  (61,047,760) 117,218,419

Attributable to: JE1h -
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (31,213,014)  (136,497,133)  (244,075,407)  (62,850,046) 114,540,442
Non-controlling interests FERER (620,364) 193,874 (828,142) 1,802,286 2,677,977
(31,833,378)  (136,303,259) (244,903,549)  (61,047,760) 117,218,419

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-0\& B+ —E-RF —E-RF —E-NE
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT B
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BRERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Total assets BEME 412,131,704 409,576,495 500,383,613 802,266,703 900,049,433
Total liabilities BEAE (33,955,949)  (72,711,195)  (31,346,192)  (71,550,339)  (98,789,783)
Non-controlling interests FrkRER (18,557,408)  (14,903,119) (6,215,475) (7,006,907 (5,267,851)
364,618,352 321,962,181 462,821,946 723,709,457 795,991,799
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